
Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Monday, 20 July 2020

Page 1

Agenda
Contact: Candida Mckelvey, Democratic Services 
Telephone 07895 213820 
Email: candida.mckelvey@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 10 July 2020
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Scrutiny Committee
will be held on Monday, 20 July 2020 at 7.00 pm 

Virtual meeting

Members of the Committee:
Councillors:
Nathan Boyd (Chairman)
Jerry Avery
Ron Batstone

Samantha Bowring
Cheryl Briggs
Andy Foulsham

Robert Maddison
Mike Pighills
Max Thompson

Substitutes Councillors
Paul Barrow
Eric Batts
Hayleigh Gascoigne

Alison Jenner
Diana Lugova
Sarah Medley

Patrick O’Leary
Janet Shelley
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting.

Margaret Reed, Head of Legal and Democratic 

Joining instructions for members of the public: To watch the virtual meeting,
you must copy the following link to your internet browser:

https://bit.ly/3iQ8Gqg

When your web browser opens, select “Watch on the Web instead” button and
then when the “Welcome to the live event!” window opens, select “join
anonymously”.

mailto:candida.mckelvey@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
https://bit.ly/3iQ8Gqg


Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Monday, 20 July 2020

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

1. Urgent business and chairman's announcements 
 
 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

2. Apologies for absence 
 
 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes 
 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting held 
on 6 July 2020.  

4. Declarations of interest 
 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

5. Public participation 
 
 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.  

REPORTS AND ISSUES FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

6. Statement of Community Involvement 
(Pages 4 - 77) 
 
The committee is invited to:

(a) Comment upon the revised draft Statement of Community Involvement (SCI).
(b) Make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Planning regarding any alterations to 

the draft SCI document prior to Cabinet.



Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Monday, 20 July 2020

Page 3

7. Authority Monitoring Report 
(Pages 78 - 164) 
 
To consider the Authority Monitoring Report and provide feedback to the
Cabinet Member for Planning

8. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 
(Pages 165 - 168) 
 
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are confirmed, the 
items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or rearranged without further 
notice.



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Monday, 6 July 2020 Sc.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Scrutiny Committee
held on Monday, 6 July 2020 at 6.00 pm

This was a virtual meeting. 

Present: 

Members: Councillors Nathan Boyd (Chair), Ron Batstone, Cheryl Briggs, 
Andy Foulsham, Robert Maddison, Mike Pighills, and Patrick O’Leary (in place of Max 
Thompson)

Also: Councillor Debby Hallett, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services

Officers: Adrianna Partridge, Candida Mckelvey, Michelle Wells and Steve Culliford

Sc.33 Chairman's announcements 

Councillor Boyd, committee chairman, welcomed the committee members and explained the virtual 
meeting procedure for participation.

Sc.34 Appoint a vice-chair 

Councillor Ron Batstone was appointed to be vice-chair for the rest of the 2019-20 municipal year.

Sc.35 Apologies for absence 

Councillor Max Thompson gave his apologies ahead of the meeting, and Councillor Patrick 
O’Leary was present as his substitute.

Sc.36 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting on 6 February 2020 were agreed as a correct record of the meeting. 
The chairman will sign them as such.

Sc.37 Declarations of interest 

None.

Sc.38 Public participation 

None.

Sc.39 Urgent business 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Monday, 6 July 2020 Sc.2

None.

Sc.40 Review and comment on the draft Corporate Plan 2020-2024 
for public consultation 

The Cabinet member for Corporate Services introduced the papers. Creating the draft Corporate 
Plan took time and was an enriching and rewarding process. There are key themes, underneath 
which there will be areas of work, which will produce related projects (programmes). These will be 
well defined lower level projects as the council is provided with more information from Central 
Government.
There have been changes related to Covid-19 and Local Government funding which leaves current 
uncertainty about what we have to spend. A local government restructure is due, with a White 
Paper to be issued in September 2020. The Corporate Plan encompasses our aspirations and 
values.

Committee Chairman led the committee through the themes of the draft Corporate Plan.

Theme 1 – providing the homes people need:
 Discussion regarding what the aims were for affordable housing – Cabinet Member for 

Corporate Services informed the committee that certain measures of affordability would be 
explored as part of the Corporate Plan and likely to be one of the first projects to move 
forward.

 Climate Emergency Advisory Committee recommendations at the meeting of 1 July were 
supported by the scrutiny committee. Commitment to sustainability was agreed, and 
Cabinet member for Corporate Services added that the wording would be changed to 
included sustainability.

Theme 2 – Climate emergency
 It was confirmed that the district ambitions of 75% reduction in council emissions by 2025 

has been assessed as ambitious yet achievable by the Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee (CEAC) and accepted by Cabinet.

 Committee asked how the district council currently measures its emissions. Cabinet 
member for Corporate Services advised a review of the council's website, and if there were 
specific questions to direct them to the Cabinet member for Housing and Environment.

 Monitor energy use in offices and leisure centres and so on.

Theme 3 – Building healthy communities
 It was agreed this was a strong section.

Theme 4 – Building stable finances
 This section will be defined further. Committee endorsed the change made (as a result of 

the CEAC meeting) to the phrase 'financially sensible'. 
 CIPFA code of practice – Section 151 officer asked for this to be included as an example 

project, and this was supported by the committee.

Theme 5 - Working in partnership
 Support shown for Youth Council project
 Committee asked what the benefit of a mooted economic development review project 

would be to council (it's one of the examples provided). Cabinet member for corporate 
services explained that local businesses will be affected by the lockdown; unemployment is 
expected to rise, so we are intending to help businesses of all sizes to survive. 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Monday, 6 July 2020 Sc.3

Theme 6 – working in an open and inclusive way
 Want representation from all backgrounds. The groups are yet to be defined. Council 

should represent communities.
 Committee wondered if Zoom meetings would be our future (under programme 6.1). 

Cabinet member for corporate services answered that we were using new technology to try 
to reach groups we hadn't been able to before.

 An idea was raised about helping the public to access meetings – if we do go back to face-
to-face meetings – can we still live stream meetings online so that people can easily join 
meetings as they wish. There are cost considerations to setting this up.

 Be creative, and in tune with social media.
 Training on unconscious bias was discussed.

General comments

 Will there be a corporate action plan and performance indicators in September? It was 
confirmed that there would be, and the indicators would be meaningful – measure what 
is important to us, and also monthly reporting.

The chairman thanked the Cabinet member for Corporate Services and the officers for their work 
and additional work for the Covid-19 community support.

Recommendation:
To welcome the progress of the draft Vale of White Horse Corporate Plan 2020-24, and ask that 
Cabinet notes the comments from the scrutiny committee on 6 July 2020 and the 
recommendations from the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee on 1 July 2020.

Sc.41 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings 

The work programme is in a fluid state whilst the Cabinet work programme settles down.

Committee Chairman asked that if the committee members have anything to add on the item 
regarding A34 diversion, please let him know so it forms part of the discussion.

The next meeting of the committee is on 20 July 2020.

The meeting closed at 6.48 pm

Page 6



1

Scrutiny Committee

Report of Head of Planning
Author: Nina Merritt / Emma Wright
Telephone: 07717 271906
E-mail: nina.merritt@southandvale.gov.uk  
Head of Service: Adrian Duffield
Executive Member responsible: Catherine Webber
Tel: 01235 534001
Email: catherine.webber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
Paper for Scrutiny on 20 July 2020

Vale of White Horse Statement of 
Community Involvement (SCI)

Recommendation(s)

The committee is invited to:

(a) Comment upon the revised draft Statement of Community Involvement (SCI).
(b) Make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Planning regarding any 

alterations to the draft SCI document prior to Cabinet.

Purpose of Report

     1. To report to Scrutiny Committee on the key issues raised following a six-week 
public consultation of the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) and to 
report on the changes proposed to the document.  To seek any comments for 
the Cabinet Member for Planning to consider.

Strategic Objectives

2. The publication of the SCI supports the delivery of the council’s strategic 
objectives set out in the current Corporate Plan by supporting the delivery of 
sustainable communities and wellbeing.

Background

3. The council is required to produce an SCI in accordance with Section 18 of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The purpose of the SCI is 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

mailto:nina.merritt@southandvale.gov.uk


2

to set out how the council will engage with communities who have an interest 
in matters relating to development in their area. 

4. Section 10A of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 
2017 require an SCI to be reviewed every five years starting from the date of 
adoption of the SCI. The current SCI is divided into three documents and was 
adopted by Cabinet in December 2016. Since this time, Local Plan 2031 Part 
2 was adopted, a revised National Planning Policy Framework was published, 
and the council has committed to preparing a new local plan. These changes 
need to be reflected within the SCI. 

Summary of the Statement of Community Involvement

5. The revised SCI sets out how the council wish to engage with the community -
who can influence new planning policy documents, as well as setting out the 
ways to comment upon planning applications for development. 

6. Information is presented in a way that is clear and transparent for the wider 
audience and is aided alongside a series of flowcharts and diagrams to help 
illustrate the council’s practices and procedures for consulting on new 
planning policy documents.

7. The SCI is now set out in one document but split into three sections: 

Section 1 – Shaping our Future

8. Section 1 of the SCI provides a set of overarching principles that the council 
will be guided by when consulting on new planning documents. This section 
provides information on how the council wishes to involve the community 
when consulting on new planning documents and where these documents 
can be viewed once they are published. It also sets out the council’s 
commitment to equalities and provides links to other useful planning services. 

9. A key change to this section, from the current SCI, is that printed copies of 
documents will no longer be sent to libraries. Computer access is free at the 
libraries and available to all, including those, for example, with sight or hearing 
impairments. In line with our aim to reducing carbon emissions, under the 
climate change agenda, the council will therefore no longer send paper copies 
to the libraries and may charge if printed copies are requested. This approach 
will also help reduce our costs. 

Section 2 – Community Involvement in the preparation of the Local Plan 
and Planning Policy

10.Section 2 of the SCI sets out how interested parties can get involved with and 
influence the council as it prepares its local plan and other planning policy 
documents. 

11.The document includes a series of flowcharts that set out the process the 
council is required to follow when preparing different planning policy 

Page 8



3

documents. For example, it includes the council’s approach when preparing 
any new Development Plan Documents (such as the Local Plan), 
Supplementary Planning Documents, Sustainability Appraisals and Strategic 
Environment Assessments in accordance with the relevant legislation and 
regulations. 

12.This list is not exclusive, the document also covers a number of other 
planning policy documents. 

Section 3 – Community Involvement in Planning Applications

13.Section 3 of the SCI sets out how the planning application process works for a 
variety of applications and how interested parties can become involved and 
engaged in this process. 

14.The document also sets out the council’s minimum neighbour notification for 
most applications, alongside a diagram showing how neighbours will be 
notified where the application boundary abuts a neighbouring property. 

15.Publicity and consultation procedures for the types of planning applications 
that the council may receive are set out in Appendix 1 of the SCI. 

16.Each section of the SCI covers a particular theme for community engagement 
and involvement. All of the sections together make up the SCI and once 
adopted, the council will use the document when preparing and consulting on 
new planning documents, and to assist the council with local engagement 
when deciding on planning applications for development.

Key Discussion Points Raised Following Public Consultation

17.Public consultation on the draft revised Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI) was undertaken between Thursday 27 February and 9 April 2020. There 
is no requirement to consult on the Statement of Community Involvement, 
however, it is good practice to do so. 

18.The SCI consultation document is available to view and access from the 
council website. 

19.Those on our consultation database, including town and parish councils and 
statutory bodies, were notified of the consultation. The council received 
several comments from various consultees, including the following: 

 Oxford City Council, the Nuclear Decommisioning Authority and Historic 
England, were supportive of the aims and approach of the document. 

 Cherwell District Council asked for clarification regarding the notification 
of adjacent districts regarding planning applications, where applicable.

 Harcourt Hill Campus highlighted the role of education providers in the 
planning process. 

Page 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/statement-community-involvement


4

 Other issues raised included suggestions for further consultation 
regarding Local Plans, the perception that public opinions are not always 
taken into account, involvement of the local community in strategic 
decisions, a request for the creation of focus groups, polls for major 
developments and further use of online media platforms to raise 
awareness of planning applications.

20.Consultees made a number of comments and raised issues that have helped 
to refine the SCI document.  These included:

 Clarification regarding which planning applications are dealt with by the 
district and county council.

 Updating definitions regarding floorspace.
 Clarification regarding the notification of adjacent districts regarding 

planning applications, where applicable.
 Refining and improving wording, as appropriate. 

21.A summary document of the consultation responses received, along with the 
officer response, can be found at Appendix 2.

  Refinements to the Statement of Community Involvement

22.The SCI has been refined, taking into account the comments made during the 
consultation, as summarised above.  The SCI has also been amended to 
include necessary caveats regarding: availability of paper copies of 
documents; deposit points; and opening hours of council offices that are 
impacted due to the Covid-19 pandemic.  

23.The revised draft version is presented at Appendix 1.  This should be read 
alongside Appendix 2, which summarises the consultation responses 
received and the proposed changes as a result of the consultation responses.

Financial Implications

24.There will be costs associated with any printing or distribution of the SCI 
document. We will limit this to undertake it only where necessary. These 
costs, (unlikely to be no more than £2000) can be met from within the existing 
planning policy budget.

Legal Implications

25.  The council is legally required, under section 18 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, to produce an SCI to set out how we will 
engage with our communities who have an interest in matters relating to 
development in their area. 

Page 10



5

Risks

26.The council would be at risk if it did not have an updated SCI in place: it is a 
legal requirement as per the implications listed above.

Other Implications and Timetable

27. It is anticipated that the final document, informed by all representations made, 
will be adopted by Cabinet in Autumn 2020.

Conclusion

28.The SCI will be a vital tool to assist the council in the preparation of planning 
policy documents and when deciding on planning applications for 
development.  The changes made following public consultation will provide 
further clarity to the community, developers, development management team, 
town and parishes and councillors who may wish to be involved in the 
planning process.   

29.Scrutiny Committee are asked to feedback any comments on the Statement 
of Community Involvement to the Cabinet Member for Planning.

Background Papers:
Appendix 1 – Revised Statement of Community Involvement 

Appendix 2 – Summary of Consultation Responses

Page 11



Statement
of Community

Involvement
A guide to community 

involvement and 
consultation in 

respect of planning 
applications and 

planning policy

Revised Draft – 2020

SCI cover sept 2020.ai   1   06/07/2020   16:00:39

Appendix 1

Page 12



1 
 

Introduction 

One of our key responsibilities as a district council is to plan for how land is used in 
the Vale and what kinds of developments can happen and where.  

Decisions we make, and policies we set, affect local residents, businesses and 
organisations now and in the future, so it’s important they arethat everyone has the 
opportunity to be involved from the start. We aim to work positively and proactively 
with our local communities to make sure they are fully informed, feel involved in the 
decision-making process and have timely and meaningful opportunities to have a 
say on planning matters we consult onany proposals we make.  

This Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) explains how we ensure this 
happens in the planning services that we provide.  

This SCI covers both the preparation and production of planning policy documents 
and how the community will be involved in decisions relating to planning 
applications. It also provides information on planning appeals, planning enforcement, 
the Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 Legal Agreements.  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 13



2 
 

Contents 
 
1. What is our Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)?  3 

Section 1 – Shaping our Future 

2. Our Principles for Community Engagement and Community and 3 
Stakeholder Involvement in Planning Policy and Planning  
Applications 

3. How to get involved in Planning      5 
4. Commitment to Equalities and Inclusive Consultation   5 
5. Further information on Planning      6 
6. Review of the SCI         6 

Section 2 – Community Involvement in the Preparation of the Local Plan and                                    
Planning Policy  

7. What is Planning Policy?       7 
8. Duty to Co-operate        7 
9. Public Involvement in Planning Policy     8 
10. Consultees         8 
11. Policy Documents we Consult on      10 
12. Other Development Plan Documents     19 
13. Timeframes for consultation      20 
14. Comments made on Planning Policy documents   21 
15. Monitoring         21 

Section 3 – Community Involvement in Planning Applications  

16. What is Development Management?      22 
17. Types of Planning Applications      22 
18. Planning Application process      22 
19. Pre-application advice       24 
20. Notification of Planning Applications      25 
21. Who we Consult with       26 
22. Viewing a Planning Application      27 
23. Time to comment on a Planning Application    29 
24. Decisions on Planning Applications     29 
25. Section 106 (Planning Obligations) Legal Agreements   30 
26. Planning Appeals        30 
27. Planning Enforcement       30 
 

Glossary           32 

Appendix A           36 
 
 

Page 14



3 
 

1. WHAT IS OUR STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT? 
 

1.1 We are committed to working in a clear and transparent way as the Local Planning 
Authority and are keen to help anyone who is interested in getting involved with the 
planning process.   
 

1.2 Our Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how we engage with local 
communities (local residents, councillors, businesses, organisations and statutory 
consultees) and highlights the opportunities so that regarding how they can provide 
comments on new planning documents such asand Local Plans and be involved in the 
development of their local area/district. It sets out how and when we engage, what 
methods of consultation we use, how we process and feedback on the comments we 
receive.   
 

1.3 We adopted our previous SCI in 2016. This 2020 version now reflects the government’s 
latest planning policy guidance and legislation1, including the revised National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF 2019). It also provides updated information regarding Planning 
in the Vale, including how we operate during the Covid-19 outbreak. The 2016 SCI was 
split into three documents; the current version combines these documents into one 
document.  

 
1.4 This Statement of Community Involvement (2020) comprises three sections:  

Section 1: Shaping our Future - sets out our overall approach to community 
engagement and involvement in the planning process. 

Section 2: Community Involvement in the Preparation of the Local Plan and 
Planning Policy - provides information on how to get involved with and influence the 
preparation of the Local Plan and other planning policy documents. 

Section 3: Community Involvement in Planning Applications - provides information 
on how to become aware of, view and comment on planning applications.  

Section 1 – Shaping our Future 
 

2. OUR PRINCIPLES FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNITY AND 
STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT IN PLANNING POLICY AND PLANNING 
APPLICATIONS  
 

2.1. Our role as the Local Planning Authority is to ensure planning process, rules and policies 
are followed properly, for example, to make sure new developments are of a high quality 
and in keeping with the local surroundings. It is also very important that the policies we 
create and the planning decisions we make take into account the views of local 
communities.  

 
2.2. New development has a long-lasting impact on its surroundings, so it is important that 

people have a chance to influence proposals. We therefore engage with local 
communities (residents, councillors, businesses, organisations and stakeholders) across 
the district, by using a range of different methods and channels. We want to give 

 
1 Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) requires Local 
Planning Authorities to produce a Statement of Community Involvement. 

Page 15



4 
 

everyone an opportunity to have their voice heard. To do that, we aim to follow the 
consultation principles developed by central government alongside our Vale of White 
Horse Public Engagement Charter 2016-2020, which commits us to the following points: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• We will: 
o Keep you informed of progress and explain decisions and/or outcomes on 

planning policy documents through your preferred channel of communication. 
o Check to see if we already have information that we can use, such as the 

results from previous consultations and evidence provided to us by 
communities – for example published neighbourhood or community led plans.  

o Always protect the personal details of respondents in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018. 

 

• We will: 
o Make our planning documents, background studies and responses to 

consultations readily available to the public on our website and in some 
cases, if necessary, on paper during normal office hours at local libraries and 
at our offices.   

o Maximise the use of the internet in our consultations. 
o Recognise that other forms of engagement are necessary and will endeavour 

to communicate in a variety of ways (e.g. newspaper, social media). 
o Where required, make information available in a range of easily accessible 

formats on request (e.g. in large print, braille, audio, email, easy read and 
alternative languages). 

o Make our information publicly available (for example, information on the 
progress of proposals and feedback on your comments). 

 

• We will:  
o Communicate in ways that are relevant and accessible to all sections of our 

community and proportionate to the issue. 
o Endeavour to engage with groups in our community that can find us less 

accessible (e.g. disability groups and ethnic groups – these are sometimes 
referred to as ‘hard to reach’ groups) or those likely to be particularly affected 
by a proposal. 

o Encourage involvement from groups that have traditionally not been involved 
in the planning process (for example targeted events with younger people). 

o Support local communities who wish to prepare neighbourhood plans. 
o Hold events or meetings in accessible locations or in accessible ways at 

times appropriate for different members of the community.   

 

• We will endeavour to engage with a wide range of formal and informal local 
community groups and voluntary organisations, stakeholders, councillors, town 
and parish councils and parish meetings and other groups in the community, of 
which we become aware. 

 

• We will: 
o Ensure early involvement with local communities in the preparation of our 

planning policy documents and in the consideration of planning applications, 
as the earlier local communities are involved, the better chance they have to 
influence decisions. 

o Have in place effective mechanisms for documenting views and clear feedback 
mechanisms to demonstrate how the views of the community have influenced 
and benefited the plan/decisions.   

 

• We will: 
o Keep the process simple by writing our documents in Plain English and 

explaining any planning language or terms that we use. 
o Explain clearly what we are consulting on and the reasons why we want to 

involve you.  

Communicating 
clearly 
  

Providing  
feedback  
and sharing  
information 
  

Recognising 
the needs of  
different groups  

  
  

Making access 
to 
information 
easy 

Being inclusive of 
all 

Early 
involvement 
   

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/consultation-principles-guidance
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/VOWH%20Public%20Engagement%20Charter%202016-20%20-%20PUBLISHED%20(November%202016).pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/VOWH%20Public%20Engagement%20Charter%202016-20%20-%20PUBLISHED%20(November%202016).pdf


5 
 

3. HOW TO GET INVOLVED IN PLANNING 
 

3.1. We recognise that good plan making significantly benefits from early and meaningful 
engagement with local communities (local residents, councillors, businesses, 
organisations and statutory consultees). We want everyone to have the opportunity 
to influence the outcome of our plan-making documents and planning decisions. We 
explain in sections 2 and 3 how we will engage and consult with local communities 
on the preparation and production of planning policy documents and how the local 
community will be involved in the decisions relating to planning applications.  

 
3.2. In order to ensure engagement with a wide range of organisations and individuals, 

all of our planning documents and planning applications are available to view and 
access from our website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-
and-building and – we encourage you to view documents online.  

 
3.3. In addition, paper copies of planning policy documents are usually available to view at 

our office on request (e.g. in large print, braille, audio, email, Easy Read and 
alternative languages), if no restrictions  are in place e.g. Covid-19. Details regarding 
where to view documents are set out below. During consultation periods and if no 
restrictions are in place , documents may also be made available at a number of 
deposit locations across the district e.g. libraries.  We may make these documents 
available electronically to town and parish councils and statutory bodies. Requests for 
printed copies, CD memory sticks or other formats of the documents will carry a 
charge including anprinting and administration charge.  
 
Our office (at the time of 
publication of this document): 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council,  
135 Eastern Avenue, 
Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 

Opening hours (if no local Covid-19 
restrictions in place): 
 
Monday – Thursday: 8.30am – 5pm  
Friday: 8.30am – 4.30pm 

 
3.4. Legislation also requires us to consult ‘specific consultation bodies’ and other interest 

groups. These bodies are defined by the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2017 or as amended.  

 
Database of Consultees 

 
3.5. We keep an up-to-date database of individuals, groups and stakeholders who we 

regularly contact on planning matters in accordance with General Data Protection 
Regulations. If you would like to be added to the database to receive updates on planning 
policy consultations and relevant updates, please use our consultation sign up form. If 
you would like to amend your details, please email planning.policy@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
or call our Customer Service Team on 01235 422600.  
 

4. COMMITMENT TO EQUALITIES 
 

4.1. We are committed to equality and ensuring that everyone has access to our services. We 
comply with the Equalities Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 1998 and have 
developed, jointly with South Oxfordshire District Council, a Corporate Equality Policy 
which sets out our commitment to ensuring equality considerations are included in 

Page 17

file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Shared/Policy%20(GDPR)/Shared/Future%20Local%20Plan/007.%20SCI/02.%20Draft%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Shared/Policy%20(GDPR)/Shared/Future%20Local%20Plan/007.%20SCI/02.%20Draft%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/pdfs/uksi_20171244_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/pdfs/uksi_20171244_en.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/contact-us/requesting-information/data-protection
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/contact-us/requesting-information/data-protection
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/consultationsignup/
mailto:planning.policy@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Corporate%20equality%20policy-final_0.pdf


6 
 

everything we do, including consultations.  
 

4.2. We also have a Corporate Equality Action Plan 2016/17–2019/20 which sets our 
objectives from the previous few years and how we have or have not achieved these 
objectives.  
 

4.3. As part of our commitment to ensuring all residents have equal access to council 
information and services, including consultations, we have a translation and interpretation 
policy which sets out our approach to responding to requests and proactively offering 
these services.  
 

5. FURTHER INFORMATION ON PLANNING  
 

5.1. While there is a wealth of information available on our website, there are other 
organisations which provide information on the planning system. Useful websites include:  

• Planning Portal – www.planningportal.co.uk   
• National Planning Practice Guidance – 

www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance   
• Plain English Guide to the Planning System – 

www.gov.uk/government/publications/plain-english-guide-to-the-planning-system  

Planning Aid England 

5.2. Planning Aid England is an independent voluntary organisation linked to the Royal 
Town Planning Institute (RTPI) which includes a network of professional Chartered 
Town Planners. Planning Aid England offers impartial advice and independent support. 
For further information, contact them online by visiting www.rtpi.org.uk/planning-aid or 
call 0207 929 9494. 
 

6. REVIEW 
 

6.1. We will continually assess how effective our consultation and engagement techniques 
and methods are in gaining community involvement and in particular assess our success 
at reaching specific groups.  
 

6.2. We will review this SCI periodically to take account of changes to legislation, government 
guidance or local circumstances (for example, Covid-19 could have an impact on our 
methods) and any comments received relating to consultation methods will be considered 
on an ongoing basis.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CEAP%202016-17%20-%202019-20%20updated%20April%2018-published_0.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Translation%20and%20Interpretation%20policy_update%20April%202013_finalv2_0.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Translation%20and%20Interpretation%20policy_update%20April%202013_finalv2_0.pdf
http://www.planningportal.co.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/plain-english-guide-to-the-planning-system
http://www.rtpi.org.uk/planning-aid


7 
 

Section 2 – Planning Policy 
 

7. WHAT IS PLANNING POLICY? 
 

7.1. Planning policy is concerned with preparing and implementing plans that help us decide 
where development takes place. We have a range of planning policies that are used to 
inform decisions to approve or reject planning applications. Our planning policies are 
contained in a variety of policy documents which make up our Development Plan. The 
key planning policy document we must prepare is a Local Plan for the district. Figure 1 
below sets out our current Development Plan. 
 
 Figure 1: Vale Development Plan  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. DUTY TO CO-OPERATE 
 

8.1. Some planning issues may cross administrative boundaries, such as planning for strategic 
infrastructure or planning for the sustainable development or use of land on or near our 
boundary. We need to take into account our neighbouring councils’ policies and proposals for 
addressing these strategic matters in the process of making our Local Plan.  

 
8.2. We have a Duty to Co-operate with other local planning authorities and public bodies to 

engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis on strategic matters.  The Duty 
to Co-operate is not a duty to agree, but we will make every effort to secure necessary 
cooperation. The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012 sets out the public bodies that we are required to co-operate with. 

 
8.3. We will exercise our Duty to Co-operate with our neighbouring councils and develop 

Statements of Common Ground when developing a Local Plan, as required by the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  

 
 
 

Page 19

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/pdfs/uksi_20120767_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/pdfs/uksi_20120767_en.pdf


8 
 

9. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN PLANNING POLICY 

9.1. We will continue to explore new and effective methods to carry out consultations and to learn 
from what is and isn’t successful when engaging with our communities. 

9.2. At all stages of plan-making, we will publicise any consultation material and accompanying 
documents on our website. Consultees registered on our planning database will be notified 
(by their preferred method, e.g. letter or email) of any consultations on future plan-making 
proposals. 

9.3. All of our planning policy documents are made available on our website. We will also make 
information available in other ways, where appropriate. 

9.4. We will always ensure that our consultations on planning policy documents are as 
comprehensive as possible. The methods of consultation we use will vary depending on the 
nature of the planning policy document, the stage of the document being consulted on and 
the geographical scope or nature of the planning issue being considered in the document. 

9.5. Depending on the scope of the consultation, the engagement methods   used can include one 
or more of the following examples as set out in the list below. This list is not exclusive, there 
are other engagement methods that we may use: 
 
• Make consultation material available online. This can also be made available and at 

our office, on request, when they are open during the consultation period.  
• Hold targeted physical or online workshops (town and parishes councils; 

stakeholders). 
• Hold physical or online public exhibitions (staffed and un-staffed). 
• Publish online surveys and responses and provide electronic or paper copies (when 

re requested or justified). 
• Publish leaflets, posters and bulletins (electronicmail and where appropriate/justified 

paper copy). 
• Publish press releases to local media. 
• Publish formal notices in newspapers circulating across the district. 
• Notify consultees registered on our planning database by their preferred method of 

contact. 
• Use social media (e.g. Twitter and Facebook). 
• Target work with harder to reach groups - e.g. disability access groups, ethnic 

minority groups, faith groups and young people. 
• Target work with community groups, voluntary organisations, businesses and 

education providers. 
• Hold physical or online public meetings. 

 
10. CONSULTEES 

 
10.1. The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 sets out 

the legal requirements for consultation and public participation in respect of local planning 
documents.  

 
Local Communities 

10.2. We continuously look to understand who we need to talk to in the local community to ensure 
that we consult in the most effective way. The local community includes, but is not limited to, 
the following: town and parish councils and meetings; bordering Local Planning Authorities; 
residents of our district; local interest groups; local businesses; local community groups and 

Page 20

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/pdfs/uksi_20120767_en.pdf


9 
 

organisations; faith groups; schools, colleges and higher education providers; and ‘hard to 
reach’ groups. 
 

10.3. We will seek to engage with the local community through both our general consultation 
procedures and if appropriate, through targeted events, (e.g. public meetings, exhibitions 
and other forums). This is to ensure we create opportunities to capture representative 
views of the whole community. At times, the council may use technology, such as videos 
and telephone conferences, to undertake these. 

 
10.4. We will work with those promoting development sites through the planning process to 

ensure that any site testing is undertaken on a comprehensive basis, as set out in 
ourwhich will be set out in a site selection methodology document.  
 
Specific and general consultation bodies 

10.5. Government regulations are clear that certain bodies are consulted at key stages of 
preparing local planning policy documents. These bodies are sometimes referred to as 
statutory consultees and include bodies such as the Environment Agency, Historic 
England, Natural England and Highways England and any other organisations with whom 
we have a Duty to Co-operate. We will always consult on our planning policy documents 
with the appropriate consultation bodies in accordance with the relevant and up to date 
regulations. 

 
Neighbourhood Planning 

10.6. When consulting on the designation of a new neighbourhood area boundary or amending 
a designated neighbourhood area boundary, we will always consult with the relevant 
statutory bodies (e.g. Environment Agency, Natural England and Historic England), 
neighbouring councils and adjoining towns and parishes. 

 
10.7. We also provide some support to the qualifying bodies when consulting on their draft 

neighbourhood plan (Regulation 14) before they submit the plan to us. 
 

10.8. When consulting on a draft neighbourhood plan submitted by the qualifying body, at 
publication stage (Regulation 16), we will consult with those statutory bodies identified in 
Schedule 1 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/637/contents/made


10 
 

 
 

11.   POLICY DOCUMENTS WE CONSULT ON 
 

Local Plan and Development Plan Documents (DPDs) 

11.1. These are plans which set out a vision and a framework for the future development of 
the district, addressing needs and opportunities in relation to housing, the economy, 
community facilities and infrastructure, as well as developing a basis for safeguarding 
the environment, adapting to climate change and securing good design. Local Plans 
generally look forward 15-20 years and set out detailed policies we use to make their 
decisions on planning applications. 

 
11.2. Currently, there are regulations as to what constitutes a Local Plan, and as a minimum, we 

will comply with the relevant prevailing regulations when consulting on all of our planning 
policy documents. We will make any background papers available to view online, which 
either: disclose any facts or matters related to the subject matter; or were considered in 
preparing our planning policy documents.2 

 
11.3. An Area Action Plan (AAP) is a type of DPD that can be used to guide the development 

of a specific site or location, for example, a town centre, or other places where 
significant change is planned. 

 
11.4. Figure 1.1 shows the key stages in preparing DPDs, such as the Local Plan and Area 

Action Plans (AAP). The statutory stages in the preparation of these documents is set 
out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. 

 
11.5. Our current Local Plan is in two documents and sets out the long-term spatial vision for 

the district: 
 

Local Plan 2031 Part 1: Strategic Sites and Policies 

• This sets out the overall development strategy for the district and where new housing 
and employment should be located. 

 
Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites 

• This includes detailed policies and non–strategic site allocations not included in the 
Local Plan 2031 Part 1. 

• It also deals with our contribution to Oxford City’s unmet housing need and focusses 
on supporting Didcot Garden Town. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 See paragraph 3.3 above relating to document availability reflecting impacts from COVID-19. 

Page 22

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/LPP1
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/LPP2


11 
 

Figure 1.1: Key Stages in the Preparation of Development Plan Documents 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 

 

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) 

11.6. Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) are based on adopted Local Plan policies 
and are a tool for expanding these, providing detailed guidance prepared to expand 
Local Plan policies and provide more detail about on adopted policies and proposals.  
Although legally they do not form part of the Development Plan or have the same 
‘weight’ as a DPD, they are an important material consideration in determining planning 
applications, appeals and enforcement matters.  

 
11.7. They can also be produced quicker than a Local Plan as they are not subject to an 

independent examination. Figure 2 shows the key stages in preparing SPDs. 
 

11.8. Further information on our SPDs can be found online at: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/supplementary-planning-documents  

 
 
 
 
 

Reg18* 

Reg 19* 

Reg 22* 

Reg 24* 

Reg 26* 

Pre-production stage  
- evidence gathering 

Public participation on DPD content, scope  
and/or preferred options (minimum six weeks) 

Process representations received 

Preparation of DPD 

Publication of DPD  
(minimum six week consultation) 

Respond to representations 
received on the published DPD 

Submission of DPD to  
Secretary of State  

Examination by Independent Planning Inspector 
(appointed by Secretary of State) 

Adoption of final DPD by 
Full Council 

Monitoring and Review  

Representation  
and 
participation  

 

 

Community 

involvement 

Page 23

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents


12 
 

Figure 2: Key Stages in the Preparation of Supplementary Planning Documents 
(SPDs) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
* The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 

 
Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) 

11.9. The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is an integral part of the plan preparation process and 
is required for each Local Plan document and for some neighbourhood development 
plans and SPDs. It looks at the environmental, social and economic effects of a plan to 
make sure that the plan promotes sustainable development and takes the most 
appropriate approach given reasonable alternatives. At each stage of the Development 
Plan preparation there is a corresponding stage of the SA and these documents are 
made available for comment during public consultation. The SA, where appropriate, will 
incorporate the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA), in accordance with 
European Directive EC/2001/42. 

 
11.10. Where proposals in an SPD or Neighbourhood Development Plan (NDP) or 

Neighbourhood Development Order (NDO) are likely to have significant environmental 
effects that have not already been assessed when preparing a Local Plan, an SEA may 
be required, and groups may choose to undertake an SA. 

 
11.11. We will consult on draft SA/SEA reports alongside the draft version of the plan to which 

it relates.  For example, the SA Report (incorporating requirements of the SEA) should 
be published alongside the Publication Version (Regulation 19) of a DPD. It may also be 
appropriate to publish any SEA reports alongside early consultation documents. 

 
11.12. Figure 3 shows the key stages when preparing an SA which incorporates the 

requirements of an and an SEA. An SA is usually required for all DPD’s. Figure 3a 
shows the key stages of neighbourhood plan preparation and their relationship with the 
Strategic Environmental Assessment Process. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reg 12* 

Reg 14* 

Pre-production stage – evidence 
gathering and early engagement 

Prepare draft SPD 

Consultation on draft SPD  
(minimum four weeks) 

Respond to representations on Draft SPD 
and make any necessary changes 

Adoption of final SPD by Cabinet  
or Cabinet member 

Community 
involvement 

Page 24



13 
 

Figure 3: Key Stages in the Preparation of Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic 
Environmental Assessments  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEA Screening 
 

Consult environmental assessment  
consultation bodies on scope  
of SEA (minimum five weeks) 

Setting the context and objectives to develop 
the framework for SA/SEA 

Consult on scope of SA/SEA 
(minimum five weeks) 

Develop and refine alternatives: 
appraise plan options 
Prepare the SA/SEA 
environmental report 

Publish and consult on SA/SEA report 
(minimum six weeks) 

Appraise any significant changes to  
the plan following consultation 

Reg 9* 

Reg 12* 

Reg 13* 

Community 
involvement 

Consult with 
environmental 
assessment 
bodies 

Page 25



14 
 

Figure 3a: Key Stages of Neighbourhood Plan Preparation and their relationship 
with the Strategic Environmental Assessment Process (National Planning Practice 
Guidance) 
 

 
 

Page 26



15 
 

Neighbourhood Development Plans and Neighbourhood Development Orders 

11.13. Neighbourhood planning is a way for local people and communities to take a lead on 
planning for the future of their area. Neighbourhood planning can be led by a 
town/parish council or by a neighbourhood forum, which are specially set up for 
neighbourhood planning. These should be open to anyone who lives or works in the 
area they cover.  

 
11.14. Local communities wishing to play an active role in planning for their area can: 

• Prepare a neighbourhood development plan setting out the vision, objectives and 
planning policies to shape development of their neighbourhood and/or; 

• Seek a grant of permission directly for certain types of development in their 
neighbourhood through a Neighbourhood Development Order (NDO) or a Community 
Right to Build Order. 

 
11.15. An NDO can be used to permit different types of development (in full or outline) without 

the need for planning permission. When preparing an NDO, it must still be in line with 
national and local policy and other legal requirements. The town, parish or 
neighbourhood forum is the only body that can prepare an NDO in their area. 

 
11.16. The process for making a neighbourhood development plan or a NDO is different from 

preparing a Local Plan or a Development Plan Document. 
 

11.17. Figure 4 shows the key stages when preparing a neighbourhood development plan 
and/or a NDO. 

 
11.18. We have a ‘duty to support’ qualifying bodies preparing neighbourhood plans in 

accordance with the relevant regulations. We strongly encourage and support local 
communities wishing to prepare a neighbourhood plan and have allocated resources to 
help communities prepare their plans. 

 
11.19. Our Neighbourhood Planning Team provide support to neighbourhood planning groups 

through the process of developing their neighbourhood plan. Our support includes:  
 

• advice and guidance throughout - an introductory meeting to discuss your aims and 
outline the process 

• a lead officer to attend meetings, where appropriate, and offer expert advice alongside 
their colleagues 

• advice on how to obtain funding  
• advice on external sources of support and guidance that is available to you 
• advice on engaging with your community - including how and why you need to record this 
• informing you which external organisations and statutory bodies you will need to consult 
• advice on what evidence is required to help you write your plan 
• running consultations on area designation proposals (where appropriate) as well as 

submitted plans 
• reviewing your draft neighbourhood plan to ensure it meets the basic conditions 
• organising the Independent Examination and Referendum for your plan. 

 
11.20. Our Consultation and Community Engagement team advise neighbourhood planning 

groups on best practice community engagement through meetings, workshops and 
written guidance and provide support with surveys, public engagement events and 
communications.  
 

11.21. The team also runs the district council’s statutory neighbourhood plan consultations and 
advise groups on the statutory duty they need to follow when carrying out their own 

Page 27



16 
 

consultation. For example:  
  

• the different consultation methods that could be used; 
• the consultation materials required; 
• those who should be consulted and at what stage; 
• consultation events; and 
• the publication of consultation documents. 

 
11.22. If you would like to find out more regarding neighbourhood planning, please contact a 

Neighbourhood Planning Officer by emailing planning.policy@whitehorsedc.gov.uk or 
calling our Customer Service Team on 01235 422600. 

 
11.23. Further details on our ‘made’ neighbourhood plans and those that are being developed  

can be found on our website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/neighbourhoodplans 
 

Figure 4: Key Stages in the Preparation of a Neighbourhood Development Plan and/or 
Neighbourhood Development Order 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
** If more than 50 per cent of people who voted in the referendum supported the plan/order, the 
council must adopt it, unless the decision would breach or otherwise be incompatible with an 
EU obligation or any convention rights 

 

 

Neighbourhood Area Application submitted 
to and consulted on by the council   

(minimum four weeks) 

Submission of draft Neighbourhood  
Plan/Order to Council 

Draft Neighbourhood Development 
Plan/Order is produced 

Submission of Neighbourhood Plan/Order 
and responses to independent Examiner 

Publication of Neighbourhood Plan/Order 
(minimum six weeks) 

Independent Examination 

Neighbourhood Plan/Order 
made final by Full Council** 

Referendum on Neighbourhood Plan/Order 

Monitoring and review 

Reg 6* 

Reg 14* 

Reg 16* 

Pre-submission consultation 
(minimum five weeks) 

Community 
involvement 

Community 
involvement 

Community 
involvement 

Page 28

mailto:planning.policy@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/neighbourhoodplans


17 
 

Community Right to Build Order 

11.24. A Community Right to Build Order is a particular type of NDO. It is a route to encourage 
development, allowing communities to decide for themselves what is built. This might 
include, for example, new community facilities and affordable housing. 

 
11.25. It is put together by local people who can decide on the type, quantity and design of 

buildings they want, and the locations for these buildings. 
 

11.26. A proposal can be developed as part of the full neighbourhood planning process, or on 
its own. 

 
11.27. Figure 5 shows the minimum key stages when preparing a Community Right to Build 

Order. 
 

Figure 5: Key Stages in the Preparation of a Community Right to Build Order 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

11.28. The CIL is a charge (tax) that is levied on new development floor space. It is intended to 
contribute towards the provision of infrastructure to support growth. The statutory 
process for preparing a CIL Charging Schedule is set out in the Community 
Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended) and is shown in Figure 6. This includes a 
4-week public consultation on the draft charging schedule before it is sent to the 
Secretary of State for examination.  

 
11.29. The CIL is a tariff-based charging schedule that councils can use to levy financial 

contributions from developers on new development. Contributions collected are then 

Is the site or area 
already in a 
designated 

neighbourhood 
area? 

Form a community group (e.g. town, 
parish or a neighbourhood forum) 

 
Define the neighbourhood area 

Submission and publication on draft 
Community Right to Build Order to  

Council (minimum six weeks) 

Prepare the Community Right to Build  
Order and consult on pre-submission  

(minimum six weeks)  

Independent Examination 
 

Referendum on Community 
Right to Build Order  

Order used to grant 
outline or full consent 

N Y 

Community 
Involvement Apply for 

neighbourhood 
area designation 

Page 29

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents


18 
 

used to help provide new community facilities and local infrastructure, such as schools, 
roads, open spaces etc. This charging schedule and any subsequent reviews are 
consulted on with the local community at the Regulation 16 stage of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) before it is submitted to the 
Planning Inspectorate. We will consult in accordance with this SCI as well as current 
national legislation.   

 
11.30. The money we raise from CIL will help fund major infrastructure projects which will 

benefit the wider district, along with individual projects within towns and parishes, 
whereas Section 106 is a legal agreement that sets out obligations to deal with 
mitigating on-site planning impacts. 

 
11.31. More information on CIL, including the spending strategy, can be found by visiting: 

  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/cil and www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/section106   
 
Figure 6: Key Stages in the Preparation of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 

 
Local Development Order (LDO)  

11.32. A Local Development Order (LDO) is prepared (and, in following years, be reviewed) by 
the district council and grants planning permission to specific types of development 
within a defined area. For example, Milton Park is covered by an LDO. 

 
11.33. The purpose of the LDO is to streamline the planning process by removing the need for 

developers to make a planning application to the council, provided that the development 
meets set parameters.  

 
11.34. The extent of public consultation will depend on the nature and scale of the proposal. 

For example, an LDO for a specific site may require focused consultation with local 
residents and/or the town or parish council/meeting.  

 
11.35. Proposals for a Local Development Order that cover a broader scope may require wider 

and proportionate consultation where necessary. 
 

11.36. Figure 7 shows the key stages when preparing (and, where necessary, reviewing) a 
Local Development Order. 

 

 
 

Publish final draft Charging Schedule for 
consultation (minimum four weeks) 

Examination by Independent Planning Inspector 
(appointed by Secretary of State) 

Reg 16* 

Reg 25* 

Pre-production stage – evidence 
gathering  

 
Approval and publication of charging schedule 

Reg 21* 

Community 
Involvement 

Page 30

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/cil
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/section106
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/milton-park-local-development-order


19 
 

 
Figure 7: Key Stages Required in the Preparation of a Local Development Order (LDO)   
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015  
 

12. OTHER DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS 
 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

12.1. The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 is a strategic planning document that seeks to provide a 
joined-up approach to planning across the county. The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 is a 
commitment in the Housing and Growth Deal, secured through the Oxfordshire Growth 
Board and signed up to by the council. The plan, once adopted, will sit above Local Plans 
but below the National Planning Policy Framework. It will become part of the 
Development Plan. 
 

12.2. The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 will investigate ways to deliver the Housing and Growth Deal 
and seek to explore what residents consider is important to them and also their 
aspirations for the local area from a planning perspective. The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 has 
their owna separate  Statement of Community Involvement. Additionally, a new timeline 
has recently been published that Local Development Scheme (LDS) sets out the 
timeframe for delivering the plan, including when public consultation will take place. The 
LDS new timeline for the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 can be found here:  
https://oxfordshireplan.org/timeline/   
 

12.3. Further information can be found on the Oxfordshire Plan website: 
www.oxfordshireplan.org/   

Oxfordshire County Council Minerals and Waste Plan 

12.4. Oxfordshire County Council is responsible for preparing and consulting on this plan to 
provide up to date minerals and waste planning policies and proposals for the period up 
to 2031. For more information on this plan, please visit: 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-
policy/minerals-and-waste-policy   
 

Council prepares draft LDO 

Public consultation (copy of draft order  
and statement of reasons sent to 
consultees) (minimum 28 days) 

Consider representations and make 
necessary changes to LDO 

Adoption of LDO by council and 
Statement of Reasons  

Send LDO and Statement 
of Reasons to Secretary of State within 

28 days of adoption 

Reg 38(1); (3)* 

Reg 38(10)* 

Reg 38(11)* 

Community 
involvement 

Page 31

https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Statement-of-Community-Involvement-February-2019.pdf
https://oxfordshireplan.org/timeline/
https://oxfordshireplan.org/
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy


20 
 

12.5. The county council are responsible for minerals and waste planning applications and 
county council owned operational development. District councils are responsible for any 
other planning development. For more information, please visit: 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/make-planning-
application/making-planning-application  

12.6. For updates on the progress and timeframe for the documents within the Development 
Plan, our Local Development Scheme provides this information and can be found online: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/planning-policy 
 

13. TIMEFRAMES FOR CONSULTATION 
 

13.1. We will consult on our planning policy documents at the relevant stages of plan-making, 
and we will be guided by up to date legislation, government guidance and best practice 
advice from our Consultation and Community Engagement Team. 

 
13.2. We will carry out planning policy consultations in line with the principles for engagement 

as set out in Section 1 of this SCI, and in accordance with the latest timetable set out in 
our Local Development Scheme (LDS). 

 
13.3. Our start date for planning policy consultations will be set out in a press release and/or 

formal statutory notice. At the start of the consultation, we will always notify statutory 
consultees, and those registered on our consultation database for planning matters, of 
the commencement dates and period for comment, along with clear guidance regarding 
how to comment. 

 
13.4. Consultation periods may differ depending on the nature of the planning policy document 

being consulted on, the scope of the issues being consulted on and the time of year. 
 

13.5. Legislation currently requires us to consult on planning policy documents for the minimum 
statutory period, as set out in Table 1. If an update to the relevant legislation indicates 
any changes to the periods for consultation, we will ensure this is reflected in any 
forthcoming planning policy consultations that we undertake. 

 
Table 1: Minimum statutory period for public consultation on Planning Policy 
documents 
 

Type of Planning Policy document Minimum statutory period 
for public consultation 

Development Plan Documents, e.g. Local Plan; Area 
Action Plan  

6 Weeks 

Supplementary Planning Document  4 Weeks 
Community Infrastructure Levy  4 Weeks 
Scoping of Sustainability Appraisal/Strategic 
Environmental Assessment 

5 Weeks 

Local Development Order  28 Days 
Neighbourhood Plan Area Designation 4 Weeks 
Draft Neighbourhood Plan/Neighbourhood 
Development Order   

6 Weeks 

Community Right to Build Order  6 Weeks 
 

13.6. We may seek to extend our consultations in certain circumstances, for example, where a 
public holiday, or a school holiday, falls within the consultation period.  
 

Page 32

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/make-planning-application/making-planning-application
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/make-planning-application/making-planning-application
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/planning-policy


21 
 

14. COMMENTS MADE ON PLANNING POLICY DOCUMENTS  
 

14.1. For consultation on matters related to plan-making, we publish a summary of the 
responses we receive and prepare reports after each stage of consultation. Each 
consultation report sets out how we have considered the comments made during the 
consultation before moving to the next stage of plan-making. We make our consultation 
report available on our website at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/planning-policy and on 
request at our council offices when open. 
 

14.2. We will acknowledge receipt of representations on planning policy submitted by email.   
 

14.3. We will not send acknowledgements to comments submitted to us on feedback forms at 
consultation events. Hard copynd-delivered written comments will be issued with a receipt 
if requested.   
 

14.4. We receive a high volume of correspondence and are unable to respond to individual 
comments that we receive during a particular consultation.  
 

14.5. The comments we receive on our planning policy documents will be made publicly 
available online at the earliest opportunity, once the consultation has finished.  

 
14.6. Our customer service standards set out how we will deal with correspondence by letter, 

email and telephone, as well as with those who visit our office, when open. The council 
require correspondence to be made via email and telephone in the first instance. 
 

14.7. Further information on our customer service standards can found on our website at: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/customer-service-standards   
 

14.8. Further information on how the council is operating, including its customer service, please 
visit our website at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/coronavirus-
community-support 

 
15. MONITORING  

 
15.1. We are required to prepare an Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) for the Development 

Plan. The AMR reports on the preparation and implementation of all planning policy 
documents. 

 
15.2. Further information on the our Authority Monitoring Report can be found on our website 

at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/supporting-documents   

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 33

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/planning-policy
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/customer-service-standards
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/coronavirus-community-support
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/coronavirus-community-support
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/supporting-documents
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/supporting-documents


22 
 

 
Section 3 – Development Management 

 
16. WHAT IS DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT? 

 
16.1. Development Management is the name given to the process of regulating the use and 

development of land. It includes the process of deciding planning applications, planning 
enforcement and planning appeals for a range of land-based development proposals, 
such as housing and employment.  

 
16.2. The Development Management Team is responsible for assessing planning applications 

in accordance with the adopted Development Plan, the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) and other material 
considerations, including consultation responses. It also defends decisions at appeal and 
investigates and deals with breaches of planning. 

 

17. TYPES OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

17.1. We receive a variety of planning applications. The most common types that we receive 
include ‘major’, ‘minor’ and ‘other’ applications whose definitions are prescribed by 
government, as set out below:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17.2. There are different kinds of applications, including planning permission, listed building 
consent, prior approvals and notifications, telecommunications developments and lawful 
development certificates.  

 
17.3. For planning applications made to Oxfordshire County Council, for example, on minerals 

and waste matters, please visit: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/find-planning-
application  

 
18. PLANNING APPLICATION PROCESS 

 
18.1. Figure 8 sets out six key steps in the planning application process. It shows when the 

public are consulted, and the steps taken to make a decision on planning applications. 

 

 

Major 
Applications 
Applications for 
developments of 10 or more 
dwellings, or 1,000 sqm or 
more gross non-residential 
floorspace (including 
changes of use of existing 
buildings). 

Minor Applications 
Applications for 
developments of up to 9 
dwellings or up to 999 sqm 
gross non-residential 
floorspace (including 
changes of use of existing 
buildings and changes of use 
of open land). 

 

Other 
Applications 
Applications for the 
extension or alteration to a 
house, ancillary buildings 
in the garden of a house, 
advertisements or listed 
building consent. 

Page 34

file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/find-planning-application
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/find-planning-application


23 
 

Figure 8 – Planning Application Process 

Step 1 – Registration and Allocation 

• The application has been validated, registered and allocated to a case officer. 
 

Step 2 – Consultation 

• A letter is sent to inform neighbouring properties about an application that has 
been received and who the case officer will be. 

• We get in touch with neighbours who share a boundary with the site, the town or 
parish council/parish meeting, any relevant specialist consultees and anybody else 
who might be affected, to ask for material planning comments on the application.  

• Where required, a statutory notice is displayed at the site. 
• We publicise the submitted applicationinformation on our website and comments 

made (in accordance with or retention schedules). 
 

Step 3 – Site Visit 

• We usually visit the application site without an appointment. It is at our discretion 
as to whether we need to view the proposal from neighbouring land or properties. 

 

Step 4 – Officer Assessment 

• This is when the planning merits of the application are assessed by the council, 
once the consultation deadline has expiredresponses have been received. 

 

Step 5 – Potential Negotiation and Re-consultation 

• We will contact the applicant if our assessment in Step 4 above concludes that we 
are unable to support the application as originally submitted or we need some 
further information and clarification. 

• If an application is formally amended to address any planning issues raised, we 
will usually re-consult anyone who responded to the original consultation. 

 

Step 6 – Recommendation and Decision 

• Our constitution enables most application decisions to be made by the Head of 
Planning, under what we term ‘officer delegated powers’.  

• However, large and/or complicated applications are often referred to the Planning 
Committee for a decision, which is made up of our elected councillors.  

• The circumstances under which planning applications are usually referred to 
Planning Committee and the timetable of meetings are listed on our website: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
committees    

 

Page 35

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/constitution-0
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-committees
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-committees


24 
 

19. PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 
 

19.1. The pre-application stage, which is discretionary, encourages applicants to carry out early 
engagement with the local community and us, before submitting a planning application. 
We encourage the early discussion of schemes in the form of a pre–application as it can: 

 
• verify the list of local requirements 
• help you to understand how planning policies and other requirements may affect your 

proposals. 
 

19.2. We will disclose any sent pre-application advice letters between the applicant and the 
council, once a formal planning application is submitted. The pre-application advice letter, 
if sent,se will be made available on our Planning Application Register and  can be 
accessed on our website under each application at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-
and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/planning-application-register 
 

19.3. Further information on the pre-application process, including how to apply for pre – 
application advice can be accessed on our website at: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/application-
advice/pre-application-advice   

 
19.4.  We would also encourage applicants to seek advice from other key stakeholders, such 

as Thames Water, (if relevant) at the pre-application stage too. 
 

20. DEVELOPMENT FORUMS 
 

20.1. Development forums are an optional part of our pre–application process designed for 
those bringing forward major applications that are likely to generate significant public 
interest. They are held at the applicant’s expense to cover our administration costs.  

 
20.2. Development forums ensure that key stakeholders are engaged at the earliest possible 

stage to help shape the development. It particularly allows an applicant to positively 
engage with council officers, local councillors, towns and parishes and local community 
groups during the pre–application and full application process for major development 
proposals. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Aim of the forum: 
- Provide an explanation of proposed development 
- Provide guidance from our officers over national 

and local policies and guidance 
- Consider the funding of infrastructure and 

facilities through S106 and CIL 
- An opportunity for an open discussion by all 

parties to raise issues and to provide feedback to 
feed into amended plans 

- Provide a mechanism for carrying out public 
engagement 

- Record actions and provide application progress 
updates 

Those involved: 
- Ward Councillors 
- Two parish councillors from each relevant 

parish 
- Town or parish clerk 
- Three representatives from the developer 
- Planning Committee 
- Council staff 
- Representatives from statutory 

organisations 
- Representatives from up to two 

recognised local community 
organisations 

Page 36

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/planning-application-register
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/planning-application-register
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/application-advice/pre-application-advice
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/application-advice/pre-application-advice


25 
 

 
20.3. Development forums do not remove the requirement to carry out formal public 

consultation on applications.  
 

21.20. NOTIFICATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

21.1.20.1. The methods in which we publicise and consult have been amended to respond to 
government guidance relating to COVID-19. We advertise when planning applications 
have been submitted to us using the following methods (government advice can change 
this, e.g. COVID-19):  

 
Methods used 

 
Email Alerts If you’re interested in planning applications in your area (postcode), 

you can sign up for email alerts.  
 
Once registered, you will receive an automatic email notification 
informing you of any new planning application, or notifiable changes 
to an application or planning decision made in your area (within 
100m radius of a postcode area) with a link to the proposal via our 
website.  
 

Neighbour 
Notification Letter 

We will send a notification either by letter or email to properties 
adjacent to the boundary of the application site.  We may also notify 
others we consider to be directly affected by the proposal. 
 
In most cases, where new development (e.g. ‘major’ application) 
affects more properties than those that are immediately adjacent to 
the boundary of the site, wider consultation may be carried out. 
 
If the neighbouring property cannot be identified, we will display 
email the applicants a site notice and ask them to print this off and 
to display this in a location that is visible to the general public.  A 
photograph of the displayed site notice is usually taken for the 
record.We will ask for the applicant to email photo evidence of the 
site notice being displayed. In the instance where the applicant is 
unable to print a copy of the site notice, the council will post a copy. 
 
 

Site Notice Depending on the type of application, we will displaypost a notice at 
the application site in a place that is visible to members of the 
public.  
 
For all major applications we will always display one or more site 
notices for at least 21 days. If we’re informed that a site notice has 
been removed, we will replace it, at least once. A photograph of the 
displayed site notice is usually taken for the record. 

In accordance with the relevant legislation, for all major 
applications and for prior approval we will display at least one 
site notice to which the application relates for no less than 21 
days.  In accordance with the relevant legislation, for all major 
applications and for prior approvals we will email the applicant 

Page 37

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/news-and-events/keep-me-informed/email-alerts


26 
 

a copy of the site notice and ask them to print this and display 
this in a location visible to the public. If we are informed that a 
site notice has been removed, we will usually replace this with 
another site notice.  We will not re-erect a site notice more than 
once.  If we are informed that a site notice has been removed, 
we will post a site notice to the applicant and ask them to re-
display this.  We will ask for photographic evidence showing 
the site notice has been displayed.  
 

Press Notice We will publicise all major planning applications in the notices 
section of a local newspaper.  
 
We will publiciseost a press notice for applications that are in 
conservation areas or that affect the character or appearance of a 
listed building.  
 

Weekly List We also compile a weekly list of registered planning applications 
which is published on our website and emailed to councillors and 
other interested individuals, groups and organisations..  
 

 
21.2.20.2. Further details on the methods we use to publicise different types of applications can 

be found within Appendix A.  
 

22.21. WHO WE CONSULT  
 

22.1.21.1. Once we have registered a planning application, we will undertakepublicise it for 
consultation. The period available for people to make comments is normally 21 days. 
How we publicise the application depends on the type of planning application, which is 
set out in relevant government regulations.  
 

22.2.21.2. In most cases, where new development (e.g. ‘major’ application) affects more 
properties than those that are immediately adjacent to the boundary of the site, wider 
consultation may be carried out. We encourage residents and businesses to subscribe to 
our email alerts, which (by post code) will automatically notify you of applications made in 
your street. 

 
22.3.21.3. A list of who is consulted is set out overleaf:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



27 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    Figure 9 – Minimum Neighbourhood Notification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23.22. VIEWING A PLANNING APPLICATION 
 

23.1.22.1. We publish a list of all planning applications received. This is known as the Planning 
Application Register and is on our website at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-
advice/planning-and-building/find-application/planning-application-register   

 

Neighbours:  

Neighbours adjacent to 
the boundary, as shown 
in Figure 9, will be 
notified of planning 
applications. This is 
subject to the type of 
application submitted, as 
shown in Appendix A.  

If neighbouring properties 
cannot be identified, a 
site notice on or near the 
application property will 
be displayed. 

Statutory Bodies: 

Statutory bodies will be consulted on 
planning applications for certain 
types of development in accordance 
with relevant regulations.  

Consultation with these bodies will 
vary depending on the type of 
development proposed and/or the 
location.  

Councillors: 

Ward councillorsmembers will be notifiednotified 
by email when an application relates to their area. 
Other councillors may be notified if they have 

    

Town and Parish Councils/Meetings: 

Town and parish councils will be notified of an 
application within and/or immediately adjacent to 
the town or parish boundary. They are not 
informed of permitted development proposals. 

Members of the Public: 

A public consultation will be 
undertaken for mostall applications. 
The scale of consultation and 
involvement with the community will 
depend upon the nature of each 
individual application.  

Resident Associations  

An association which advises the council of its 
area of interest, will be notified of any application 
within that area.  

Page 39

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/planning-application-register
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/planning-application-register


28 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Via the website at: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/service
s-and-advice/planning-and-
building/find-application  

  
By post:  
Planning, Vale of White Horse 
District Council, 135 Eastern 
Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
  
By email to: 
registration@southandvale.gov.uk   

  
 

 
Comments will only be accepted in 
a written format. 

  
When commenting on an 
application it is important to 
provide:  
• Planning application 
 reference number 
• Address of the site 
• Name of the case officer 

  
Comments will be publicly 
available to view on our website. 
All personal information such as 
telephone numbers, emails and 
signatures will be redacted, 
however addresses and names 
will be shown.  
 
 

We provide guidance on how to 
comment on planning applications 
which can viewed on the website at: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-
and-advice/planning-and-
building/find-application/guidance-
commenting-planning-application   
  
Comments made on a planning 
application are not transferred to a 
subsequent consultation or to a new 
planning application. If a new 
planning policy consultation takes 
place or a new planning application 
is submitted, for example on the 
same application site, you will need 
to resubmit your comments for 
consideration. 
  
When commenting on planning 
applications, it is important to 
comment on the material planning 
matters. These are more likely to 
help shape the outcome of the 
application. To view what is 
considered to be a material planning 
consideration, please visit our 
website at: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-
and-advice/planning-and-
building/find-an-
application/comment-on-a-planning-
application/material-planning-
considerations  
 
In accordance with our Customer 
Service Standards, we will not 
tolerate comments that contain 
abusive, offensive or derogatory 
language, or those related to a 
personal circumstance not directly 
related to the application.  Any 
comments submitted to us in this 
manner will not be published. 
We do not respond individually to 
submitted comments on an 
application. 

@ 

Commenting on Planning Applications  

The council request all 
correspondence to be made via email 
and telephone in the first instance. 
Where this is not possible, letters will 
be accepted, but there will be a delay 
in processing them. Details on how to 
contact the council are highlighted 
above. 

 

Page 40

file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application
mailto:registration@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/guidance-commenting-planning-application
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/guidance-commenting-planning-application
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/guidance-commenting-planning-application
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-application/guidance-commenting-planning-application
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-an-application/comment-on-a-planning-application/material-planning-considerations
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-an-application/comment-on-a-planning-application/material-planning-considerations
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-an-application/comment-on-a-planning-application/material-planning-considerations
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-an-application/comment-on-a-planning-application/material-planning-considerations
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-an-application/comment-on-a-planning-application/material-planning-considerations
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/find-an-application/comment-on-a-planning-application/material-planning-considerations


29 
 

24.23. TIME TO COMMENT ON APPLICATIONS 
 

24.1.23.1. Once a planning application is registered, the application will be publicised online and 
appropriate parties will be notified and invited to make comments. Appropriate parties are 
given 21 days to comment. This period is set out in the regulations. All comments on 
planning applications must be made in writing, either through email or on our website 
within: 

 
• 21 days from the date of our notification letter, or 
• 21 days from the date of a press notice or site notice appearing 

 
24.2.23.2. Please note that comments submitted after this 21-day publicity period has expired 

may not be considered, as a decision may have already been determined on the planning 
application. 

 
24.3.23.3. Due to the volume of correspondence we receive it is not possible to respond to or 

discuss individual comments that we receive on planning applications, however a 
summary of these and the officers’ responses are provided in the officer report.  

 
25.24. DECISIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
25.1.24.1. Decisions on planning applications will be determined in accordance with the 

decision-making processes set out in the council’s constitution. 
 

25.2.24.2. The constitution sets out how we, the council, operates, how decisions are made and 
the procedures which are followed to ensure that they are efficient, transparent and 
accountable. 

 
25.3.24.3. Further information on our constitution can be accessed online at: 

www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/constitution-0   
 

Planning Committee 
 
25.4.24.4. The Planning Committee, which comprises elected councilors, has a duty to decide 

planning and other development related applications. However, currently around 90 
percent of applications are determined under the scheme of delegation to the Head of 
Planning. The criteria for deciding which applications should be considered by Planning 
Committee are available on our website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-
advice/planning-and-building/planning-committees     

 
25.5.24.5. If the application on which you have commented is to be heard by the Planning 

Committee, we will write to you and invite you to speak or submit a statement for the 
meeting. Each speaker or group of speakers can speak for up to three minutes on each 
application site. Planning Committee arrangements can change, so please refer to our 
website for the latest position. 

 
25.6.24.6. You are welcome to view the agenda papers, which are published five working days 

before the meeting on our website, and attend any planning committee, whether it is run 
virtually or at a location. If you wish to speak or submit a statement at the meeting, please 
register with Democratic Services on 01235 422520 or email 
democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk  

Page 41

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/constitution-0
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-committees
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-committees
mailto:democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk


30 
 

 
26.25. SECTION 106 (PLANNING OBLIGATIONS) 

 
26.1.25.1. Section 106 (S106) is a legal agreement between the council and developer(s) / 

landowner(s) and is used alongside Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to secure 
infrastructure needed to support development. 

 
26.2.25.2. S106 will be used to mitigate the direct impacts of a proposed development and will 

be the primary mechanism for infrastructure provision on strategic development sites that 
do not contribute through CIL. S106 is also the primary mechanism for securing 
Affordable Housing on all sites with a net gain of 10 or more dwellings. 

26.3.25.3. We do not consult on Section 106 agreements. However, we seek confirmation from 
towns and parishes on community facilities that the new development may impact upon 
or that require improvement as a result of the development. Once we have an agreement 
and the development has commenced, we will notify town and parish councils or parish 
meetings of the sums available for identified community facilities and provide an update 
to them on a six-monthly basis. 
 

26.4.25.4. We are committed to working with towns and parishes to continue to identify local 
priorities and to deliver local projects.  A list of all Section 106 contributions that are 
secured by the council are available on our website at: 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/section106  

 
27.26. PLANNING APPEALS  

27.1.26.1. If a planning application is refused, the applicant can either re-apply for planning 
permission with an alternative scheme, or they can appeal against the decision. The right 
to appeal is only available for the applicant as set out in regulations. Appeals are made to 
the Planning Inspectorate (PINS). Applying for an appeal is in the hands of the applicant 
and/or appellant and is not within the remit of the council. It is possible to appeal against 
any planning condition imposed on a planning permission.  

 
27.2.26.2. Only the person who applied for planning permission, or was served with an 

enforcement notice, has a legal right to appeal (known as the appellant). There is no right 
of appeal for interested people or organisations (known as third parties).  

 
27.3.26.3. If an appeal is made, we will notify the interested parties of the appeal and provide 

information on how and when to respond to PINS. 
 

27.4.26.4. Appeals can be viewed on our Planning Appeals Register, available on the council’s 
website at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-
building/planning-appeals/planning-appeals-register    

 
27.5.26.5. This online register is ‘live’ and includes current and recent appeals and sets out 

details of what stage the appeal is at and the decision, if it has been made. 
 

27.6.26.6. Alternatively, you can view current appeals on the Planning Inspectorate’s Appeals 
Casework Portal, available online at: www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-
inspectorate   
 

28.27. PLANNING ENFORCEMENT 

Page 42

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/section106
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-appeals/planning-appeals-register
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-appeals/planning-appeals-register
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate


31 
 

 
28.1.27.1. When a person carries out development without planning permission, the council 

considers what action to take. Although weThere is a duty on us to investigate 
allegations, however the decision on whether to take formal action is discretionary.  

 
28.2.27.2. If we find a breach of planning control has occurred, we can consider enforcement 

action. However, before such action is taken, we will give the person an opportunity to put 
things right. This could involve us asking for a new retrospective planning application. 

 
28.3.27.3. If no application is made and the breach is deemed to be harmful in planning terms, 

then formal action will be considered. We have several tools we can use, including 
enforcement notices and high court injunctions, however, as most breaches of planning 
control are not criminal matters, formal action is always the last resort. 

 
28.4.27.4. Before reporting a suspected breach of planning control, please take a look at 

the our Enforcement Statement, available at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-
advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement    

 
28.5.27.5. If you do suspect a breach of planning control: 

 

1. Please complete the Reporting Form., available at:. 
https://eform.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ebase/ufsmain?formid=ENFORCEMENT_COM
PLAINT&SOVA_TAG=VALE&ebd=0&ebz=1_1473948604648   

2. For further information on planning enforcement please contact the Customer 
Service Team by telephone 01235 422600 or email the Enforcement Team 
directly at: planning.enforcement@southandvale.gov.uk    

3. Further details on our approach to addressing planning enforcement matters is 
available on our website at: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-
advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 43

file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement
https://eform.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ebase/ufsmain?formid=ENFORCEMENT_COMPLAINT&SOVA_TAG=VALE&ebd=0&ebz=1_1473948604648
mailto:planning.enforcement@southandvale.gov.uk
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement
file://SAVVPSPFIL03/Services/Planning/Vale/Dev%20Policy%20FileTree.(USE.from%20Jan'11)/LDF/Local%20Plan%202041/007.%20SCI/07.%20Consultation%20version%20SCI/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement


32 
 

GLOSSARY  
 
Term Definition 

 
Area Action Plan 
(AAP) 

A type of DPD that can be used to guide the development of a 
specific site or location, for example, a town centre, or other 
places where significant change is planned. 
 

Adoption Formal approval by the council of a DPD or SPD whereupon it 
achieves its full weight in making planning decisions. Sometimes 
referred to as ‘made’. 
 

Authority Monitoring 
Report (AMR) 

A report produced at least annually assessing: 
• progress with the preparation of the local plan and other 
planning policy documents against the timetable published in the 
Local Development Scheme, and 
• the extent to which adopted plan policies are being 
successfully implemented. 
 

Breach of Planning 
Control 

A breach of planning control is defined in Section 17A of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as:  
• the carrying out of development without the required planning 
permission; or 
• failing to comply with any condition or limitation subject to 
which planning permission has been granted. 
 

Charging Schedule A document produced by the council. As the charging authority, 
the document sets out rates to which the amount of Community 
Infrastructure Levy is chargeable in respect of development 
within the area to be determined. 
 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) 
 

A levy (tax) that councils can choose to charge on new 
developments in their area. The money can be used to support 
development by funding infrastructure. 

Community Right to 
Build Order  

A type of neighbourhood development order allowing 
communities to decide for themselves what is built. This might 
include, for example, new community facilities and affordable 
housing. 
 

Constitution Vale of White Horse District Council’s Constitution sets out how 
the council operates, how decisions are made and the 
procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, 
transparent and accountable to local people. 
 

Consultation A dynamic process of dialogue by which people individuals and 
organisations are asked their views about an issue, for example 
- planning decisions, including the Local Plan, with the objective 
of influencinggiving everyone the opportunity to comment on 
decisions, policies or programmes of action. 

Consultation 
Statement/Report 

A document providing a summary of consultation responses and 
the key issues received on public consultation of planning policy 
documents. This document also sets out the changes made to a 
planning policy document following responses to a consultation. 

Page 44



33 
 

Term Definition 
 

Development Forum A Development Forum ensures that key stakeholders are 
engaged at the earliest possible stage to help shape a 
development. It particularly allows an applicant to positively 
engage with council officers, local councillors, towns and 
parishes and local community groups. 
 

Development 
Management (DM) 

The Development Management Team is responsible for 
assessing planning applications in accordance with the adopted 
development plan, the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) and 
any other material considerations, including consultation 
responses.  
 

Development Plan This includes adopted Local Plans, Neighbourhood Plans and 
the Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan. It is defined in 
section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
Planning applications have to be decided in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 
 

Development Plan 
Documents (DPDs) 

Development Plan Documents set planning policies in council 
areas. All DPDs are subject to public consultation and 
independent examination. 
 

Duty to Co-operate 
(DtC) 

Created in the Localism Act 2011 and amends the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. It places a legal duty on 
councils, county councils in England and public bodies to 
engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis to 
maximise the effectiveness of Local and Marine Plan preparation 
in the context of strategic cross-boundary matters. 
 

Full Planning 
Permission 
 

The ‘Application for Planning Permission’ form should be used 
for making a detailed planning application for development under 
Section 62 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended), excluding householder developments. It should 
include all details of the application, such as transport, design 
and landscaping.  
 

General Permitted 
Development Order 
2015 

This Order sets out classes of development for which a grant of 
planning permission is automatically given, provided that no 
restrictive condition is attached or that the development is 
exempt from the permitted development rights. 
 

Lawful Development 
Certificate  

A Lawful Development Certificate shows that the existing use of 
a building is lawful for planning purposes or that a proposal does 
not require planning permission.  
 

Listed Building  Buildings and structures which are listed by the Department for 
Digital, Culture, Media and Sport as being of special 
architectural and historic interest and whose protection and 
maintenance are the subject of special legislation. Listed 
building consent is required before any works are carried out on 

Page 45



34 
 

Term Definition 
 
a listed building. 
 

Local Development 
Order (LDO) 

An Order made by the council (under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990) that grants planning permission for a specific 
development proposal or classes of development. 
 

Local Development 
Scheme (LDS) 

This sets out the timetable and work programme for the 
preparation of the Local Plan and other Development Plan 
Documents. 
 

Local Plan The plan for the local area that sets out the long–term spatial 
vision and development framework for the district, as well as and 
strategic policies and proposals to deliver that vision. This 
replaces the Local Development Framework. 
 

Local Plan 2031 Part 
1 (LPP1) 

This document contains the long-term spatial vision and 
strategic policies that guide growth in the district. 
 

Local Plan 2031 Part 
2 (LPP2) 

This document contains detailed development management 
policies and additional site allocations that guide growth in the 
district. 
 

Major Applications Applications for developments of 10 or more dwellings, or 1,000 
sq m or more gross non-residential floorspace (including 
changes of use of existing buildings). 
 

Material Planning 
Consideration 

This is a matter that should be taken into account in deciding a 
planning application or on an appeal against a planning decision. 
This can include issues such as overlooking/loss of privacy, 
parking, noise, effect on a listed building or conservation area, or 
the effect on nature conservation etc. 
 

Minor Application Applications for developments of up to 9 dwellings or up to 999 
sq m gross non-residential floorspace (including changes of use 
of existing buildings), changes of use of open land and 
telecommunications. 
 

National Planning 
Policy Framework 
(NPPF) 

This sets out the government’s planning policies for England and 
how these are expected to be applied at a local level. The NPPF 
is a material consideration when making decisions on planning 
applications or appeals. 
 

National Planning 
Practice Guidance 
(NPPG) 

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) is a planning 
practice online resource covering a range of planning issues. 

Neighbourhood 
Development Order 

A Neighbourhood Development Order (NDO) can be used to 
permit different types of development (in full or outline) without 
the need for planning permission. 
 

Neighbourhood 
Development Plans 

A plan prepared by a town or parish or a neighbourhood forum 
for a particular neighbourhood area (made under the Planning 

Page 46



35 
 

Term Definition 
 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 
 

Outline Planning 
Permission 

The Application for Outline Planning Permission is generally 
used to find out, at an early stage, whether or not a proposal is 
likely to be approved by the planning authority. This type of 
planning application allows fewer details about the proposal to 
be submitted. Further details are often provided through 
Reserved Matters Applications.  
 

Oxfordshire Growth 
Board 

The Growth Board is a joint committee of the six councils of 
Oxfordshire, together with key strategic partners. It has been set 
up to facilitate and enable joint working on economic 
development, strategic planning and growth.  
 

Oxfordshire Housing 
and Growth Deal 

The Oxfordshire Growth Board secured £215m of government 
investment for new homes and infrastructure across Oxfordshire. 
This was secured through the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth 
Deal. In exchange for the investment within Oxfordshire, the six 
Local Authorities will plan to deliver 100,000 new homes across 
Oxfordshire between 2011 and 2031.  
 

Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 

The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 is a strategic planning document that 
seeks to provide a joined-up approach to planning across the 
county. It was agreed by all the councils within Oxfordshire to 
develop this plan as part of the Housing and Growth Deal.  
 

Planning Appeals After a decision on a planning application has been made by a 
local council, the applicant can appeal against the decision 
made. The Planning Inspectorate will organise for an 
independent Inspector to review the decision made and will 
make a decision.  
 

Planning 
Enforcement 

The Planning Enforcement Team can investigate when a person 
carries out development without the benefit of having planning 
permission. The team investigate what action is appropriate to 
take.  
 

Planning 
Inspectorate (PINS) 

The Planning Inspectorate (PINS) is an executive agency 
sponsored by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government. PINS deal with planning appeals, national 
infrastructure planning applications, examinations of Local Plans 
and other planning-related and specialist casework. 
 

Planning Permission Formal permission from a Local Planning Authority for the 
erection or alteration of buildings or similar development.  
 

Planning Policy The Planning Policy Team is responsible for producing the 
planning documents that make up the Development Plan. 
 

Pre-Application Pre–application is an informal process, independent of the 
formal planning application process, that provides an indication 
as to whether a proposal is likely to be considered acceptable or 

Page 47



36 
 

Term Definition 
 
not. The advice given does not constitute a formal response or 
decision of the council, but is an informal opinion by a Planning 
Officer. 
 

Prior Approval  Prior Approval means that a developer has to seek approval 
from the council that specified elements of the development are 
acceptable before work can proceed. The matters for prior 
approval will vary depending on the type of development. These 
are set out in full in the relevant parts in Schedule 2 of the 
General Permitted Development Order. 
 

Referendum A general vote by the electorate on a single political question 
which has been referred to them for a direct decision. For a 
neighbourhood plan referendum, the following question will be 
asked: Do you want [insert name of local planning authority] to 
use the Neighbourhood Plan for [insert name of neighbourhood 
area] to help it decide planning applications in the 
neighbourhood area? 
 

Reserved Matters Reserved matters are those aspects of a proposed development 
where an applicant can choose not to submit details with an 
outline planning application, (i.e. they can be ‘reserved’ for later 
determination). 
 

Safeguarding Safeguarding in planning matters is a mechanism that is 
employed to ensure land which has been identified for 
development in the future is protected from conflicting 
development.  
 

Section 106 A legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act. They are legal agreements between the council 
and a developer, or undertakings offered unilaterally by a 
developer, ensuring that certain works related to a development 
are undertaken. 
 

Stakeholders Stakeholders can affect or be affected by the council’s actions, 
objectives and policies. The council will consult with key 
stakeholders at different stages of planning.  
 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement (SCI) 

The SCI sets out standards to be achieved by the council in 
relation to involving the community in the preparation, alteration 
and continuing review of all Development Plan Documents 
(DPDs) and in determining planning applications for 
development. 
 

Statutory Consultees Statutory consultees are those organisations and bodies, 
defined by statute, that local planning authorities are legally 
required to consult before reaching a decision on relevant 
planning applications.  
 

Strategic 
Environmental 

An assessment of the environmental effects of policies, plans 
and programmes, required by European legislation, which will be 

Page 48



37 
 

Term Definition 
 

Assessment (SEA) part of the public consultation on the policies. 
 

Supplementary 
Planning Document 
(SPD) 

A planning policy document that adds further detail to the 
policies in the Local Plan. They can be used to provide further 
guidance for development on specific sites, or on particular 
issues, such as design. Supplementary Planning Documents are 
capable of being a material consideration in planning decisions, 
but are not part of the Development Plan.  
 

Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) 

The process of assessing the economic, social and environment 
effects of a proposed plan. This process implements the 
requirements of the SEA Directive. It is required to be 
undertaken for all DPDs. 
 

Telecommunications 
Development 

In relation to telecommunications installation, there are three 
types of application/notification. These are; applications for 
notification of prior approval, applications for full planning 
permission and licence notifications.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



38 
 

APPENDIX A: 

Publicity of Planning Applications and Consultation with Residents  

(Currently subject to change due to local Covid-19 restrictions). 

The table below sets out the method of public notification we are required to carry out for 
different types of applications.   

The requirements are based on The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, The Town and Country Planning 
(Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 2017, The Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2004, The Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development (England) Order 2015.  

Type of Development Publicity 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) application accompanied by 
an environmental statement  
 

• Site notice in at least 1 place on or near the 
land to which the application relates for not 
less than 21 days AND  

• By publication of the notice in a newspaper 
circulating in the locality in which` the land to 
which the application relates is situated  

 
Does not accord with the 
provisions of the development plan 
in force in the area in which the 
land to which the application 
relates is situated  
 
(Departure from the Development 
Plan) 
 

• Site notice in at least 1 place on or near the 
land to which the application relates for not 
less than 21 days AND  

• By publication of the notice in a newspaper 
circulating in the locality in which the land to 
which the application relates is situated  

 

Would affect a right of way to which 
Part 3 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 applies  
 

• Site notice in at least 1 place on or near the 
land to which the application relates for not 
less than 21 days AND  

• By publication of the notice in a newspaper 
circulating in the locality in which the land to 
which the application relates is situated  

 
Major application  
 

• Site notice in at least 1 place on or near the 
land to which the application relates for not 
less than 21 days OR 

• By writing a letter to any adjoining owner or 
occupier AND  

• By publication of the notice in a newspaper 
circulating in the locality in which the land to 
which the application relates is situated  
 

Other and Minor applications  • Site notice in at least 1 place on or near the 
land to which the application relates for not 
less than 21 days OR 

• By writing a letter to any adjoining owner or 
occupier 

 

Page 50



39 
 

 

 

Applications affecting the setting of 
listed buildings  
 

• publish in a local newspaper circulating in 
the locality in which the land is situated AND 

• for not less than 7 days display on or near 
the land, a notice indicating the nature of the 
development in question and naming a place 
within the locality where a copy of the 
application, and of all plans and other 
documents submitted with it, will be open to 
inspection by the public at all reasonable 
hours during the period of 21 days beginning 
with the date of publication of the notice 

Applications affecting the character 
and appearance of a conservation 
area 

• Published in a local newspaper circulating in 
the locality in which the land is situated AND 

• For not less than 7 days display on or near 
the land, a notice indicating the nature of the 
development in question and naming a place 
within the locality where a copy of the 
application, and of all plans and other 
documents submitted with it, will be open to 
inspection by the public at all reasonable 
hours during the period of 21 days beginning 
with the date of publication of the notice 

Planning applications within 10 
metres of relevant railway land  

• Serving notice (by letter) on any 
infrastructure manager of relevant railway 
land  
 

Permissions in Principle  • Site notice in at least one place on or near 
the land to which the application relates for 
not less than 14 days 
 

Permissions in Principle – 
Technical Details  

• Site notice in at least one place on or near 
the land to which the application relates for 
not less than 14 days OR 

• Site notice in at least one place on or near 
the land to which the application relates for 
not less than 21 days if the application site is 
within the setting of a listed building or 
conservation area  

 
Prior Notification  
(Change of use - office to 
residential and light industrial to 
residential) 

• Site notice in at least one place on or near 
the land to which the application relates for 
not less than 21 days OR 

• By writing a letter to any adjoining owner or 
occupier 
 
 

Prior Notification  
 
(Large extensions) 

• By writing a letter to each adjoining owner / 
occupier (specifying the date, not less than 
21 days by which representations are to be 
made to the Local Planning Authority  

Page 51



40 
 

In addition to notifying residents we also consult with the relevant statutory and technical 
consultees and the town and parish council.   

The following types of application do not have any requirements set out through the Acts 
requiring consultation with residents or town and parish councils.  Therefore, the Local 
Planning Authority has discretion as to informing interested parties.   

Agricultural Notification  • The LPA has a period of 28 days from the receipt of 
the application to determine it 

• The LPA have discretion over consulting parish 
councils and other groups about the proposal  
 

Discharge of Conditions  • The LPA will undertake consultation with the 
relevant technical consultee where necessary  
 

Minor Amendment  • As an application to make a non-material 
amendment is not an application for planning 
permission, the LPA has discretion as to whether 
they inform interested parties or seek their views  
 

 

 

 

 

Type of Development Publicity 

Page 52



Page 53



1 

Summary of Consultation Responses – Draft Revised Statement of Community Involvement 

Consultation 27 February to 9 April 2020 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

Response 1 Feels that Vale doesn’t have a good record on 
consultations issues. Disagreed with the 5 District 
Council Partnership Contract and felt that his response 
was ignored.  

Noted. We receive a high volume of 
correspondence and therefore we are unable 
to respond to individual comments.  

Mr Scharf Advocated for climate change and biodiversity loss to 
be key considerations likely to be given weight - this 
change would be for the benefit of both the consultees 
and prospective applicants/developers. 

Would like committees to run in a way so that nothing 
should be said at committee that has not already been 
said in writing. 

The Government’s National Planning Policy 
Framework encourages Councils to take a 
proactive approach to mitigating and adapting 
to Climate Change (NPPF, paragraph 149).  
Policies are already included in the current 
adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 
Parts 1 and 2 to mitigate the impact of climate 
change and the Council will be reviewing this 
as we prepare a new Local Plan 2041 for the 
Vale of White Horse. The Council encourages 
all residents who are concerned about these 
matters to respond to consultations on these 
documents. 

The Council’s constitution determines how 
planning committees are run. 

Response 3 No point in any public consultation when decisions are 
made outside the democratic process. 

The Council read all responses and give them 
careful consideration.  

Appendix 2

P
age 54



2 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

Response 4 SCI process is confusing to people with no planning 
knowledge. Suggests a short 2 min video to explain 
how people can get involved. 

The SCI is a statutory document that sets out 
how we will engage with the public on Planning 
Policy documents and on Planning 
Applications. There is a glossary at the end of 
the document which explains the planning 
terminology used. The council are happy to 
help answer any questions and can be 
contacted by telephone on 01235 422600 or 
email planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 
We will certainly consider the suggested 
method of a video for future consultations.  

  

Response 5 Wants residents’ opinions to be heard, respected and 
not ignored. They would like Planners to undertake a 
mandatory online poll of residents for large schemes. 
Feels that the method of informing the public of 
planning applications by laminated notices is outdated 
and urges for the use of Facebook and internet 
platforms. 

The Council has to consider a number of 
factors in progressing with policy documents 
and determining applications. Consultation is a 
one of the key factors: the Council reads all 
responses to consultations and gives them 
careful consideration.  
 
It is a legal requirement that a site notice is 
erected, and thus we will continue to seek to 
erect site notices where we are statutorily 
required to do so. This is a process used by 
other Authorities as standard practice. 
 
The Council will consider approaches to 
engage as best as it can with its communities, 
including the use of social media, where 
considered appropriate and in accordance with 
statutory guidance.  

  

P
age 55

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


3 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

Response 6 Thinks that the SCI is too long and doesn’t cover what 
they perceive to be of public interest. This is what they 
would prefer to know: 
1: How to access applications 
2: How to respond to applications 
3: In simplistic terms, what are grounds for objection, 
and conversely what would not be deemed appropriate 
under planning law.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a framework, residents want to know: 
1: What applications are VWHDC vs OCC as planning 
authority. 
2: What happens when large applications opposed by 
residents and regulatory bodies get approved. Who 
appeals and why does VWHDC allows large developers 
to take advantage of them with regards to planning 
conditions, etc. 
3: Why large developments (as part of or prior to the 
local plan) are given approval without supporting 
infrastructure being in place. Thinks that VWHDC needs 
social housing instead of affordable housing. 

The Council considers that the SCI 
appropriately covers how to access 
applications, how to respond to applications 
and the grounds for objections. The Council’s 
website also provides further detail on this. If 
you still have further questions, you may wish 
to contact our Customer Services Team by 
telephone (01235 422600) or via email - 
planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
We acknowledge these points and we will 
propose making a modification to the SCI to 
provide clarity regarding applications for the 
district and county. Section 27 of the SCI sets 
out who can appeal a decision on a planning 
application and provides links to further 
information. We work with developers and 
communities throughout the planning process 
to ensure infrastructure is appropriately 
implemented. We will consider your social 
housing point whilst developing our new Local 
Plan 2041.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Add further 
sections on what 
applications are 
covered by the 
district and which 
are covered by 
the county. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agreed – 
suggested 
change taken 
forward and 
added in 12.4 
– 12.6. 

Mr Smith Wants the document to be proof-read because of 
grammar mistakes and inconsistencies. Makes the 
point that if VWHDC uses results from previous 
consultations, that they could be out of date and people 

The document is in draft form and will be 
reviewed prior to finalising.  The Council will 
consider the consistency suggestions made. 
 

Further 
proofreading. 
 
 

Agreed. 
 
 
 

P
age 56

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


4 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

may have changed their opinion since. Wants there to 
be a fixed charge on printed copies of documents, with 
more explanation regarding the pricing. Wants more 
opportunities to appeal planning applications. Confused 
about how Planning Enforcement operates. 

The Council encourages customers to get in 
contact about the pricing of printed documents 
and provides a standard fee reflecting the size 
of the document.  
 
We are unable to change the planning appeal 
process as this is set out by national legislation 
and policy. We will propose expanding the 
Planning Enforcement section to provide 
further clarity.  
  

 
 
 
 
 
Consider 
expanding the 
Planning 
Enforcement 
section to provide 
further clarity.  

 
 
 
 
 
Suggested 
change taken 
forward -
Planning 
Enforcement 
Section 
presented in 
a different 
format for 
clarity 
regarding the 
processes. 

Samuel 
Pocock 

No comment. Noted.   

Mr Hatzis No comment. Noted.   
Response 10 Thinks that public opinion is overruled and ignored in 

this SCI exercise. Feels that the public is ignored 
regarding development of areas and wants there to be 
a committee if an application attracts more than two 
objections. 

We receive a high volume of correspondence 
and are unable to respond to individual 
comments that we receive during a particular 
consultation. The comments we receive 
regarding planning policy documents and on 
planning applications will be made publicly 
available online at the earliest opportunity, 
once the consultation has finished. 
 

  

P
age 57



5 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

The Council’s constitution sets out the process 
for planning committee, rather than the SCI. 
 

Mr Lynch Feels that the document is confusing and contains 
planning jargon. "Have in place effective mechanisms 
for documenting views and clear feedback mechanisms 
to demonstrate how the views of the community have 
influenced and benefited the plan.’’  
 
In the section ‘Recognising the needs of different 
groups’ - there should be a forum for local planning, 
architectural and development groups that regularly use 
the service. 
 
Argues that VWHDC needs to be more proactive and 
less passive in collecting the views of local 
communities.  
 
Wants there to be a well-designed focus group to go 
into the communities. 
 
Thinks that the Local Plan puts more emphasis on 
housing growth without considering its supporting 
services. 
 
Feels the document is too long and isn’t inventive.  

At the end of the SCI document the Glossary 
section explains all planning terminology that 
has been used. 
 
Regarding feedback, please see the SCI’s 
‘Providing feedback and sharing information’ 
section. For example, ‘we will keep you 
informed of progress and explain decisions 
and/or outcomes on planning policy documents 
through your preferred channel of 
communication’. 
 
The Council provides various options of ways 
in which the public can get involved in 
consultations, particularly in Section 9. 
 
Regarding planning for new housing, the 
Government has set out a clear intention within 
their policies, including the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF, see paragraph 59), 
to ‘significantly boost the supply of homes’. 
This is taken forward by the Council at the 
local level through the Adopted Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2031.   
 
The SCI is a statutory document which sets out 
how we engage with local communities (local 

  

P
age 58



6 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

residents, businesses, organisations and 
statutory consultees). We have, as concisely 
as possible, provided all the information 
needed and have used diagrams and other 
graphical design to make this user-friendly.  

Response 13a Wants the document to be proofread for graphical 
issues that are not letting them read the content. Wants 
multiple pages to be reissued. 

The document is in draft form and will be 
reviewed prior to finalising.   

Proofreading Agreed 

Response 14 Wants the Green Belt to be expanded and improved. 
Wants more green spaces which are easily accessible.  
 
Finds the SCI format off-putting, doubts that many 
people read the document. They didn’t finish reading it 
themselves. Prefers a printed survey to be sent through 
the post. 

The Green Belt is dealt with via Planning 
Policy, rather than the SCI. The SCI deals with 
how the LPA will engage with the community. 
 
The SCI is split into 3 concise parts which can 
be read separately. We will consider the format 
of the document when finalising the SCI.  Hard 
copies of the survey can be requested by 
contacting our community engagement team. It 
would be too costly to print a survey for every 
household within the district - we aim to 
advertise consultations through online methods 
and through Town and Parish Councils.  

  

Mrs Moorley Proposes that community involvement needs to include 
vulnerable individuals (e.g. elderly and the young). 
Concerned that there is too much housing 
development, and this overwhelms the community, 
especially the elderly.  
 
Concerned that the elderly cannot partake, because of 
issues with being immobile. Moreover, they feel that if 
they have written by post they are ignored because 

In the SCI Part 1 – in the section ‘recognising 
the need of different groups’ we have stated 
that we endeavour to engage with groups in 
our community that may find us less accessible 
(e.g. disability groups and ethnic groups – 
these are sometimes referred to as ‘hard to 
reach’ groups) or those likely to be particularly 
affected by a proposal. We encourage 
involvement from groups that have traditionally 

  

P
age 59



7 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

they don’t receive feedback. Argues that they want 
individuals to be heard instead of groups, if wanting to 
consult in the most effective way. 
 
Confused and upset about how bus stops are planned.  
Argues that there aren’t any plans for how to 
accommodate the elderly. Want there to be safer 
crossings made.  
 
The format of the document is clear and well explained.  
Thinks that the document might be too long for some 
people. 

not been involved in the planning process (for 
example, holding targeted events with younger 
people). All consultation responses, whether 
electronic or postal, are treated with the same 
consideration. 
 
Useful information regarding new bus stops 
can be found here: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads
-and-transport/street-maintenance-z/bus-stops-
and-shelters - bus stops are the responsibility 
of Oxfordshire County Council. 
 

Response 16 The Vale website is difficult to use for the elderly and 
believes that because of this they should have been 
given more time to comment on issues. Feels that even 
though there is good involvement, their opinion on a 
matter was ignored in the consultation for the drafted 
Local Plan and finds it a waste of time. 
 
Thinks that the SCI doesn’t address conflict of interest 
because they believe that the Vale had a financial 
interest in a previous matter. Wants the results of 
consultations to be complied with.  

We receive a high volume of correspondence 
and are unable to respond to individual 
comments that we receive during a particular 
consultation. Comment summaries and officer 
responses to all comments on the SCI will be 
published alongside the finalised document. 
 
The SCI sets out how the Local Planning 
Authority will engage with the community. The 
Council reads all responses to consultations 
and gives them careful consideration. 
 

  

Oxfordshire 
Transport & 
Access Group 

For major applications it would be helpful if there were a 
separate category for applications for either more than 
49 homes or more than 4,999 square metres of gross 
floor area. Confused what is meant by floor area.  

The definition of major applications is in 
accordance with the government definition set 
out in the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 

‘Floor area’ 
should be 
updated to 
floorspace in 
accordance with 

Agree 
modification 
– to use up to 
date NPPF 
definition. 

P
age 60

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/street-maintenance-z/bus-stops-and-shelters
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/street-maintenance-z/bus-stops-and-shelters
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/street-maintenance-z/bus-stops-and-shelters


8 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

A summary of the decision-making body / personnel for 
each of the various types of Planning Policy Documents 
would be helpful.  
 
A few general principles should be included. For 
example: 

• A proportion of homes must be "affordable", with 
an indication of the intended proportion; 

• A proportion of homes must be accessible to 
disabled people, with an indication of the 
proportion (this should be higher than the 
national average). 

• Highway improvements must improve 
accessibility; 

• Community buildings provided must be 
accessible. 
 

Floor area relates to the internal floorspace 
proposed by an application. We will propose a 
modification of the SCI to clarify this.  
 
The Council is the decision-making body for all 
planning policy documents.  
 
National and Local Policy set out the details 
and principles for planning policy. The SCI sets 
out how we will engage with the community 
and is therefore not a document that sets out 
policy.   

NPPF definition 
of major sites. 

Suggested 
change taken 
forward. 

Highways 
England 

Have reviewed the consultation and have no 
comments. 
 

Noted.    

Historic 
England 

We support the general aims and approach to the draft 
Statement of Community Involvement. We 
welcome the acknowledgement of Historic England as 
a specific consultation body with respect to 
local plans at paragraph 10.5 and neighbourhood plans 
at 10.6, as well as reference to statutory consultees 
regarding planning applications at paragraph 22.2. 
 

Noted and support welcomed.   

Uffington 
Parish Council 

Clarify role and engagement of individuals as 
stakeholders vs organised bodies.  

Section 22 of the SCI sets out who we will 
engage and consult with regarding planning 

  

P
age 61



9 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

 
Their experience of creating a neighbourhood plan and 
its relationship to the Local Plan was good. 
 
In the application process additional information from 
the applicant and/or advice given during Step 5 has not 
been made public. In order to ensure transparency, this 
should be made public and the parish council should be 
given the opportunity to comment. 
 

policy documents and on planning 
applications, including statutory bodies and 
members of the public. All comments 
submitted will be given consideration.  
 
Step 5 in Figure 9 states that “if an application 
is formally amended to address any planning 
issues raised, we will usually re-consult 
anyone who responded to the original 
consultation”. Therefore, the usual process 
would enable further comments to be 
submitted.  

Harcourt Hill 
Campus 

Object to the current draft of the Statement of 
Community Involvement on the basis it does not pay 
sufficient attention to the University, which is a key part 
of its local community. In response, the SCI should be 
amended to specifically recognise Higher Education 
providers. We have set out the required changes below 
which would allow the University to change its position 
and support the SCI. Please note that text in red 
strikethrough shows where we propose a deletion and 
blue text shows a proposed insertion. 
 
Paragraph 9.5: Make the following changes to the 
penultimate bullet point: Target work with community 
groups, voluntary organisations, and businesses and 
education providers 
 
Paragraph 10.2: make the following changes: 

We acknowledge these points and are content 
to take them into account / make the 
suggested changes.  

Add ‘and 
education 
providers’ to 9.5 
and ‘schools, and 
colleges and 
higher education 
providers; and 
‘hard to reach’ 
groups’ to 10.2. 

Agree 
modification 
– suggested 
change taken 
forward. 

P
age 62



10 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

We continuously look to understand who we need to 
talk to in the local community to ensure that we consult 
in the most effective way. The local community 
includes, but is not limited to, the following: town and 
parish councils and meetings; local residents; local 
interest groups; local businesses; local community 
groups and organisations; faith groups; schools, and 
colleges and higher education providers; and ‘hard to 
reach’ groups. 
 

Radley Parish 
Council 

Summary of comments 
i. Paras 11.13 – 11.23 of draft statement. 
Neighbourhood Development Plans. In exercising the 
‘duty to support’, VWHDC should contribute 
constructively to the delivery of parish council’s 
planning objectives and not focus solely on process. 
ii. Paras 11.28 – 11.31. CIL. There is an urgent need for 
mechanisms to be established to allow for tripartite 
discussion between district, county and parish about 
priorities for CIL expenditure. 
iii. Paras 20.1 – 20.3. Development Forums should be 
mandatory. 
iv. Para 22. Consultation on planning applications. 
Parish councils should be consulted on ‘discharge of 
conditions’ applications. 
v. Paras 25.4 – 25.6. Planning Committee involvement 
in decisions on planning applications: We have 
concerns that the role of the planning committee is 
being eroded. We would like to see a published 
protocol clarifying the basis on which applications are 

Neighbourhood planning provides a powerful 
set of tools for local people to plan for the 
types of development to meet their 
community’s needs, where the ambition of the 
neighbourhood is aligned with the strategic 
needs and priorities of the wider local area. We 
provide advice and guidance throughout the 
process and the Council’s Neighbourhood 
Planning Team can assist in delivering a 
neighbourhood plan which is in general 
conformity with the strategic policies of the 
adopted development plan and addresses the 
Parish Council’s planning objectives. 
 
The SCI sets out how the Council will engage 
with the local community on planning 
documents and planning applications. For 
issues with specific Planning Policy areas, 
comments would need to be made when these 
documents are consulted upon.  

  P
age 63



11 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

referred to the committee for decision. We also have 
concerns about how pre-commencement conditions are 
handled. 
vi. Paras 26.1 – 26.4. Section 106/planning obligations. 
Three-way meetings involving the district, county and 
parish should be incorporated as a recognised part of 
the pre-application process for strategic site 
development. 

 
It would not be appropriate to have 
development forums on all applications and 
could unnecessarily delay development 
coming forward. It is therefore not appropriate 
to make development forums mandatory. 
Where there is a significant level of public 
interest on an application the Council will 
consider the use of a development forum.  
 
As para 25.4 states “The criteria for deciding 
which applications should be considered by 
Planning Committee are available on our 
website:  
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-
andadvice/planning-and-building/planning-
committees”.  
 
The Council’s constitution sets out the process 
for planning committee, rather than the SCI. 
 
Regarding Discharge of Condition applications, 
these will generally relate to technical issues 
and therefore the Council will consult the 
relevant technical consultee.  
 

Scottish and 
Southern 
Electricity 
Networks 

SEPD is concerned that insufficient discussion has 
taken place between SEPD and Planning Authorities 
concerning the future of these lines prior to the granting 
of planning permission. SEPD believes that in these 

The SCI sets out how the Council will engage 
with the local community and key stakeholders 
(SEPD are one of these) regarding planning 
services.  Issues relating to specific planning 

  

P
age 64

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-andadvice/planning-and-building/planning-committees
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-andadvice/planning-and-building/planning-committees
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-andadvice/planning-and-building/planning-committees


12 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

circumstances, the Planning Authority should impose a 
condition prohibiting development until such time as the 
developer has reached agreement with the Distribution 
Network Operator (DNO) (a) as to how the development 
can be laid out such that the line(s) can be retained in 
their current position; or (b) such that contractual 
arrangements have been agreed to modify the 
overhead lines. 
 

applications will need to be addressed through 
engagement on that planning application.  

Marcham 
Parish Council 

1. S26 should provide that draft S106 agreements be 
sent to the relevant Parish Council for information 
purposes and invite comment. Currently agreements 
are finalised between the District Council and the 
developer/landowner. The Parish Council may be 
aware of local facts, which could be relevant. Whilst the 
situation is changing with CIL, the Parish Council at 
least should have the opportunity to have sight of 
anything which affects its parish including the draft 
S106 agreements.  
 
2. The Council, too, would request that Parish and 
Town Councils are notified when applications to 
discharge conditions are submitted. This would give an 
opportunity for the Parish Council to view the 
application, to check that what is proposed falls in line 
with its initial comments on an application. 
 

Paragraph 26.3 provides appropriate guidance 
on this, stating that “We do not consult on 
Section 106 agreements. However, we seek 
confirmation from towns and parishes on 
community facilities that the new development 
may impact upon or require improvement as a 
result of the development. Once we have an 
agreement and the development has 
commenced, we will notify towns and parish 
councils and meetings of the sums available 
for identified community facilities and provide 
an update to them on a six-monthly basis.”  
 
Discharge of condition applications generally 
relate to technical issues; therefore, the LPA 
will undertake consultation with the relevant 
technical consultee where necessary.  

  

Nuclear 
Regulation 

Due to the location of the Harwell nuclear licensed site, 
ONR requests to be consulted in line with our Land Use 
Planning processes which are published at 

The Office for Nuclear Regulation is a statutory 
consultee and will be consulted in accordance 

  

P
age 65



13 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

http://www.onr.org.uk/land-use-planning.htm for 
proposed developments within our consultation zones 
that meet our consultation criteria. 

with national policy and ONR guidance, as set 
out in the SCI. 

Wycombe 
District Council 
 

No comments to make on the draft SCI. Noted.   

Oxford City 
Council 
 

Support the Draft Revised Statement of Community 
Involvement. 

Noted, and support is welcomed.    

Wantage and 
Grove 
Campaign 
Group 

-Thank you for combining the previous documents into 
one – this makes it much clearer. 
 
- What does "early involvement with local communities 
in the preparation of our planning policy documents and 
in the consideration of planning applications," (Page 5) 
mean? 
 
- How will you "endeavour to engage with a wide range 
of formal and informal local community groups and 
voluntary organisations, stakeholders, town and parish 
councils and parish meetings and other groups in the 
community that we become aware of" (page 5)? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
- The document states that you "make our planning 
documents, background studies and responses to 

Noted. 
 
“Early involvement with local communities in 
the preparation of our planning policy 
documents and in the consideration of 
planning applications” is a principle which 
underpins our Statement of Community 
Involvement. Specific examples of how the 
LPA will engage with communities can be 
found when detailing the approaches to 
consulting on Planning Policy documents and 
planning applications. This is also the case for 
how we will “endeavour to engage with a wide 
range of formal and informal local community 
groups and voluntary organisations, 
stakeholders, town and parish councils and 
parish meetings and other groups in the 
community that we become aware of".  
 
The Council do not consider it appropriate to 
place planning documents in Parish Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 66

http://www.onr.org.uk/land-use-planning.htm


14 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

consultations…readily available to the public on our 
website and in some cases on paper at local libraries 
and at our offices" (page 5 box 5). Why not in parish 
council offices? 
 
- Can you provide a list of "deposit locations" (para 3.3) 
please? 
 
 
 
 
- This link does not exist "Further information on our 
SPDs can be found online at: 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/spd ." (para 11.8). 
 
- The Figures in Section 11 are very clear – thank you. 
 
- Many of the strategic decisions which drive the 
planning policy in the Vale are taken at either OXLEP or 
the Growth Board, of both of which the District Council 
are a member – how does the Vale ensure that the 
local Community are involved in this process and why 
isn’t this included in this document? 
We understand that the "Assessment of Growth Needs 
commission" is underway and that there will be no 
separate consultation on this. Given all the issues for 
the Vale created by the SHMA since 2014 and the lack 
of consultation around that, this lack of consultation on 
the Assessment of Growth Needs seems to be a 
significant issue. 
 

offices as not all Parish Councils or Parish 
Meetings will have offices.  
 
There is no definitive list of “deposit locations”, 
though these are typically libraries within the 
district; where these deposit locations are will 
depend on the type of document/s being 
consulted on and where it is appropriate to 
make copies available.  
 
 
The link will be updated when finalising the 
SCI.  
 
 
Noted and support welcomed. 
 
The SCI sets out how the LPA will engage with 
the community on planning documents that the 
district council is responsible for. Issues of 
other organisations’ governance and 
engagement methods cannot be addressed by 
the Council’s SCI.  
 
Evidence to support the production of the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 will be commissioned 
and produced by the Oxfordshire Plan team in 
consultation with the district and city councils. 
This plan is required by legislation to go 
through the same consultation processes as 
the district’s own Local Plan would. The 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Update link to 
SPD page on 
Vale website. 
Para 11.8 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agree 
modification 
– to correct 
link.  

P
age 67

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/spd


15 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

- During the planning application process, (Figure 9 
step 5) the requirement appears to be, that when an 
application is formally amended to address any 
planning issues raised, to re-consult anyone who 
responded to the original consultation. 
It may be that the amendment changes the application 
in such a way that an individual who didn’t respond to 
the original consultation may want to. Surely any 
amendment should be referred to all those who share a 
boundary with the site, the town or parish council, any 
relevant specialist consultees and anybody else who 
might be affected not just those who have already 
responded. 
- Any minor application can only be discussed at the 
Planning Committee if the chairman agrees to the local 
district councillor’s request to call in an application. No 
mention is made of the obligation of the individual 
district councillor to call in an application if an individual 
or the town or parish council requests it. What grounds 
does the councillor have for refusing to call in an 
application? Also, what grounds does the chairman of 
the Planning Committee have for refusing the request? 
- Para 19.2 states that any pre-application advice letters 
between the applicant and the council will be disclosed 
when the application is formally submitted. No mention 
is made of notes of any discussions held either by 
telephone or face to face meetings. Surely these should 
also be disclosed? 
- Section 20 relates to development forums. We have 
found the development forums for Crab Hill and Grove 
Airfield a useful way of providing communication 

Oxfordshire Plan team will be responsible for 
engagement with local communities and have 
their own Statement of Community 
Involvement.  
 
 
The usual process when an amendment has 
been made to an application will be to re-
consult those who have already commented. 
However, the Council has the discretion to 
consult more widely if it considers the 
amendment to warrant a greater level of 
consultation.  
 
 
The Council’s constitution addresses matters 
of process regarding planning committees. 
This is not addressed by the SCI.  
 
The Council consider it appropriate that the 
pre-application advice given is disclosed when 
the application is formally submitted.  
 
 
 
We note your positive experience of 
development forums, and your proposition of 
the forums being required for developments of 
200 or more. However, we have to balance the 
interests of all stakeholders and the Council 
consider that it is appropriate it applies its 

P
age 68

https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Statement-of-Community-Involvement-February-2019.pdf
https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Statement-of-Community-Involvement-February-2019.pdf


16 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

channels between the community and the developer. 
We would suggest that these should be made a formal 
part of the process for any large development where 
applications involve more than 200 dwellings or are part 
of a large scheme of more than 200 dwellings. 
- Section 22 relates to who is consulted on any 
application. We have noticed that even though some of 
the reserved matter applications for major 
developments will be visible from the AONB, they are 
not always listed as a consultee. Why is this? Could 
they be added to the requirements in some way? 

discretion when considering which proposals 
are likely to generate significant public interest 
and would benefit from a developer forum. 
Where it is deemed appropriate the council will 
consult with the AONB board on planning 
applications which may impact the AONB.  
 

Fyfield and 
Tubney Parish 
Council 

Consultation is duly made; it is done so as a formality 
without substance. Responses to representations are 
formal, superficial and unsubstantiated; and 
representations are then ignored. 
The planning procedure must be flexible. 
Representations made on behalf of local communities, 
who best understand the situation on the ground, are 
essential and must be respected. 
An effective dialogue between the planners and the 
community should be established; plans should be 
modified if necessary. 
The process of Community Involvement is outlined in 
the flow chart on page 12 of the Draft Revised 
Statement of Community Involvement. This should be 
modified as follows: 
May we suggest the text in the third box from the top in 
the diagram on page 12 which reads ‘Process 
representations received’ could be modified to read: 

The council has to consider a number of 
factors in progressing with policy documents 
and determining applications. Consultation is a 
one of the key factors: the council reads all 
responses to consultations and gives them 
careful consideration.  
 
The council considers Figure 1 to accurately 
represent the necessary stages involved in the 
production of a development plan document.  
 

  P
age 69



17 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

‘Note, respond carefully to and, where appropriate, act 
upon representations received, and modify the plan 
accordingly’. Also, the text in the sixth box on page 12 
which reads ‘Respond to representations received on 
the published DPD’ could be modified to read: 
‘Note, respond carefully to and, where appropriate, act 
upon representations received on the published DPD, 
and modify the plan accordingly’. 
The process of consultation with the community must 
be improved and the text of the SCI changed to reflect 
this. 
 

Cherwell 
District Council 

Supportive of Section 2 and of the commitments made 
under the Duty to Co-operate. 
Supportive of the commitment in paragraph 10.5 to 
always consult on Planning Policy Documents. 
Supportive of the commitment to notify Town and 
Parish Councils of applications adjacent to their 
boundary but would request clarification that such 
notification extends to Town and Parish Councils 
outside of Vale of White Horse administrative area. We 
would also like to request clarification on whether 
adjoining Local Planning Authorities would be notified of 
applications for any strategic scale sites. CDC would 
wish to be notified of any planning applications for 
strategic sites in close proximity to their border. 

We note the comments and welcome support.  
 
Clarifications will be made to the document 
regarding adjoining LPAs being notified of 
strategic sites coming forward adjacent to 
district boundary.  
 
We can confirm that the council consults 
adjoining districts but not adjoining parishes. 
However, if parishes wish to submit views then 
they will be considered.  
 

Modify document 
to provide clarity 
re adjacent 
districts being 
notified of 
applications that 
may affect them.  

Agree with 
modification -
to provide 
further clarity. 
Suggested 
change taken 
forward. 

Nuclear 
Decommission
ing Authority 

Agree with the principles contained within the draft SCI. 
However, would wish to list the Nuclear 
Decommissioning Authority (‘the NDA’) as a Local 
Stakeholder representing the interests of a business 

We note and welcome your support for the 
principles contained in the SCI.  
 

  

P
age 70



18 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

within the Vale of the White Horse district as part of any 
upcoming Local Plan consultation opportunities. 

We recognise that NDA are a local 
stakeholder. The interests of local businesses 
are stated in the SCI as needing to be 
considered, therefore, we consider that the 
NDA would fall into this category and is 
therefore recognised in the SCI. 
 

CPRE There is no acknowledgement of the climate 
emergency.  
 
Proposed a change in wording in the introductions as 
follows; ‘Decisions we make, and policies we set, affect 
local residents, businesses and organisations now and 
in the future, so it’s important they are that everyone 
is involved from the start.’ 
 
More emphasis should be given on the process by 
which the feedback is considered and incorporated into 
the plans. 
 
The principles of engagement in paragraph 2.2 must be 
defined in the context of sustainability and the climate 
emergency declared by the Vale.  
 
 
Further clarification should be given to what 
circumstances paper copies will be provided to Parish 
Councils. Electronic copies should suffice with an 
obligation on Parish Councils to provide access on 
request to those without internet access.  

The council acknowledges the comments 
made by CPRE.  
 
We will make a modification reflecting these 
comments, for clarity.  
 
 
Comments received on planning policy 
documents are reviewed and summarised. An 
officer response is provided which sets out a 
response to the comment received. This 
commitment is set out in paragraph 14.1.  
 
Sustainable engagement generally refers to 
the physical, emotional and social wellbeing of 
participants, which are not within the SCI’s 
remit. Sustainability and the climate 
emergency will be considered in the new Local 
Plan 2041.   
 
There are no set circumstances for when 
paper copies will be provided. It will be for the 
LPA to make a judgement as to whether paper 

Proposed a 
change in 
wording in the 
introductions as 
follows; 
‘Decisions we 
make, and 
policies we set, 
affect local 
residents, 
businesses and 
organisations 
now and in the 
future, so it’s 
important they 
are that 
everyone is 
involved from the 
start.’ 
 
 
 
 

Agree with 
majority of 
modification 
to provide 
further clarity. 
 
‘Decisions 
we make, 
and policies 
we set, affect 
local 
residents, 
businesses 
and 
organisations 
now and in 
the future, 
so it’s 
important 
they are that 
everyone 
has the 
opportunity 

P
age 71



19 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

 
Paragraph 3.5 needs to be expanded to explain the 
status and role of the database in more detail. If asked 
to be added to database, it is not clear what will happen 
and what you will be consulted upon.  
 
Paragraph 6.2 should set out the targets for any SCI 
review.  
 
The diagram in paragraph 7.1 is misleading. There is 
no mention of DPD’s, SPD’s, the new 2041 plan and it 
is not clear where the OCC mineral plan fits into 
equation.  
 
There is no chart for the Local Plan process. This 
implies that the Local Plan is completed, however 
consultation has started on the Local Plan 2041 with a 
call for sites. Consultation process for a Local Plan 
must be defined.  
 
In Figure 1, box 3 and box 6, further explanation is 
required about how the representations will be 
reviewed, considered and acted upon.  
 
 
 
 
 
The link in paragraph 11.8 does not work. 
 

copies will be required to be distributed 
depending on the consultation.   
 
More information is provided by following the 
link to sign up, or information is available if you 
were to call the number provided. We do not 
consider it appropriate to define all of this 
information in the SCI.  
 
This paragraph states the SCI will be reviewed 
periodically to take account of changes to 
legislation, government guidance or local 
circumstances. The targets of any review 
would therefore be to take into account any 
changes in these areas. 
 
The Vale of White Horse Development Plan 
currently consists of Vale of White Horse Local 
Plan 2031, Parts 1 and 2, Oxfordshire County 
Council Minerals and Waste Plan and made 
Neighbourhood Plans. SPDs are not part of the 
Development Plan and therefore not included 
in the diagram.  
A Local Plan is a Development Plan 
Document, and therefore should follow the 
consultation requirements as set out in Figure 
1. This is explained at paragraph 11.4.  
 
We will update the link in paragraph 11.8.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Update link to 
SPD page on 

to be 
involved from 
the start.’ 
 
Majority of 
suggested 
change taken 
forward. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agreed – 
suggested 

P
age 72



20 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

Reference should be given to the climate emergency 
declared by the Vale in section 11.9: Sustainability 
Appraisal. There needs to be a commitment to follow 
equivalent UK legislation post Brexit. 
  
There should be an additional step in Figure 5: CIL 
Preparation to appraise any significant changes to the 
schedule following consultation. 
 
 
 
In paragraph 13.6 change may to will. 
 
Comments are often summarized or abbreviated 
(justifiably?) More often than not they are dismissed. 
Very few comments are accepted leading to changes to 
the documents, and the overall feeling is that due 
process might have been followed, but the comments 
are ignored - the plan is right. 
 
In paragraph 14.4, mention is needed of the online 
process used to collected comments, whereby 
comments are required section by section, so 
responses are fragmented, and it is very hard to make 
an argument that applies to the overall plan, rather than 
individual sections.  
 
Development Forum for Valley Park was a waste of 
time. Developer was defensive and not prepared to 
listen, neither were other participants. Just wanted to 

This will be addressed by the new Local Plan 
2041, rather than the SCI. 
 
 
 
In regard to Figure 5, a consultation statement 
is required to be submitted as part of the CIL 
Examination, and this action would therefore 
be included in this step.  
 
 
This is a matter of judgement for the LPA, and 
therefore the wording should remain ‘may’.  
 
Comments are summarised so that similar 
issues raised by multiple representations can 
be appropriately addressed comprehensively, 
The LPA take all comments into consideration 
and will make appropriate changes to the 
documents to reflect the comments received.   
 
Comment forms will differ depending on the 
consultation and in some cases, it is 
appropriate for the form to be divided. There is 
also, in most cases, an additional question 
where any other issues that you feel you may 
not have addressed already can be raised.  
 
We note your view on the Valley Park 
Development Forum, however there are 

Vale website. 
Para 11.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

change taken 
forward. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73



21 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

say what a bad idea the project was. Not a constructive 
process.  
 
Needs something on how decisions are communicated. 
For big applications requiring a S106 the committee 
may be minded to grant permission, but the decision is 
not implemented until the S106 has been agreed. 
Meanwhile there is no record of status on the planning 
database, and you have to wait weeks before the 
minutes of the planning committee meeting are 
published. Case in point is Valley Park. P14/V2873/O. 
Database shows no decision issued. But it went to 
Planning Committee FOUR years ago. What is going 
on. 
 
The speaking time for major applications should be 
changed and there should be an opportunity for 
committee members to question the speakers.  
 
The S106 is the one area where the community can 
see some benefit from a development and where there 
is almost no scope for engagement and consultation. A 
sympathetic officer may list parish requests for S106 
when reporting to the planning committee. After 
committee the S106 goes into a black hole (Valley Park 
S106 has been there for 4 years). When it emerges, 
and the S106 published and the decisions issued, it is 
too late to correct any mistakes. e.g. one S106 
mentioned defined the wrong parish (Harwell, not E 
Hendred) for receipt of tennis court money. A draft of 
the near final S106 should be provided to those 

examples of members of the community 
finding these forums beneficial.  
 
 
 
Decision notices are placed on the website 
once a decision has been made on an 
application. Any problems with individual 
cases, should be discussed with the case 
officer.  
 
The process at planning committee is provided 
for in Council’s constitution and cannot be 
amended through the SCI.   
 
S106: Paragraph 26.3 provides appropriate 
guidance on this, stating that “We do not 
consult on Section 106 agreements - this is not 
a statutory duty. However, we seek 
confirmation from towns and parishes on 
community facilities that the new development 
may impact upon or require improvement as a 
result of the development. Once we have an 
agreement and the development has 
commenced, we will notify towns and parish 
councils and meetings of the sums available 
for identified community facilities and provide 
an update to them on a six-monthly basis.”  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 74



22 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

affected by it for review/checking prior to final 
agreement. 
 
In the ‘Who we consult with’ section, please re-instate 
a) the commitment for wider notification for major 
applications and b) the option of email alerts. SCI must 
include details of how one can register for planning 
notifications. 
 
Under Planning Enforcements, the statements need to 
be backed up with actions.  
 
There needs to be an additional paragraph defining 
how the ‘reporter’ and the public will be kept informed of 
the status of the breach and the remedial actions 
sought.  
 
In Appendix A, where it states, “applications affecting 
the character and appearance of a conservation area” 
Shouldn't these also be notified to 
landowners/occupiers? 

 
 
 
We will consider re-instating the commitment 
for wider notification for major applications. 
Email alerts are still an option, and this is set 
out in the table at paragraph 21.1.  
 
The Council will keep the complainant 
informed of the progress. This information is 
available on the Council website: 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-
advice/planning-and-building/planning-
enforcement/how-we-deal-with-complaints. 
 
The table in appendix A is based on guidance 
set out in national legislation. Adjacent 
neighbours to the application will be notified as 
set out in section 2 of the SCI.  

 
 
 
Consider re-
instating the 
following; ‘In most 
cases, where new 
development (e.g. 
‘major’ 
application) 
affects more 
properties than 
those that are 
immediately 
adjacent to the 
boundary of the 
site, wider 
consultation may 
be carried out.’ 
 

 
 
 
Agree with 
modification 
to provide 
further clarity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Roger Cox The revised SCI is clear, logical and deals with all 
aspects of local authority planning, with links to the 
background detail. I consider it to a be useful guide 
which would enable all parts of the community to 
engage in the planning process. 
 

Noted and support welcomed.   

Need not 
Greed 
Oxfordshire 

Key concerns include; 
• Key evidence documents such as the Housing 

Needs assessment should be subject to a 

The council acknowledges the comments 
made by Need not Greed Oxfordshire.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 75

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement/how-we-deal-with-complaints
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement/how-we-deal-with-complaints
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-enforcement/how-we-deal-with-complaints


23 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

transparent public debate and community 
involvement should be extended to the earliest part 
of the process.  

• An option based purely on the natural growth needs 
of the existing population should be considered 
when assessing the levels of growth.  

• There should be more clarity on how comments 
received during consultations are taken on board 
and how documents are modified to reflect these.  

 
 
 
 

Recommends an additional objective to paragraph 1.2 
(proposed wording suggested can be found in full 
response).  
 
Recommends three changes to Figure one; 
• Add footnote to Figure 1 setting out what is meant 

by pre-production stage (proposed wording 
suggested can be found in full response).  

• Amend the third box from the top to ‘respond clearly 
and publicly to representations received and where 
appropriate modify the plan accordingly.’ 

• Amend the sixth box from the top to ‘respond clearly 
and publicly to representations received and where 
appropriate modify the plan accordingly’. 

The level of growth within the district is not an 
issued to be considered by the SCI. The SCI 
sets out the stages of consultation for 
development plan documents, and when 
representations can be made on the proposed 
document and accompanying evidence base. 
Draft evidence-based documents are available 
at either Regulation 18 or 19 consultation for 
public consultation and comments received will 
be considered when finalising policy 
documents.  
   
 
The council will consider the additional 
proposed objective when finalising the SCI.  
 
 
The council considers Figure 1 to accurately 
represent the necessary stages involved in the 
production of a development plan document.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There are no set targets for public 
engagement, however the Council is 
continually trying to improve its methods to 
reach more people.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Need Not Greed 
suggest the 
council consider 
amending 
paragraph 1.2 to 
add the following: 
‘To give local 
people and 
organisations 
various 
opportunities to 
get involved and 
influence and 
guide local plans 
and planning 
applications’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agreed in 
principle – 
1.2 already 
mentions 
some of 
these points 
but part of 
the wording 
will be 
incorporated, 
i.e.  ‘and 
highlights the 
opportunities 
where they 
can provide 
comment on 
new planning 
documents 

P
age 76



24 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

Paragraph 6.2 should make clear how the effectiveness 
of the SCI will be reviewed. It should set out what 
targets there are for public engagement 
 
Reference to European Directive EC/2001/42 in 
paragraph 11.9 and the footnote on page 16 needs to 
be reconsidered. It should be noted that the alternatives 
to this legislation is unclear. They would be unhappy if 
there is any weakening of the Environmental standards. 
Consider mentioning the climate crisis and the key zero 
carbon reduction targets.  
 
The reasons for concerns about the level of growth 
include;  
• There is no clear national spatial policy, instead 

there seems to be a ‘development-everywhere’ 
approach.  

• The previous plans were entirely based on one set 
of figures from the Oxfordshire SHMA which was 
produced by GL Hearn.  

• Once these figures were ‘accepted’, they were 
beyond challenge by local people. Valid claims were 
made at Local Plan Examinations but were 
dismissed.  

• The risks of a jobs-led strategy were not recognised 
or mitigated and there was no contingency planning 
for the risk that job growth might not materialise.  

• There are proposals to build 1 million more homes in 
the Oxford/Cambridge Arc. With this, there is 

 
Paragraph 6.2 explains that the SCI will be 
updated to take account of changes in 
legislation. If there are changes to legislation 
mentioned within the SCI, there is scope for 
the SCI to be updated to take into account the 
changes.  
 
The remaining points relate to a matter of 
policy. The SCI sets out how the LPA will 
engage with the community on planning 
documents. Representations regarding policy 
will need to be made on the appropriate 
document and at the appropriate time.  

and Local 
Plans and be 
involved in 
the 
development 
of their local 
area/district. 

P
age 77



25 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

uncertainty surrounding the Oxford to Cambridge 
Expressway.  

• There has been a standoff between SODC 
councillors and government minister Robert Jenrick 
about progressing the South Local Plan. The 
timetable set by Jenrick is unlikely to be the last 
word and can be overcome by the plan being out of 
date and the Coronavirus crisis having an effect.  

• These problems are further illuminated by the 
housing developments known as North and North 
West Abingdon. The concerns for these sites are set 
out in Appendix 1 of the full response.  

(Further explanation on these points can be found in 
the full response). 
 
The focus should be on proper balance of economic, 
environmental and social considerations; local 
democracy controlled by locally elected and 
accountable councillors; and environmental and rural 
sustainability, putting landscape, nature and rural 
communities at the heart of decision-making.  
 
Concern raised about the imposition of excessive 
growth and centralisation by Whitehall. The Arc 
pressures may mean that planning history will repeat 
itself in next Vale of White Horse Local Plan.  
 
Local People and organisations must be consulted 
about the overall level of growth.  
 

P
age 78



26 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

Thames Water New developments may increase the requirements for 
water and wastewater infrastructure. The timescale for 
delivering this infrastructure can be time consuming. 
Developers are encouraged to work with Thames Water 
at an early stage to minimise the need for phasing 
conditions on planning permissions and to ensure new 
development is aligned with any infrastructure upgrades 
required. Refers to Paragraph 40 of the NPPF where it 
encourages developers to engage with local 
communities and statutory and non-statutory 
consultees before submitting their applications. 
 
Would welcome text within SCI that encouraging 
developers to seek pre-application advice with Thames 
Water to discuss any water and wastewater 
infrastructure required to support the development.  
Thames Water provided a link to include within the SCI 
or on the Council Website. 
 

Noted. The SCI sets out how the LPA will 
engage with the local community and key 
stakeholders such as Thames Water.  
 
The remaining points relate to a matter of 
policy. The SCI sets out how the LPA will 
engage with the community on planning 
documents. Representations regarding policy 
will need to be made on the appropriate 
document and at the appropriate time. 
 
 
Comment noted and agreed. 

Potentially seek 
to add a sentence 
to section 19: 
Pre-Application 
Advice to 
encourage 
applicants to seek 
advice from other 
key stakeholders 
such as Thames 
Water. 
 

Agreed – 
reminds 
applicants of 
further steps 
/ provides 
clarity. 
Suggested 
change taken 
forward. 

Ms Nicholson Asks about engaging with the local community (i.e. 
what methods of communication) and wants the Council 
to give ‘recognition of present weaknesses in such 
methods and what you might do to improve this’.  
 
Clear language and accessibility are all very well, but if 
the channels themselves are weak, it is all pointless. 

Paragraphs 9.5 and 21.1 of the Statement of 
Community Involvement set out the methods of 
engagement we will undertake when 
consulting on Planning Policy documents and 
on planning applications.  We will continue to 
work with our Community Engagement Team 
to ensure our methods are effective in 
informing people of any consultations we are 
undertaking. 
 

  

P
age 79



27 
 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 

Agree/ 
Disagree with 
Modification 
and reason 
why 

Mrs 
Wooldridge 

It seems clear. One of the issues with putting things out 
for public approval is that if you steer the questions 
appropriately it is pretty easy to get an answer you 
want. In this case, approval of this paper. 

Noted. We will discuss with our Community 
Engagement Team.  

  

 

 

 

 P
age 80



 1 

 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

  
Report of Head of Planning Services 

Author: Richard Sandith 

Telephone: 01235 422600 

Textphone: 018001 01235 422600 

E-mail: richard.sandith@southandvale.gov.uk 

Executive member responsible: Cllr. Catherine Webber 

Tel: 01235 534001 

E-mail: catherine.webber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 8 July 2020 

REPORT NO: 

 

 

Authority Monitoring Report 2018/19 

Recommendation(s) 

(a) To consider the Authority Monitoring Report and provide feedback to the 
Cabinet Member for Planning 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To inform Members on the progress and effectiveness of the policies and 
objectives contained in the Adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, 
as well as reporting on a number of other statutory requirements. 

Strategic Objectives  

2. The delivery of the Vale of White Horse Authority Monitoring Report monitors the 
effectiveness of planning policies that help to meet the Council’s strategic 
objectives. 

Background 

3. The Town and Country Planning Regulations 2012 require all local authorities to 
prepare an Authority Monitoring Report (AMR). 

4. The Authority Monitoring Report attached is produced annually and sets out the 
Council's progress on the preparation of the development plan and assesses the 
effectiveness of the policies and objectives contained in the Adopted Local Plan 
2031 Part 1, as well as reporting on a number of other statutory requirements.  

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



 2 

 

5. The AMR provides data and statistics in line with the indicators in the Adopted 
Local Plan 2031 Part 1, for the 2018/19 monitoring year. The key areas are:  

• Housing - the AMR shows that housing delivery for 2018/19 was above the 
Council’s annual housing requirement, and there is currently a housing land 
supply position of 5.1 years.  

• Employment - permissions granted during 2018/19 make a significant 
contribution towards meeting the employment land target.  

• Spatial Strategy - permissions have largely been granted in the towns and 
larger villages, in accordance with the overall strategy.  

6. Overall, current planning policies in the Adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 are 
effective in delivering the Council’s Strategic Objectives and the Plan’s objectives. 

7. In addition to monitoring the effectiveness of the Adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, 
the AMR provides an update on the following: 

• The Local Development Scheme 

• Neighbourhood Development Plans 

• The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

• The Duty to Cooperate 

8. Following the adoption of the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 in October 2019, we will 
monitor the effectiveness of the policies and objectives contained in the Part 2 plan 
in future monitoring reports. 

Financial Implications 

9. The preparation of the Authority Monitoring Report is undertaken by officers within 
the Planning Policy team and is supported by evidence. The activities of this team 
are met from the existing Planning Policy budget. 

Legal Implications 

10. Local authorities are required to prepare an Authority Monitoring Report. The Town 
and Country Planning Regulation 2012 provides full details on the information that 
should be contained in the Authority Monitoring Report and this frames the way in 
which our report is produced. 

Risks 

11. Failure to progress an Authority Monitoring Report weakens the transparency of 
our performance against Local Plan policies. 

Other Implications 

12. None known. 

Page 82



 3 

 

Conclusion 

13. The Council’s Authority Monitoring Report provides an overview of the Local Plan’s 
progress on an annual basis against which performance can be assessed 

 

Background Papers 

• Authority Monitoring Report 2018/19 (Published February 2020) 

 

 

Page 83



Page 84



i 
 

Contents 
1. Introduction .............................................................................................................. 1 

Purpose of Monitoring .............................................................................................. 1 

Requirement to Monitor ............................................................................................ 1 

Vale of White Horse District Council Monitoring Report ........................................... 3 

2. Vale of White Horse Profile ...................................................................................... 4 

Vale of White Horse Context .................................................................................... 4 

Science Vale ............................................................................................................ 4 

Didcot Garden Town ................................................................................................ 5 

Key Statistics for the Vale of White Horse ................................................................ 6 

3. Planning Framework ................................................................................................ 8 

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 8 

Adoption of Local Plan 1: Strategic Policies and Sites ............................................. 9 

Adoption of Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites .................... 10 

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 ........................................................................................... 10 

Sustainability Appraisal Significant Effect Indicators .............................................. 11 

Neighbourhood planning ........................................................................................ 11 

Community infrastructure levy ................................................................................ 12 

Other documents .................................................................................................... 12 

Local development orders ...................................................................................... 13 

4. Neighbourhood Plans ............................................................................................. 14 

5. Duty to Cooperate .................................................................................................. 16 

Introduction ............................................................................................................ 16 

Vale of the White Horse neighbouring authorities and prescribed bodies .............. 16 

Key stages of the duty to cooperate ....................................................................... 17 

6. Spatial Strategy ...................................................................................................... 19 

Core Policy 4: Meeting the Housing Need ............................................................. 19 

Core Policy 5: Housing Supply Ringfence .............................................................. 20 

Core Policy 6: Meeting Business and Employment Needs .................................... 22 

Core Policy 7: Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services ........................... 23 

7. Sub-Area Strategies ............................................................................................... 25 

Page 85



ii 
 

Abingdon-on-Thames & Oxford Fringe Sub-Area Strategy .................................... 25 

South East Vale Sub-Area Strategy ....................................................................... 31 

Western Vale Sub-Area Strategy ........................................................................... 37 

8. District Wide Policies .............................................................................................. 42 

Building Healthy and Sustainable Communities ..................................................... 42 

Supporting Economic Prosperity ............................................................................ 48 

Supporting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility .............................................. 52 

Protecting the Environment and Responding to Climate Change .......................... 56 

Appendix A: Whole District Housing Trajectory ...................................................... 64 

Appendix B: Science Vale Ringfence Area Housing Trajectory ............................. 65 

Appendix C: Rest of District Area Housing Trajectory ............................................ 66 

Appendix D: Monitoring Framework ....................................................................... 67 

 

Page 86



1 
 

1. Introduction 

Purpose of Monitoring 

1.1. The monitoring of a Local Plan enables progress towards meeting the district’s 
development needs and whether adopted policies are being effectively 
implemented to be tracked. It also allows communities and interested parties to 
be aware of progress the council is making towards delivering its vision and 
objectives, as set out in the Development Plan, such as the Vale’s Local Plan 
2031: Part 1 and Part 2.  

 

Requirement to Monitor 

1.2. The requirement to monitor annually was introduced under the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which placed a duty on the council to produce an 
Annual Monitoring Report.  Since then, the requirement to monitor has evolved 
with the publication of the Localism Act in 2011 and subsequent Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. The requirement 
is now to prepare and publish an Authority Monitoring Report. This replaces the 
previous duty for the council to publish an Annual Monitoring Report and there is 
no longer a need to submit the Report to the Secretary of State. However, there 
is still a minimum requirement to annually produce an Authority Monitoring 
Report, which, in the interests of transparency, should be made publicly available 
and updated as and when the information becomes available. 

1.3. As set out in the Local Planning Regulations 2012 and reiterated through the 
Planning Practice Guidance1, the council must monitor the requirements set out 
in Table 1.  

 

 

 
1 Paragraph 073, Plan Making Guidance available from https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making#plan-
reviews  

Page 87

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making#plan-reviews
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making#plan-reviews


2 
 

Table 1: Requirement to Monitor 

Requirement Summary 

Local Development Scheme 
(LDS) 

The timescales and milestones for the preparation of 
documents as set out in the LDS, and progress 
towards meeting them.  

Local Plan Policies 

 

The status of adopted policies including the reason 
why any of the policies are no longer being 
implemented.  

How the adopted policies are being implemented and 
to what extent their objectives are being achieved.  

Neighbourhood 
Development Plans and 
Orders 

The progression of Neighbourhood Development Plans 
and Neighbourhood Development Orders.  

The Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

The progression of CIL and how it will be implemented.  

Duty-to-Cooperate Details on how the council are cooperating with other 
statutory authorities (NPPF) 

Sustainability Appraisal  Details on predicted significant effects the policies are 
having on sustainability objectives identified by the 
Sustainability Appraisal. 

Supplementary Planning 
Documents and Local 
Development Orders 

The status and progress of any Supplementary 
Planning Documents and Local Development Orders 

Self and Custom build 
register 

To provide an indication of the demand for self and 
custom build in the Vale of White Horse and to allow 
the council to develop its housing and planning policies 
to support self and custom build projects  

Page 88



3 
 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council Monitoring Report 

1.4. This Monitoring Report covers the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 and 
details the progress of the Adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
policies for this timeframe unless otherwise specified. The Monitoring Framework 
is provided at Appendix D of this Report.  

1.5. The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites (The Part 2 
Plan) was adopted after the period covered by this report. The council will 
monitor the policies, as set out in the Part 2 Plan, in future monitoring reports 
following a full year of implementation of the Part 2 Plan.  

1.6. This Report outlines the timescale and progress of the implementation of the 
Development Plan, as detailed in the Local Development Scheme (LDS), and the 
extent to which the adopted policies have been successfully implemented. 

Page 89



4 
 

2. Vale of White Horse Profile 

Vale of White Horse Context 

1.1. The Vale of White Horse District takes its name from the 3,000-year-old White 
Horse figure cut into the chalk downs, near Uffington. Lying between the River 
Thames to the north and the ridgeway to the south, including the North Wessex 
Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), the district covers an area 
of some 224 square miles (580 square kilometres).  

1.2. The Vale of White Horse District is located between the larger centres of Oxford 
(to the North East), and Swindon (to the SouthWest), with Didcot sited to the 
SouthEast boundary of the district, in neighbouring South Oxfordshire. The Vale 
of White Horse is largely rural by nature, with just over 70 settlements. The 
largest settlements are the historic market towns of Abingdon-on-Thames, 
Faringdon and Wantage. There are also two ‘local service centres’ at Botley and 
Grove, which provide essential services for the surrounding rural areas. 

1.3. The high quality and rural nature of the district is borne out by the many 
designations that cover the area, such as the Oxford Green Belt, the North 
Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and 52 designated 
Conservation Areas. The district also has a long frontage to the River Thames 
and contains the River Ock, with tributaries including the Letcombe Brook, and 
contains a significant proportion of the route of the Wilts and Berks Canal. 

1.4. The district is easily accessible from other parts of the UK. The A34 trunk road 
provides good access between the M4 to the south, and the M40 to the north. 
The A420 and A417 roads cross the district and provide links to Swindon in the 
west and Didcot in the east. Whilst there are two main railway lines (Bristol to 
London and Oxford to London) running through the district, there are only two 
stations situated on the Oxford line. Presently, there are no established stations 
on the Bristol line within the Vale of White Horse. 

 

Science Vale 

1.5. The district includes the majority of the Science Vale area, an internationally 
significant location for innovation, science-based research and business. It is one 
of the key growth areas for Oxfordshire, as identified within the Oxfordshire 
Strategic Economic Plan. The Science Vale area extends from Culham and 
Didcot to Wantage and Grove (east to west) and is a strategic focus, in terms of 

Page 90



5 
 

employment and economic growth, for both the Vale of White Horse and South 
Oxfordshire District Councils. There are also two designated Enterprise Zones: 
the ‘Science Vale’ EZ, which includes the Harwell Campus and Milton Park sites, 
and the newly designated ‘Didcot Growth Accelerator’ EZ. 

 

Didcot Garden Town 

1.6. Didcot was awarded Garden Town status in late 2015, after both the Vale of 
White Horse and South Oxfordshire District Councils prepared a joint bid to the 
UK Government. The Garden Town status will provide access to government 
funding for infrastructure, such as the £6.2 million announced in August 20172. 
Fundamentally, the success of the bid gives Didcot a unique opportunity to grow 
in a number of ways and to become a better place to live and work. 

1.7. The vision for Didcot Garden Town is to deliver a highly sustainable and 
economically viable location, where the very best of town and country living are 
brought together. The council’s aim is to provide affordable, attractive homes and 
living spaces, within a vibrant community. The Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan 
was published as of October 2017 and is available on the council website3. 
During 2018/19 a project manager was appointed, a project review was 
undertaken and project governance has developed4.  

1.8. In March 2019, £218 million of Housing Infrastructure Funding (HIF) was 
announced5. The funding will support the development of new homes and will 
improve transport links including walking and cycling routes. The lack of suitable 
crossings over the railway line and river coupled with the success of the Science 
Vale area has resulted in heavy congestion. HIF will support delivery of projects 
which include: 
 

• A4130 widening from A34 Milton Interchange towards Didcot 

• A new “Science Bridge” over the A4130, Great Western Railway Line and 
Milton Road into the former Didcot A Power Station site 

• A new Culham to Didcot river crossing between the A415 and A4130 

• A Clifton Hampden Bypass 

 
2 http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/news/2017/2017-08/%C2%A362-million-government-boost-help-unlock-
15000-new-homes-didcot-garden-town  
3 http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/business/didcot-garden-town-0  
4 https://www.didcot.gov.uk/uploads/didcot-town-council-2019-4-nov.pdf 
5 https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/didcot-garden-town-oxfordshire-county-council-secures-218m-
for-major-transport-improvements/ 

Page 91

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/news/2017/2017-08/%C2%A362-million-government-boost-help-unlock-15000-new-homes-didcot-garden-town
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/news/2017/2017-08/%C2%A362-million-government-boost-help-unlock-15000-new-homes-didcot-garden-town
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/business/didcot-garden-town-0
https://www.didcot.gov.uk/uploads/didcot-town-council-2019-4-nov.pdf
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/didcot-garden-town-oxfordshire-county-council-secures-218m-for-major-transport-improvements/
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/didcot-garden-town-oxfordshire-county-council-secures-218m-for-major-transport-improvements/


6 
 

 

Key Statistics for the Vale of White Horse 

1.9. The key statistics shown in Table 2 provide a snapshot of the Vale’s 
demographics and the context for the monitoring indicators. 

Table 2: Key Statistics 

Contextual indicator 
Vale of White 
Horse District 

South East 
of England 

Region 

Great 
Britain 

Population (2018)6 133,700 9,133,600 64,553,900 

Population aged 16-64 (2018)7 
81,200 

60.7% 61.5% 62.7% 

Life Expectancy8 
Male 82.5 80.6 79.2 (UK) 

Female 85.4 84 82.9 (UK) 

Number of Households (2019)9 54,540 3,794,874 27,249,000 

Economically Active10 75.8% 81.6% 78.9% 

Unemployment rate11 3.2% 3.3% 4.1% 

Education - Attainment 8 results12 

(2017-18)13 

46.7 

(Oxfordshire) 
47.7 

44.3 

(England) 

CO2 emissions 

(2017)14 

Per Capita 

(t) 
6.5 4.8 5.3 

 
6 Available from https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabrespop   
7 Available from https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabrespop   
8 Available from 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandlifeexpectancies/d

atasets/lifeexpectancyatbirthandatage65bylocalareasuk  
9 Based on the 2016 household projections, available from 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/dat

asets/householdprojectionsforengland   
10 April 2018-March 2019 figures, available from 

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabempunemp 
11  April 2018-March 2019 figures, available from 

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabempunemp 
12 Attainment 8 is a measure of a pupil's average grade across a set suite of eight subjects. 
13 Provisional 2017-18 figures, available from https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/gcse-and-equivalent-

results-2017-to-2018-provisional 
14 2017 estimates, available from https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-
carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2017  

Page 92

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabrespop 
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabrespop 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandlifeexpectancies/datasets/lifeexpectancyatbirthandatage65bylocalareasuk
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandlifeexpectancies/datasets/lifeexpectancyatbirthandatage65bylocalareasuk
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/householdprojectionsforengland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/householdprojectionsforengland
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabempunemp
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabempunemp
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/gcse-and-equivalent-results-2017-to-2018-provisional
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/gcse-and-equivalent-results-2017-to-2018-provisional
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2017


7 
 

Contextual indicator 
Vale of White 
Horse District 

South East 
of England 

Region 

Great 
Britain 

 Total (kt) 854 43,907 351,501 

Page 93



8 
 

3. Planning Framework 

Introduction 

3.1. The Planning Framework for the Vale of White Horse District is made up of 
Development Plan Documents and other planning documents, as shown in 
Figure 1. In combination, these documents, alongside the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) and any other relevant national planning guidance 
and/or legislation, are used in the determination of planning applications and 
future infrastructure provision and/or investment. 

Figure 1: Planning Framework 

 

3.2. The Local Development Scheme (LDS) sets out the timetable for the production 
of the council’s Development Plan Documents (DPDs) and the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL), including the Charging Schedule for CIL. This includes 
key production dates and public consultation stages. The Vale of White Horse 
LDS was updated in February 2018 and covers the period 2018-2020. The LDS 
provides information regarding the Local Plan 2031 Parts 1 and 2 and other 

Page 94



9 
 

related documents. Table 3 sets out the timetable for each these documents and 
the progress that has been made. 

Table 3: Progress of Development Plan Documents 

    Date 

Document Milestone LDS Timescale Achieved 

Local Plan 
2031 Part 1: 
Strategic 
Policies and 
Sites 

Submission Mar-15 Yes 

Hearings 
September 2016 and 
February 2016 

Yes 

Adoption Dec-16 Yes 

Local Plan 
2031 Part 2: 
Detailed 
policies and 
additional 
sites 

Preferred Options February/March 2017 Yes 

Pre-Submission October/November 2017 Yes 

Submission February/March 2018 Yes 

Adoption Dec-18 Adopted October 2019 

Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) 

Submission Apr-15 Yes 

Examination Winter 2016 April 2017  

Adoption Early 2017 
Adopted November 
2017 

 

Adoption of Local Plan 1: Strategic Policies and Sites 

3.3. The Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (Part 1 Plan) sets out the development strategy and 
key strategic policies for the district, including the need for housing, employment 
and infrastructure required to support development up to 2031. The spatial 
strategy makes provision for growth of around 23,000 new jobs, 218 hectares of 
employment land, and at least 20,560 new homes, to be delivered during the 
plan period from 2011 to 2031. 

3.4. The Local Plan 2031 Part 1: Strategic Sites and Policies was adopted by Full 
Council on 14 December 2016. This is in accordance with the Local 
Development Scheme, as shown in Table 3 above. 

 

Page 95



10 
 

Adoption of Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites 

3.5. To complement the Part 1 Plan, the Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies 
and Additional Sites (The Part 2 Plan) sets out: 

• Policies and locations for new housing to meet the Vale’s proportion of 
Oxford City’s unmet housing need, which cannot be met within the City 
boundaries;  

• policies for the part of Didcot Garden Town that lies within the Vale of White 
Horse District; 

• detailed development management policies that complement the strategic 
policies as set out in the Part 1 Plan, and where appropriate replace the 
remaining saved policies of the Local Plan 2011;  

• and additional site allocations for housing. 

3.6. In relation to the Vale’s proportion of Oxford City’s unmet housing need, this has 
been informed by co-operation with the Oxfordshire Growth Board15 to apportion 
a ‘working assumption’ unmet need figure of 15,000 homes. The quantum of 
Oxford City’s unmet housing need to be met within the Vale of White Horse is 
2,200 dwellings for the period up to 2031, as agreed in the ‘Memorandum of Co-
operation’ between the local authorities in the Oxfordshire Housing Market Area.  

3.7. The Local Plan 2031 Part 2 was adopted by Full Council on Wednesday 9 
October 2019.. 

 

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

3.8. On the 14 February 2018 the Vale of White Horse District Council formally signed 
up to the Oxfordshire Housing & Growth Deal. The agreement commits 
Oxfordshire’s five district councils and the county council to work together to 
produce a Joint Statutory Spatial Plan, the Oxfordshire Plan 2050. 

3.9. The Oxfordshire Plan builds on the foundations set by the current and emerging 
Local Plans and looks beyond them, at the strategic planning issues for the 
period up to 2050. It will give districts a framework for future planning policies 
and help determine planning applications where appropriate. 

3.10. The Plan will not allocate sites for housing or employment. Instead, it will identify 
key areas for sustainable growth with associated housing / employment 

 
15 Available from https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/  

Page 96

https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/


11 
 

numbers. Districts will then use this to produce future Local Plans which will 
provide a detailed view of how housing and infrastructure will be delivered. 

 

Sustainability Appraisal Significant Effect Indicators 

3.11. The role of a Sustainability Appraisal (SA), incorporating the Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA), is to assess whether a Plan has integrated 
the principles of sustainable development and if there are likely to be any 
significant effects as a result of the Plan’s policies. If the sustainability appraisal 
predicts any likely significant effects, it is essential that these effects are 
monitored to determine whether the implementation of a policy is causing the 
undue effect(s), and if so, whether the policy should be reviewed. 

3.12. The SA report on the Part 1 Plan identified a few potential significant effects, in 
which the Plan was amended to ensure it mitigated against these effects. The SA 
Adoption Statement stated the monitoring arrangements of these effects are 
included in the council’s Monitoring Framework (Appendix H of the Part 1 Plan).  

3.13. The SA report on the Part 2 Plan, mainly predicted no ‘significant negative 
effects’, however it did conclude there were uncertainties regarding pollution and 
climate change adaptation. These will be monitored as part of the Monitoring 
Framework within the Part 2 Plan. 

 

Neighbourhood planning 

3.14. Under the Localism Act 2011, communities have been given the power to directly 
influence land use planning by preparing either a Neighbourhood Development 
Plan (NDP), Neighbourhood Development Order (NDO) and/or a Community 
Right to Build Order. It is a requirement of the AMR to include details of the 
progress and ‘made’ Neighbourhood Development Plans and Neighbourhood 
Development Orders. 

 

Page 97



12 
 

Community infrastructure levy 

3.15. The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), is a charge that the council may 
choose to levy on new development to help fund the infrastructure needed to 
support growth of the area. The CIL Regulations 2010 came into force in April 
2010.  

3.16. A preliminary CIL Draft Charging Schedule for the Vale of White Horse was 
consulted on between 15 December 2016 and 26 January 2017. An Examination 
in Public was then carried out by Mr Malcolm Rivett, as appointed by the 
Secretary of State, who found the CIL charging schedule to be ‘sound’, subject to 
modifications. The charging schedule was then formally adopted by Council on 
the 27 September 2017 and came into effect on the 1 November 2017. This 
means any application decided on or after this date will be CIL liable, regardless 
of when the application was submitted. 

3.17. Following an update in September 2019, the restriction on pooling S106 and CIL 
revenues no longer applies and Charging Authorities no longer need to produce 
a Regulation 123 List (which previously set out infrastructure to be funded 
through CIL). Charging Authorities will instead produce an annual infrastructure 
funding statement, the first to be by no later 31 December 2020. 

 

Other documents 

3.18. Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) provide the option for further detail 
and clarity to be published in regard to Local Plan policies. They can also provide 
further guidance on particular issues or regarding the development of specific 
sites.  

3.19. As SPDs provide further detail to Local Plan policies, it is not necessarily a 
requirement for SPDs to be monitored, unless the council wishes to monitor the 
effectiveness of an SPD. 

3.20. As of March 2019, the council have 4 adopted SPDs, with none of them 
identifying specific monitoring arrangements. The SPDs are as follows: 

• Design Guide 2015: The Design Guide was adopted on 10 March 2015 and 
sets out design principles to guide future development and encourage a 
design-led approach to development;  

Page 98



13 
 

• Abbey Shopping Centre and Charter Area: The Abbey Shopping Centre and 
Charter Area SPD was adopted on 14 December 2011 and provides a guide 
to detailed applications and possible future development options for the area; 

• Botley Centre SPD: The Botley Centre SPD was adopted on 18 January 
2016. It provides direction on the shape of development at Botley Central 
Area in accordance with Local Plan 2031: Part 1, Core Policy 11: Botley 
Central Area. It is designed to create a flexible strategy to guide development 
that supports the existing and future local community and meet local 
regeneration aspirations, while attracting investment to serve the wider 
district. 

• Developer Contributions SPD: The Developer Contributions SPD was 
adopted on 30 June 2017, and provides guidance on how planning 
obligations will work alongside CIL to deliver the infrastructure needed to 
support development in the Vale. 

3.21. The council is currently preparing an SPD for Dalton Barracks in accordance with 
the draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Additional Sites and Detailed Policies. The SPD 
will be a material consideration in assessing future planning application.  

 

Local development orders 

3.22. Local Development Orders (LDOs) automatically grant planning permission for 
the development specified in an LDO (subject to conditions) and by doing so, 
removes the need for a planning application to be made. The main purpose of an 
LDO is to help to streamline the planning process for applications that comply 
with pre-set conditions. It is for the council to determine how LDOs are 
monitored. 

3.23. The Vale currently have one LDO in place for Milton Park, which was adopted in 
December 2012. The aim of this LDO is to help deliver the planned growth of 
Oxfordshire’s Science Vale UK Enterprise Zone. It allows a range of types of 
development to be fast tracked which will enable new and existing businesses to 
innovate, grow, and adapt to changing market opportunities, delivering additional 
jobs for the local economy. Details of the Milton Park LDO are available on the 
council’s website16. 

3.24. During 2018/19, there were two permissions granted under the Milton Park LDO. 

 
16 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/milton-park-
local-development-order  

Page 99

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/milton-park-local-development-order
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/milton-park-local-development-order


14 
 

4. Neighbourhood Plans 

4.1. The Government is providing local communities with the opportunity to shape the 
area in which they live and work in by encouraging them to prepare 
Neighbourhood Development Plans. The council strongly encourages and 
supports local communities who wish to prepare a Neighbourhood Development 
Plan. The Localism Act 2011 sets out that Neighbourhood Development Plan(s) 
can be made by a parish or town council, or a neighbourhood forum(s), where a 
parish or town council does not exist. 

4.2. Local communities wishing to play an active role in planning for their area and/or 
community, can: 

• prepare a Neighbourhood Development Plan setting out the vision, objectives 
and planning policies to shape development of their neighbourhood, and/or 

• seek to grant permission directly for certain types of development in their 
neighbourhood, through a Neighbourhood Development Order (NDO) or a 
Community Right to Build Order (CRtBO).  

4.3. To make a Neighbourhood Development Plan, there are formal stages set out in 
legislation that are the responsibility of the qualifying body and the council. The 
Localism Act also places a ‘duty to support’ on the council to guide 
Neighbourhood Development Plan preparation. 

4.4. The council takes a proactive and positive approach to neighbourhood planning, 
providing advice and support to those communities interested in producing 
Neighbourhood Development Plans, Neighbourhood Development Orders or 
Community Right to Build Orders. The aim is to produce high quality plans with a 
good level of community buy-in and to plan effectively for places. 

4.5. As of November 2019, there are 8 made Neighbourhood Plans in the district, with 
1 being made during 2018/19 and 3 being made after 1 April 2019. Table 4 
outlines the current stage of each Neighbourhood Plan. 

Table 4: Neighbourhood Plan Progress 

Plan in 

preparation 

Pre-submission 

consultation 

Plan 

submitted 
Plan made 

Chilton 
Appleton with 

Eaton 

North 

Hinksey 
Ashbury - Made 17 July 2019 

Page 100



15 
 

Plan in 

preparation 

Pre-submission 

consultation 

Plan 

submitted 
Plan made 

Cumnor West Hanney Shrivenham 
Blewbury - Made 14 December 

2016 

East Challow  Wantage Drayton - Made 15 July 2015 

East Hanney   Faringdon - 14 December 2016 

Stanford in the 

Vale 
  

Great Coxwell - Made 15 June 

2016 

Steventon   
Longworth - Made 12 October 

2016 

Sunningwell   Radley - Made 10 October 2018 

Sutton 

Courtenay 
  

Uffington and Baulking - Made 17 

July 2019 

   
Wootton and St Helen Without – 

Made 18 December 2019 

 

Page 101



16 
 

5. Duty to Cooperate 

Introduction 

5.1. Section 110 of the Localism Act 2011 introduced a statutory duty for the council 
to cooperate with neighbouring local authorities and other “prescribed bodies” in 
the preparation of development plans. In response, the council has a duty to 
engage constructively with other councils and public bodies in England on a 
continuous basis, in order to maximise the effectiveness of the Local Plan.  

5.2. The duty to cooperate is not a ‘duty to agree’. However, the council will continue 
to make every effort to secure the necessary cooperation on strategic cross-
boundary matters regarding the Plan. The council must demonstrate how they 
have complied with the duty at the independent examination of any future Plan. 

 

Vale of the White Horse neighbouring authorities and prescribed bodies 

5.3. The relevant bodies to which the duty to cooperate applies in the Vale of White 
Horse, are as follows: 

• Neighbouring authorities:  
o West Oxfordshire District Council 
o South Oxfordshire District Council 
o Cherwell District Council  
o Oxfordshire County Council  
o Oxford City Council  
o West Berkshire Council  
o Swindon Borough Council  
o Wiltshire Council  
o Cotswold District Council  
o Gloucestershire County Council 

• Prescribed bodies as identified in Part 2 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012: 

o The Environment Agency  
o Historic England  
o Natural England  
o Highways England  
o The Civil Aviation Authority  
o The Homes and Communities Agency  

Page 102



17 
 

o Clinical Commissioning Groups  
o The Office of Rail Regulations  
o The Highways Agency  
o Local Enterprise Partnership  

 

Key stages of the duty to cooperate 

5.4. For the period April 2018 to March 2019 the key stages of the duty to cooperate 
related to the Part 2 Plan, and the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  

5.5. The council submitted the Local Plan Part 2 to the Secretary of State on 23 
February 2018 for independent examination. Details of cooperation and 
consultation were given in the Statement of Compliance with the Duty to 
Cooperate17 and the Regulation 22 Statement18. A number of statements of 
common ground were prepared to demonstrate that the legal requirement was 
met19. None of the relevant bodies raised an objection on the grounds that the 
legal duty had not been met.  

5.6. On the 30 October 2018 the inspector noted in his post hearing letter that the 
Duty to Cooperate had been met in the preparation of the Local Plan Part 220. 

5.7. On the 14 February 2018 the Vale of White Horse District Council formally signed 
up to the Oxfordshire Growth Deal21. Throughout the period since there has been 
regular engagement with other Oxfordshire authorities through the Oxfordshire 
Growth Board Officers Group. The agreement also commits Oxfordshire’s five 
district councils to work together to produce a Joint Statutory Spatial Plan, the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050. 

 
17 Available from  
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CSD04%20Statement%20of%20Compliance%20with%
20the%20Duty%20to%20Cooperate.pdf  
18 Available from 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CSD02%20Regulation%2022%20Consultation%20Stat
ement,%20including%20Appendices%201%20and%202.pdf  
19 Statements of Common Grounds, the Part 2 Plan examination library, available from 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=FolderView&ID=950744698&CODE=1
C9B149C854D073B0506367C46E88674&NAME=The%20Local%20Plan%202031%20Part%202:%20De
tailed%20Policies%20and%20Additional%20Sites%20-
%20Examination%20Library&REF=VALE_2031_3&REFERER_URL_IN=&SOVA_IN=VALE#exactline  
20 Available from 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PC03%20Inspectors%20Post%20Hearings%20Letter%
20to%20VOWH%20dated%2030%20October%202018.pdf  
21 Available from https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/270218-Oxon-
letter-to-SoS-on-Deal-DP-270118-with-signatures.pdf 

Page 103

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CSD04%20Statement%20of%20Compliance%20with%20the%20Duty%20to%20Cooperate.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CSD04%20Statement%20of%20Compliance%20with%20the%20Duty%20to%20Cooperate.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CSD02%20Regulation%2022%20Consultation%20Statement,%20including%20Appendices%201%20and%202.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CSD02%20Regulation%2022%20Consultation%20Statement,%20including%20Appendices%201%20and%202.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=FolderView&ID=950744698&CODE=1C9B149C854D073B0506367C46E88674&NAME=The%20Local%20Plan%202031%20Part%202:%20Detailed%20Policies%20and%20Additional%20Sites%20-%20Examination%20Library&REF=VALE_2031_3&REFERER_URL_IN=&SOVA_IN=VALE#exactline
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=FolderView&ID=950744698&CODE=1C9B149C854D073B0506367C46E88674&NAME=The%20Local%20Plan%202031%20Part%202:%20Detailed%20Policies%20and%20Additional%20Sites%20-%20Examination%20Library&REF=VALE_2031_3&REFERER_URL_IN=&SOVA_IN=VALE#exactline
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=FolderView&ID=950744698&CODE=1C9B149C854D073B0506367C46E88674&NAME=The%20Local%20Plan%202031%20Part%202:%20Detailed%20Policies%20and%20Additional%20Sites%20-%20Examination%20Library&REF=VALE_2031_3&REFERER_URL_IN=&SOVA_IN=VALE#exactline
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=FolderView&ID=950744698&CODE=1C9B149C854D073B0506367C46E88674&NAME=The%20Local%20Plan%202031%20Part%202:%20Detailed%20Policies%20and%20Additional%20Sites%20-%20Examination%20Library&REF=VALE_2031_3&REFERER_URL_IN=&SOVA_IN=VALE#exactline
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PC03%20Inspectors%20Post%20Hearings%20Letter%20to%20VOWH%20dated%2030%20October%202018.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PC03%20Inspectors%20Post%20Hearings%20Letter%20to%20VOWH%20dated%2030%20October%202018.pdf
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/270218-Oxon-letter-to-SoS-on-Deal-DP-270118-with-signatures.pdf
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/270218-Oxon-letter-to-SoS-on-Deal-DP-270118-with-signatures.pdf


18 
 

5.8. During 2018/19 work has started on developing the Oxfordshire Plan with input 
from council members and officers through the Member sub-group, Officer 
Project Board and Liaison Team22. A Statement of Community Involvement was 
published in February 201923. A Local Development Scheme was published in 
October 201824. The first stage of public consultation (Regulation 18 part 1) was 
conducted during February/March 2019 with a report published in June 201925. 

 
22 http://oxfordshireplan.org/about/#governance 
23 Available from https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Statement-of-Community-
Involvement-February-2019.pdf 
24 Available from https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Local-Development-Scheme-
October-2018.pdf 
25 Available from https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Reg-18-Part-1-Consultation-
Summary.pdf 

Page 104

http://oxfordshireplan.org/about/#governance
https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Statement-of-Community-Involvement-February-2019.pdf
https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Statement-of-Community-Involvement-February-2019.pdf
https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Local-Development-Scheme-October-2018.pdf
https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Local-Development-Scheme-October-2018.pdf
https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Reg-18-Part-1-Consultation-Summary.pdf
https://oxfordshireplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Reg-18-Part-1-Consultation-Summary.pdf


19 
 

6. Spatial Strategy 

Core Policy 4: Meeting the Housing Need 

6.1. The Part 1 Plan identifies the district’s housing requirement (20,560 dwellings) 
which is based on the district’s objectively assessed housing need (OAN). In 
addition to its own need the council also committed to help to deliver housing to 
meet Oxford City’s unmet housing need, which will be monitored and reported on 
through the 2019/2020 report. The OAN was determined by the Oxfordshire 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment26 (SHMA), which was published in 2014. 
The Part 1 Plan also provides policies on housing density and mix (Core Policies 
22 and 23 respectively).  

6.2. Core Policy 4: Meeting the Housing Need, in the Part 1 Plan describes how the 
council plans to meet the housing requirement of the district. Table 5 sets out the 
progress made towards this target, with the housing trajectory for the Part 1 Plan 
provided in Appendix A.  

Table 5: Housing completions and permissions 

Policy Indicator 2018/19 Progress 

CP4 

Number of dwellings 
completed district wide 

1,258 
So far 7,511 dwellings 

have been completed over 
the plan period. Over the 

remaining plan period 
13,049 dwellings are 

required. 

Net Number of 
dwellings currently with 
permission (Outline or 
full Permission) as of 

31/03/1927 

11,178 

Number of Dwellings 
allocated through the 

Part 2 Plan and NDP's 

Part 2 Plan – 2,42028                  
NDP's29- 0                

The Part 2 Plan allocates 
additional dwellings. 

 
26 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/new-local-plan-2031/evidence-base/strategi  
27 Does not include applications that have a Resolution to Grant 
28 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/local-plan-2031-part-2  
29 Drayton Neighbourhood Plan allocated 3 sites of which one is now complete and 2 are under construction 

Page 105

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/new-local-plan-2031/evidence-base/strategi
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/new-local-plan-2031/evidence-base/strategi
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/local-plan-2031-part-2
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/local-plan-2031-part-2


20 
 

 

6.3. The number of dwellings completed in 2018/19 was 1,258 dwellings which 
exceeds the Part 1 Plan target of 1028 dwellings per annum, with positive 
progress made towards the overall housing target. The total completions for the 
first 8 years of the plan period (2011-2019) was 7,511 dwellings. The council will 
monitor the revised housing requirement, as set out in the Part 2 Plan, in future 
monitoring reports following a full year of implementation of the Part 2 Plan.  

 

Core Policy 5: Housing Supply Ringfence 

6.4. Core Policy 5 sets out how the council will employ a ring-fence approach to 
housing delivery in the Science Vale area. For the purposes of the assessment of 
housing land supply, the ring-fence area will be treated as a separate Sub-Area 
with a housing requirement of 11,850 homes in the plan period (593 homes per 
annum) in support of the 15,850 jobs planned in this Sub-Area and as a 
contribution towards the district’s housing need set out in Core Policy 4.  

6.5. Table 6 outlines the net completions within the Science Vale ringfence area and 
the rest of the district.  

Table 6: Housing completions by housing supply area 

 

Year 
Number of dwellings completed 

Whole District Science Vale Ringfence Area Rest of District Area 

2011/12 346 39 307 

2012/13 268 140 128 

2013/14 578 154 424 

2014/15 740 204 536 

2015/16 1,133 474 659 

2016/17 1,615 486 1,129 

2017/18 1,620 779 841 

2018/19 1,258 514 744 

Total 7,511 2,790 4,721 

Page 106



21 
 

6.6. The updated NPPF states “Local planning authorities should identify and update 
annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide a minimum of 
five years’ worth of housing against their housing requirement set out in adopted 
strategic policies, or against their local housing need where the strategic policies 
are more than five years old. The supply of specific deliverable sites should in 
addition include a buffer (moved forward from later in the plan period) of:  

• 5% to ensure choice and competition in the market for land; or the delivery of 
large scale developments may need to extend beyond an individual plan 
period, and the associated infrastructure requirements may not be capable of 
being identified fully at the outset. Anticipated rates of delivery and 
infrastructure requirements should, therefore, be kept under review and 
reflected as policies are updated.  

• 10% where the local planning authority wishes to demonstrate a five-year 
supply of deliverable sites through an annual position statement or recently 
adopted plan, to account for any fluctuations in the market during that year; 
or  

• 20% where there has been significant under delivery of housing over the 
previous three years, to improve the prospect of achieving the planned 
supply.”30 

6.7. The council published an updated housing supply statement in July 201931. This 
shows that the Vale has a district wide supply of 5.1 years, with supply in the 
Science Vale being 4.4 years and in the Rest of District 6.1 years. The supply 
calculation for both Sub-Areas and the district includes a 5% buffer, as indicated 
by housing delivery in the preceding 3 years.  

6.8. Appendices A, B and C provide the housing trajectories over the plan period for 
the district, and for the housing supply areas. 

6.9. A key indicator for Core Policy 5 is jobs growth. As is shown by the indicators for 
Core Policies 6 and 15, there has been strong jobs growth in the district with 
significant employment land permitted over the plan period in the South East 
Vale Sub-Area, which largely aligns with the Science Vale area.  

 

 
30 Paragraph 73, Revised NPPF, available from 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/74044
1/National_Planning_Policy_Framework_web_accessible_version.pdf  
31 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Vale%205yhls%20July%202019_0.pdf 

Page 107

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/740441/National_Planning_Policy_Framework_web_accessible_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/740441/National_Planning_Policy_Framework_web_accessible_version.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Vale%205yhls%20July%202019_0.pdf


22 
 

Core Policy 6: Meeting Business and Employment Needs 

6.10. The Part 1 Plan sets out the required employment land needed to support the 
delivery of new jobs and ensure there is sufficient land available to support the 
projected employment growth. 

6.11. Core Policy 6: Meeting Business and Employment Needs specifies the scale and 
location of opportunities for economic growth to ensure that sufficient land is 
provided across the district in appropriate locations. The Part 1 Plan identifies a 
need of 218 hectares of employment land, and it projects an additional 23,000 
jobs over the Plan’s period. Table 7 set out the progress made towards these 
targets and shows that since 2011 there has been an increase of approximately 
10,000 jobs delivered in the district. Table 7 also shows that 162 hectares of land 
has been permitted on strategic employment sites, with Table 8 providing a 
breakdown of this in regard to permitted use classes and net floorspace. The 
significant increase in both land and floorspace during 2018/19 come largely from 
permissions on the former Didcot A power station site and the strategic 
employment site on Sutton Courtenay Lane. 

Table 7: Monitoring of employment land and jobs  

 
32 Available from https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabjobs  

Policy Indicator 2018/19 2011-19 Progress 

CP6 

Amount of 
employment 

land 
permitted on 

allocated 
sites 

56 
hectares 

162 
hectares 

162 hectares of employment land 
permitted over the plan period. so far 
demonstrating good progress. There 
is 56 hectares of employment land 

remaining to be developed. 

Jobs growth 
(latest data 

runs to 
2017)32 

N/A 10,000 

It is expected that there will be 
13,000 additional jobs created in the 
district over the remaining years of 
the plan period. Good progress has 

been made so far towards the overall 
total of 23,000 jobs. 

Business 
Counts 

30 840 N/A 

Page 108

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabjobs


23 
 

  

6.12. Table 8 provides the net amount of floorspace permitted on strategic sites in the 
district by use class34. This demonstrates there has been substantial progress 
made towards the delivery of employment floorspace. 

Table 8: Net floorspace (m2) permitted by use class 

 

Core Policy 7: Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services 

6.13. Core Policy 7: Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services, specifies how all 
new development will be required to provide necessary on-site and, where 
appropriate, off-site infrastructure requirements arising from new housing and 
employment development. The type and level of infrastructure and service 
provision associated with development is set out in more detail in the Vale’s 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)35 and the site development templates in 
Appendix A of the Part 1 Plan. Monitoring of Core Policy 33 provides information 
on the progress of key infrastructure projects in the district.  

6.14. Table 26 provides an update on the key transport projects in the district.  

6.15. The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a levy charged on new development 
in the Vale.  The money raised will be used to fund infrastructure to support 
growth in the district, in accordance with our spending priorities.  The CIL 
charging schedule was adopted on the 27 September 2017, with implementation 
from the 01 November 2017. The total money received through CIL in 2018/19 (1 
April 2018 to 31 March 2019) was £461,129.99. During 2018/19, there was no 

 
33 Available from https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabidbr  
34 This includes permissions for all types of land use other than C3 residential  
35 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/delivering-infrastructure 

Growth - 
Enterprises33 

Period A Class B Class C Class D Class S/G 

2018/19 13,500 173,922 0 -216 0 

2011-2019 23,057 327,790 21,528 31,230 14,437 

Page 109

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157326/report.aspx#tabidbr
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/delivering-infrastructure
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/delivering-infrastructure


24 
 

CIL expenditure, £34,285.70 was transferred to town/parish councils and 
£23,056.50 was applied to administrative costs. More detailed information can be 
found in the CIL Annual Financial statement 2018/1936. A total of £13,494,983.07 
was received in 2018/19 from S106 contributions for infrastructure in the Vale of 
White Horse. 

 
36 Available from 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019%20CIL%20Annual%20Financial%20Statement%
20-%20Vale.pdf 

Page 110

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019%20CIL%20Annual%20Financial%20Statement%20-%20Vale.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019%20CIL%20Annual%20Financial%20Statement%20-%20Vale.pdf


25 
 

7. Sub-Area Strategies 

Abingdon-on-Thames & Oxford Fringe Sub-Area Strategy 

Core Policy 8: Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford 

Fringe Sub-Area 

7.1. Core Policy 8 sets out the spatial strategy for the Abingdon-on-Thames and 
Oxford Fringe Sub-Area, with the aim being to maintain the service and 
employment centre roles for Abingdon-on-Thames and Botley. It sets out a 
housing requirement of 5,438 homes to be delivered and identifies 3.2 hectares 
of employment for future business and employment growth.  

7.2. Table 9 shows the net housing completions in the Sub-Area since the start of the 
plan period. This shows that housing delivery in the Sub-Area is on track to meet 
the housing requirement and is currently over delivering on the annual 
requirement, with a surplus of 889 dwellings over the plan period.  

Table 9: Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area housing completions 

Abingdon-on-
Thames and 

Oxford Fringe 
Sub-Area 

Annual Housing 
completions 

Annual Housing requirement 

2011/12 77 272 

2012/13 79 272 

2013/14 304 272 

2014/15 256 272 

2015/16 444 272 

2016/17 899 272 

Page 111



26 
 

 

7.3. Core Policy 8 sets out that development in the Sub-Area should be in line with 
the settlement hierarchy as set out in Core Policy 3. Figure 2 sets out the 
proportion of housing completions in each settlement category within the Sub-
Area over the plan period. This shows that the majority of growth has been 
delivered in the Market Town, Local Service Centre and Larger Villages, with no 
development in the open countryside, in accordance with the settlement 
hierarchy.  

Figure 2: Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area housing delivery by settlement 
category, 2011-2019 

 

 

19%

15%

60%

6%

0%

Market Town

Local Service Centre

Larger Village

Smaller Village

Open Countryside

2017/18 533 272 

2018/19 473 272 

Total 3,065 2,176 

Average 383 272 

Page 112



27 
 

7.4. Substantial progress is being made on strategic allocations in the Sub-Area, with 
all sites having either outline or full permission and one under construction; 

• North of Abingdon-on-Thames- Outline permission was granted in November 
2017 for up 950 dwellings and an 80-bed care home, C2 use. Reserved 
matters applications for initial phases were received in August and October 
2019.  

• North-West of Abingdon-on-Thames- Outline permission was granted in 
February 2018 for 200 homes on the site that is east of Wootton road. A 
Reserved Matters application was submitted in January 2019.  

• North-West of Radley- Outline permission was granted in July 2019 for up to 
240 dwellings.  

• South of Kennington- Full permission was granted in March 2019 for 283 
dwellings, with delivery expected to start in 2019/20. 

• East of Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor- Site is under construction, with 
75 completed as of 1 April 2019.  

7.5. Core Policy 8 also sets out the amount of employment land to be delivered in the 
Sub-Area. Table 10 shows that permissions have been granted on nearly 2.5 
hectares of strategic employment sites in the Sub-Area. As Table 11 shows, 
there has been strong increases in the amount of employment floorspace on the 
allocated sites. 

Table 10: Abingdon-on-Thames & Oxford Fringe Sub-Area employment permissions 

 

Policy Indicator 2018/19 2011-19 Target 

CP8 

Amount of 
employment land 

permitted on 
allocated sites 

0 2.49 hectares 3.2 Hectares 

Page 113



28 
 

Table 11: Floorspace permitted at employment allocations 2011-2019, Abingdon-on-Thames & 
Oxford Fringe Sub-Area 

 

 

Core Policy 9: Harcourt Hill Campus 

7.6. In December 2012, Oxford Brookes University published a Harcourt Hill Campus 
Masterplan37. In January 2015, the university announced a ten-year estates 
investment plan38. The plan set out a programme of refurbishment and potential 
new build on the Harcourt Hill campus. This was updated in November 2016 with 
the announcement of a vision39 which reconfigured activities across the Oxford 
campuses. The status of the Harcourt Hill campus is currently under review40. 

 

 
37 http://static.brookes.ac.uk/spacetothink/documents/harcourt-hill-masterplan-dec2012-lowres.pdf 
38 https://www.brookes.ac.uk/about-brookes/news/ten-year-investment-plan-for-oxford-brookes--estate/ 
39 https://www.brookes.ac.uk/space-to-think/our-vision/ 
40 https://www.brookes.ac.uk/space-to-think/campuses/harcourt-hill-campus/ 

Employment 
allocation 

A class 
(m2) 

B Class 
(m2) 

C Class 
(m2) 

D Class 
(m2) 

S/G class 
(m2) 

Abingdon Business 
Park 

0 5,575 0 478 427 

Abingdon Science 
Park 

0 4,735 0 0 0 

Cumnor Hill 0 0 0 0 0 

Wootton Business 
Park 

0 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 10,310 0 478 427 

Page 114

http://static.brookes.ac.uk/spacetothink/documents/harcourt-hill-masterplan-dec2012-lowres.pdf
https://www.brookes.ac.uk/about-brookes/news/ten-year-investment-plan-for-oxford-brookes--estate/
https://www.brookes.ac.uk/space-to-think/our-vision/
https://www.brookes.ac.uk/space-to-think/campuses/harcourt-hill-campus/


29 
 

Core Policy 10: Abbey Shopping Centre and the Charter, Abingdon-on-

Thames 

7.7. Core Policy 10 relates to the Abbey Shopping Centre and Charter Area in 
Abingdon-on-Thames. The policy states that proposals for retail led development 
will be supported in line with the adopted Supplementary Planning Document. 
During 2018/19 there were no applications permitted for retail development, or 
for the loss of current retail uses. 

 

Core Policy 11: Botley Central Area 

7.8. The West Way Shopping Centre in Botley is identified in the Part 1 Plan as in 
need of redevelopment to fulfil its potential. Core Policy 11 ensures that any 
proposals for redevelopment in the Botley Central Area will be supported as long 
as they support Botley’s role as a Local Service Centre. 

7.9. In September 2016 permission was granted for the redevelopment of the West 
Way shopping centre which will provide net additional retail floorspace of nearly 
1,500m2, along with residential and academic accommodation. The 
redevelopment will provide 20 retail units and, a food store with other supporting 
commercial uses. There are also a range of community and leisure uses 
proposed including a hotel, replacement library, replacement community hall and 
replacement Baptist church. This all fits within the parameters defined by the 
policy. During 2018/19, 2 permissions were granted for temporary works and 
variations to conditions to enable the redevelopment. The site is under 
construction and is due to open in summer 2020. 

 

Core Policy 12: Safeguarding of Land for Strategic Highway 

Improvements within the Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe 

Sub-Area 

7.10. Core Policy 12 sets out land to be safeguarded within the Sub-Area for strategic 
highway improvements. This ensures that no planning permissions will be 
granted on safeguarded land that will prejudice the delivery of key highway 
projects. 

7.11. During 2018/19 no permissions were granted on safeguarded land that would 
impact the delivery of the identified schemes. 

Page 115



30 
 

 

Core Policy 13: The Oxford Green Belt 

7.12. The Oxford Green Belt was first conceived in 1956 and its boundaries approved 
in 1975, some 40 years ago. The purpose of the Oxford Green Belt in the Vale of 
White Horse District is to prevent urban sprawl around Oxford by keeping the 
land permanently open, and to preserve the rural setting and special character of 
the city of Oxford. 

7.13. Core Policy 13 sets out that development can be permitted in a number of 
settlements within the Green Belt where the development is within the existing 
built area of the settlement and defines the types of development that are 
considered acceptable in the Green Belt.  

7.14. During 2018/19 there were approximately 83 permissions granted for new 
development in the Green Belt. These applications were all granted in line with 
Core Policy 13 and were considered to be appropriate development in the Green 
Belt.  

 

Core Policy 14: Strategic Water Storage Reservoirs 

7.15. Core Policy 14 safeguards land for a reservoir and ancillary works between the 
settlements of Drayton, East Hanney and Steventon, and to the north of 
Longworth unless subsequent publication of Thames Water’s Resources 
Management Plan 2019 indicates that the location is not necessary for future 
reservoir provision41. Development that might prejudice the implementation of a 
new reservoir on the safeguarded sites will be refused. 

7.16. During 2018/19, there was one permission granted near the safeguarded area. 
The site is not within the safeguarded area as set out in CP14 but it does lie 
within the extended safeguarded area as set out in Policy CP14a Local Plan 
2031 Part 2. It was decided that the location and type of development would not 
significantly prejudice the implementation of the new reservoir. 

 
41 The land North of Longworth is omitted in Local Plan 2031 Part 2, Core Policy 14a following the Thames 
Water WRMP19 Resource Options - Fine Screening Report Update (April 2017), which confirms that the 
site no longer needs to be safeguarded. 
 

Page 116



31 
 

 

South East Vale Sub-Area Strategy 

Core Policy 15: Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area 

7.17. Core Policy 15 sets out the spatial strategy for the South East Vale, stating the 
overarching priority for the Sub-Area is to secure the aligned delivery of housing 
and employment growth together with the infrastructure required to achieve 
sustainable development. Development in the Sub-Area should also be in 
accordance with the settlement hierarchy set out in Core Policy 3.  

7.18. The policy sets out the requirement of at least 12,450 homes to be delivered in 
the plan period, with 9,055 homes to come through strategic allocations. CP15 
also sets out the requirement of 208 hectares of employment land to be provided 
for business and employment growth in the Sub-Area. Table 12 sets out the 
housing completions in the Sub-Area since the beginning of the plan period.  

Page 117



32 
 

Table 12: South East Vale Sub Area housing completions 

 

7.19. Table 12 shows that there has been an overall shortfall in housing delivery in the 
South East Sub-Area of 2,125 dwellings. However, delivery has improved since 
the Adoption of the Part 1 Plan. Figure 3 shows the housing growth in the Sub-
Area according to the settlement hierarchy.  

South East Vale Sub-Area 
Annual Housing 

completions 
Annual Housing 

requirement 

2011/12 53 623 

2012/13 140 623 

2013/14 154 623 

2014/15 206 623 

2015/16 479 623 

2016/17 504 623 

2017/18 802 623 

2018/19 521 623 

Total 2,859 4,984 

Average 357 623 

Page 118



33 
 

Figure 3: South East Vale Sub-Area housing delivery by settlement category, 2011-2019 

 

 

7.20. Figure 3 shows that housing growth in the South East Vale Sub-Area is in line 
with the settlement hierarchy, with the majority of housing being delivered in the 
Market Town and Local Service Centre. Of the 323 homes delivered in smaller 
villages in the Sub-Area a development at Land to the South of Chilton Field, 
which was allocated in the 2011 Local Plan, accounted for 275 of these and 
another site in Chilton accounted for 18. All other development in the smaller 
villages was of small scale, with no site delivering more than 4 dwellings in the 
period. There is almost no housing being delivered in the open countryside which 
is in accordance with the Policy.  

7.21. The Part 1 Plan allocated sites in the Sub-Area are making good progress 
towards delivery with the majority of allocated sites having full or outline 
permission, and construction has started on 5 sites; 

• Milton Heights- Site received full permission in October 2017 and is under 
construction with 13 homes delivered in 2018/19. 

• Valley Park- This site received a resolution to grant permission at planning 
committee in April 2016. Work on the completion of the S106 is ongoing.  

46%

16%

27%

11%

0%

Market Town

Local Service Centre

Larger Village

Smaller Village

Open Countryside

Page 119



34 
 

• North West Valley Park- No application has been submitted 

• West of Harwell- This site has full permission and is currently under 
construction, with 97 homes completed up to 1 April 2019.  

• Crab Hill- Outline permission was granted in July 2015 for 1,500 homes. A 
number of reserved matters applications have been submitted and permitted, 
and work has commenced on site with 18 homes delivered in 2018/19.  

• Monks Farm- This site allocation has had a number of different applications 
submitted. There are 368 homes that have detailed permissions through 3 
separate applications with 183 homes delivered up to 1 April 2019. An outline 
application submitted for around 400 homes was given resolution to grant at 
planning committee in July 2018, this is expected to be finalised in the near 
future. 

• Grove Airfield- Outline permission was granted in July 2017 for 2500 homes 
on this site. Since April 2018 three reserved matters applications have been 
permitted and construction has started, with 13 homes delivered during 
2018/19.  

• East of Sutton Courtenay- Outline application was submitted on this site and 
was refused in August 2019. 

7.22. Table 13 sets out the progress in the South East Sub-Area in regard to 
employment. There was sharp growth in the early years of the plan period, 
strongly influenced by the creation of the enterprise zones at Harwell and Milton. 
The significant increase during 2018/19 has come largely from permissions on 
the former Didcot A power station site and the strategic employment site on 
Sutton Courtenay Lane. 

Table 13: South East Vale employment permissions 

 

7.23. Table 14 sets out the amount of net change of floorspace at each allocation by 
use class. As is shown, the vast majority of the floorspace permitted is B use 
class. 

Policy Indicator 2018/19 2011-2019 Target 2011-2031 

CP15 

Amount of 
employment land 

permitted on strategic 
and allocated sites 

58.27 
hectares 
(gross) 

162.25 
hectares 
(gross) 

208 Hectares 

Page 120



35 
 

Table 14: Floorspace permitted on employment allocations 2011-2019, South East Vale 

 

7.24. The Milton Park LDO sets out the permitted uses of applications in the Enterprise 
Zone area. Table 14 provides the floorspace permitted for the LDO, which is in 
line with these permitted uses.  

 

Core Policy 16: Didcot A Power Station 

7.25. Core Policy 16 states the council’s support for the redevelopment of Didcot A 
power station to provide a high quality mixed use development and provides the 
key design principles for the development. An application for a mixed-use 
development was given outline permission in February 2019.  

7.26. The policy also safeguards land for the proposed route of the new Science 
Bridge and A4130 re-routing. No planning applications have been granted that 
would prejudice the construction or operation of this highway infrastructure. 

 

Employment 

allocation 

A class 

(m2) 

B Class 

(m2) 

C Class 

(m2) 

D Class 

(m2) 
S/G (m2) 

Milton Park 497 53,981 14,258 0 14,438 

Harwell campus 0 66,169 7,270 1,700 307 

Monks Farm, North 

Grove 

0 0 0 0 0 

Didcot A 13500 157,363 0 0 0 

Milton Hill Business 

and Technology 

Park 

0 13,789 0 0 268 

Grove Technology 0 2,587 0 0 240 

Total  13,997   293,889   21,528   1,700   15,253  

Page 121



36 
 

Core Policy 17: Delivery of Strategic Highway Improvements within the 

South East Vale Sub-Area 

7.27. In order to deliver the growth in the South East Vale Sub-Area and the wider 
Science Vale area, the Science Vale Area Strategy has identified highways 
infrastructure to mitigate the impact of the planned growth across Science Vale 
and secure the future economic viability of the area. Other infrastructure needs 
will be considered through the development of the Local Transport Plan 4 being 
progressed by Oxfordshire County Council, and the Part 2 Plan.  

7.28. There has been progress on a number of infrastructure projects in the South East 
Vale. Improvements to Milton and Chilton interchanges, Backhill lane cycle and 
pedestrian scheme have been completed with a number of projects in the Access 
to Economic Zone42 package also complete.  

7.29. The CIL annual financial report43 details the amount of CIL money received and 
spent and can be found on the council website44. The county and district councils 
have received nearly £2.9 million from S106 funding related to allocated sites in 
the Sub-Area.  

 

Core Policy 18: Safeguarding of land for Transport Schemes in the 

South East Vale Sub-Area 

7.30. Core Policy 18 sets out the land safeguarded to support the delivery of 
infrastructure schemes in the Sub-Area. There were no planning applications 
approved in 2018/19 that would prejudice the transport schemes. 

 

Core Policy 19: Re-opening of Grove Railway Station 

7.31. Core Policy 19 states the council’s support for the re-opening of Grove railway 
station and ensures that no planning applications that would prejudice the 
delivery of the station will be permitted on land identified for the development. As 

 
42 As set out in table 5 of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, available from 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Updated%20IDP.PDF  
43 Available from 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CIL%20Statement%202017_18%20Vale.pdf  
44 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/delivering-infrastructure/community-infras 

Page 122

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Updated%20IDP.PDF
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/CIL%20Statement%202017_18%20Vale.pdf
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/delivering-infrastructure/community-infras
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/delivering-infrastructure/community-infras


37 
 

mentioned above, there have been no planning applications approved on the 
safeguarded land that would prejudice the railway station coming forward.  

7.32. Detailed feasibility works are underway to inform the preferred location of the 
new railway station and the Local Transport Plan has identified the need to 
safeguard a wider area for the provision of a new station45. Core Policy 18a and 
19a in the Part 2 Plan seek to update the Part 1 Plan policies relating to this.  

 

Western Vale Sub-Area Strategy 

Core Policy 20: Spatial Strategy for Western Vale Sub-Area 

7.33. The spatial strategy for the Western Vale is set out in Core Policy 20 of the Part 1 
Plan. It sets out that the overarching priority for the Sub-Area is to protect the 
service centre role of Faringdon and deliver a balance of housing and 
employment to improve the self-sufficiency of the area and to protect the vitality 
and viability of our rural communities. The housing requirement for the Sub-Area 
is 3,173 new homes, with 1,650 delivered through strategic allocations. 7.38 
hectares of employment has been identified to provide for business and 
employment growth, whilst strategic employment sites have also been 
safeguarded.  

7.34. Table 15 sets out housing delivery in the Sub-Area against the housing 
requirement since the start of the plan period. This shows that Western Vale has 
been meeting its housing requirement and has slightly over delivered in the 
previous plan years, with a surplus of 315 dwellings over the plan period.   

 

 
45Page 52, 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/dynamic_serve.jsp?ID=961882223&CODE=A7CCE4B786B
5EC90B866FD9194A937C4  

Page 123

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/dynamic_serve.jsp?ID=961882223&CODE=A7CCE4B786B5EC90B866FD9194A937C4
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/dynamic_serve.jsp?ID=961882223&CODE=A7CCE4B786B5EC90B866FD9194A937C4


38 
 

Table 15: Western Vale Sub-Area housing completions 

 

7.35. Figure 4 illustrates the split of development according to the settlement hierarchy. 
The majority of growth has been in the Market Town and Larger Villages, in line 
with the settlement hierarchy. There has been a small amount of growth in the 
open countryside, which has largely come through the change of use and 
redevelopment of agricultural buildings, which is in accordance with the overall 
Development Plan.   

Western Vale Sub-
Area 

Annual Housing 
completions 

Annual Housing 
requirement 

2011/12 216 159 

2012/13 49 159 

2013/14 120 159 

2014/15 278 159 

2015/16 210 159 

2016/17 212 159 

2017/18 238 159 

2018/19 264 159 

Total 1,587 1,272 

Average 198 159 

Page 124



39 
 

Figure 4: Western Vale Sub-Area housing delivery by settlement category, 2011-2019 

 

 

7.36. The progress of the strategic allocations in the Western Vale is set out below. 
This shows that substantial progress is made with strategic allocations in the 
Western Vale, five sites have permission and two sites are under construction; 

• Land South of Park Road- A hybrid application for 425 homes was submitted 
in April 2017 which included detailed permission for 103 homes and outline 
permission for 322 homes. This application was given resolution to grant in 
September 2018.  

• West of Stanford in the Vale- This site has two outline permissions which 
were granted during 2016/17. Reserved matters applications for both parts of 
the site were received in August 2018 and are currently under consideration.  

• South of Faringdon- Detailed permission was granted for this site in June 
2017. Construction has commenced with 83 homes being completed up to 1 
April 2019.  

• South West of Faringdon- An application on this site was submitted in March 
2016, with outline permission granted in June 2018.  

• East of Coxwell road- This site is under construction with a total of 135 
homes being completed up to 1 April 2019. 

39%

43%

12%

6%

Market Town

Larger Village

Smaller Village

Open Countryside

Page 125



40 
 

• North of Shrivenham- This site has two outline permissions for 240 and 275 
homes granted in April and October 2017 respectively. Reserved matters 
were granted for 240 homes in November 2018.  

7.37. Table 16 sets out the progress in the Sub-Area to meeting its employment land 
requirement. It shows that the overall target for the plan period has been met, 
having permitted over the target land amount.  

 Table 16: Western Vale employment permissions 

 

7.38. The floorspace permitted at each strategic allocation site is set out in Table 17.  

Table 17: Floorspace permitted on employment allocations 2011-2019, Western Vale 

Employment 
allocation 

A class 
(m2) 

B Class 
(m2) 

C Class 
(m2) 

D Class 
(m2) 

S/G class 
(m2) 

South of Park Road, 
Faringdon 

0 0 0 0 0 

Land adjacent to A420 
(4 & 20 site), Faringdon 

2,817 1,189 0 0 0 

Land north of Park 
Road (HCA site), 

Faringdon 

2247 -2013 0 0 -680 

Total 5,064 -824 0 0 -680 

Policy Indicator 2018/19 2011-2019 Target 2011-2031 

CP20 

Amount of 
employment land 

permitted on 
strategic and 

allocated sites 

0 hectares 
13.01 

hectares 
(gross) 

7.4 Hectares 

Page 126



41 
 

 

Core Policy 21: Safeguarding of Land for Strategic Highway 

Improvements within the Western Vale Sub-Area 

7.39. Core Policy 21 sets out the safeguarded land in the Western Vale, with 2 areas 
around Shrivenham and one by Great Coxwell and Faringdon. Maps of the areas 
can be found in the appendices of the Part 1 Plan. There have been no relevant 
planning applications permitted that would prejudice the delivery of key 
infrastructure projects on this land.

Page 127



42 
 

8. District Wide Policies 

Building Healthy and Sustainable Communities 

Core Policy 22: Housing Mix 

8.1. Core Policy 22 details the mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet the needs of 
current and future households on all new residential development, in accordance 
with the Oxfordshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2014. It is important 
to note that Core Policy 22 in the Part 1 Plan takes a flexible approach to the 
implementation of housing mix46 to ensure the viability of schemes. The SHMA 
also identifies that when applying the housing mix targets regard should be had 
to “the nature of the development site and character of the area, and to up-to-
date evidence of need as well as the existing mix and turnover of properties at 
the local level.”47 This means that there can be some diversion from the SHMA 
targets.  

8.2. Table 18 below provides information for the combined market and affordable 
housing mix on sites given permission during 2018/19. This does not represent 
all permissions in 2018/19, only permissions where bed split data was available, 
for example outline permissions may not include an agreed housing mix. It shows 
the number of 1 bed and 3 bed properties permitted being under the target and 
the number of 2 beds and 4 beds permitted being over the target.  

Table 18: Housing permissions bed split, 2018/19 

 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ bed 

Percentage 10% 34% 33% 23% 

SHMA Target Percentage 15% 30% 40% 15% 

 

8.3. Table 19 shows the bed split of market housing permitted in 2018/19. 1 bed unit 
provision is over the SHMA target, with 3 bed units having under provision. 
Permissions for 2 bed and 4 bed units are in line with SHMA target percentages. 

 
46 Core Policy 22, Page 106, available from 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/359975%20VWH%20Plan_Body_DIGITAL%205-7.pdf  
47 Paragraph 7.4, Page 137, Strategic Market Housing Assessment 2014, available from 
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2014-04-14_Final%20SHMA%20Report.pdf  

Page 128

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/359975%20VWH%20Plan_Body_DIGITAL%205-7.pdf
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2014-04-14_Final%20SHMA%20Report.pdf


43 
 

The high level of 1 bed units is due to applications for apartments for the elderly 
as noted in paragraph 8.6 below. 

Table 19: Market Housing permissions bed split, 2018/19 

 

8.4. Table 20 shows the bed split of affordable housing permitted in 2018/19, against 
the targets set out in the SHMA. Welfare reform since the publication of the 
SHMA has resulted in a significant number of households being unable to access 
the smallest and largest units, with a corresponding increase in demand for 2 and 
3 bed units. In accordance with CP22 housing register data is also being used to 
inform need, as part of a wider demand analysis. As of 31 March 2019, housing 
register demand was predominantly for 1 and 2 bed units. A lower proportion of 1 
bed units and a higher proportion of 2 and 3 bed units were permitted during 
2018/19 relative to this demand. 

Table 20: Affordable housing permissions bed split, 2018/19 

 

8.5. During 2018/19, there was one permission granted for C2 use. This was for 
redevelopment of an existing building to provide 72 new student bedrooms at a 
boarding school. 

 
48 The percentage figures have been rounded to the nearest whole number 
49 The percentage figures have been rounded to the nearest whole number 

 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ bed 

Percentage 9% 24% 35% 32% 

SHMA Target Percentage48 6% 22% 43% 29% 

 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ bed 

Percentage 13% 56% 27% 4% 

SHMA Target Percentage49 27% 35% 34% 4% 

Page 129



44 
 

8.6. There were 39 class C3 apartments for the elderly approved in 2018/19. Of 
these, 26 were 1 bed units and 13 were 2 bed units.  

 

Core Policy 23: Housing Density 

8.7. Core policy 23 specifies the minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare that the 
council will seek on all new housing development, unless material considerations 
and/or circumstances indicate otherwise. The policy gives a minimum 
requirement and encourages higher densities where appropriate. Densities 
above this level would be a positive indicator of efficient development but 
excessively high densities might have adverse effects. 

8.8. The average density on sites permitted in 2018/19 was 37 dwellings per hectare. 
This is above the minimum requirement and shows that efficient use of land is 
being achieved.  

 

Core Policy 24: Affordable Housing 

8.9. The 2014 SHMA assessed the affordable housing needs within the district and 
determined there was a need of 273 dwellings annually. To address this need, 
Core Policy 24 in the Part 1 Plan states that for housing developments providing 
a net gain of eleven dwellings or more the council will seek 35% provision of 
affordable housing, subject to viability50. Core Policy 24 also states that the 
affordable housing provided should be split into rent (either social or affordable) 
and intermediate, with a 75:25 split respectively. Table 21 and Table 22 show 
that delivery is generally in accordance with these targets over the plan period. 
Against the target of 273 dwellings as put forward by the SHMA, the district has 
exceeded the target for the past 4 years 

8.10. CP24 provides the council target of 35% of affordable housing on sites of 11 
dwellings or more, subject to the viability of provision on each site. In November 
2014 a Written Ministerial Statement was issued, which stated that affordable 
housing contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 dwellings or 

 
50 Paragraph 63 of the updated NPPF states that “affordable housing should not be sought for residential 
developments that are not major developments, other than in designated rural areas”. A major development 
is defined as a site of providing 10 or more homes. This supersedes the threshold set out in adopted policy 
CP24 and has been applied when monitoring this policy. 

Page 130



45 
 

less51. Paragraph 63 of the revised NPPF52 now states that affordable housing 
provision should not be sought on residential developments that are not major 
developments53.  

Table 21: Delivery of affordable housing by type, 2011-2019 

Year Affordable rent 
Shared 

ownership 
Total 

2011/12 51 12 63 

2012/13 93 50 143 

2013/14 42 25 67 

2014/15 193 57 250 

2015/16 241 85 326 

2016/17 265 71 336 

2017/18 200 111 311 

2018/19 254 138 392 

Total Percentage share 71% 29% 1888 

 

Table 22: Affordable housing delivery against 35% target, 2011-2019 

Year 

Total Dwellings 

(Sites with net gain 

of 11+) 

Affordable units 
Percentage (Target 

35%) 

2011/12 223 63 28 

2012/13 171 143 84 

2013/14 469 67 14 

2014/15 630 250 40 

 
51 Available from https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-
office/November%202014/28%20Nov%202014/2.%20DCLG-
SupportForSmallScaleDevelopersCustomAndSelf-Builders.pdf  
52 Available from 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/74044
1/National_Planning_Policy_Framework_web_accessible_version.pdf  
53 Major development: For housing, development where 10 or more homes will be provided, or the site 
has an area of 0.5 hectares or more 

Page 131

https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/November%202014/28%20Nov%202014/2.%20DCLG-SupportForSmallScaleDevelopersCustomAndSelf-Builders.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/November%202014/28%20Nov%202014/2.%20DCLG-SupportForSmallScaleDevelopersCustomAndSelf-Builders.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/November%202014/28%20Nov%202014/2.%20DCLG-SupportForSmallScaleDevelopersCustomAndSelf-Builders.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/740441/National_Planning_Policy_Framework_web_accessible_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/740441/National_Planning_Policy_Framework_web_accessible_version.pdf


46 
 

Year 

Total Dwellings 

(Sites with net gain 

of 11+) 

Affordable units 
Percentage (Target 

35%) 

2015/16 947 326 34 

2016/17 1150 336 29 

2017/18 1376 311 23 

2018/19 1081 392 36 

Total 6047 1888 36 

 

 

Core Policy 25: Rural Exception Sites 

8.11. Core Policy 25 relates to rural exception sites. Rural exception sites are defined 
in the NPPF as “Small sites used for affordable housing in perpetuity where sites 
would not normally be used for housing. Rural exception sites seek to address 
the needs of the local community by accommodating households who are either 
current residents or have an existing family or employment connection.”54 There 
were no rural exception sites permitted during 2018/19. 

 

Core Policy 26: Accommodating Current and Future Needs of the 

Ageing Population 

8.12. Core Policy 26 details the council’s aim to increase the delivery of housing 
designed for older people. In 2018/19 a redevelopment to form 39 apartments for 
the elderly was permitted in Abingdon. There were no permissions granted for 
elderly accommodation under C2 use.  Over the period 2011-2019, 695 homes 
designed for the use of older people have been permitted. 

8.13. The following strategic allocations are providing homes for an ageing population; 

• Grove Airfield- An 80-bed care home is to be constructed as part of the 
development; 

 
54 Available from 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf  

Page 132

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf


47 
 

• Crab Hill- It has been agreed at outline stage that a care home will be built as 
part of the development; 

• North of Abingdon-on-Thames- This strategic development will provide 50 
retirement homes and an 80-bed care home;  

• Land South of Park Road, Faringdon- The outline permission provides for an 
extra care facility of up to 60 units.  

 

Core Policy 27: Meeting the Housing Needs of Gypsies, Travellers and 

Travelling Show People 

8.14. Core Policy 27 states the council will aim to provide at least 13 pitches for 
Gypsies and Travellers during the plan period. The following permission have 
been granted for gypsies and travellers, which has also been delivered:  

• P12/V1901/FUL - on land at the south-western side of Highworth Road, 
Watchfield, for change of use of land for the stationing of caravans for 
residential purposes for eight gypsy pitches together with the formation of 
additional hard standing and utility/dayrooms ancillary to that use 

8.15. The council produced an updated joint Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Show 
People accommodation assessment with Cherwell District Council, Oxford City 
Council and South Oxfordshire District Council in 2017. The new assessment 
identifies that only one new pitch is required in the later part of the plan period 
(2027-2031). The council is therefore currently meeting its requirements and 
future planning applications will continue to be considered against the criteria set 
out in CP27.  

 

Self-Build & Custom Housebuilding 

8.16. Under the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015, authorities are 
required to keep a register of individuals and associations who wish to acquire 
serviced plots of land to bring forward self-build and custom housebuilding 
projects. 

8.17. Table 23 shows the number of new entries to the register and the number of self-
build and custom housebuilding developments permitted. The data is broken 
down by year between 31-30 October after 2016. 

Page 133



48 
 

Table 23: Self-Build & Custom Housebuilding Register, 2016-19 
 

1 Apr 2016 

– 30 Oct 

2016 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total 

Entries on 

the Register 

50 109 82 97 338 

Number of 

Permissions 

2 2 29 18 51 

 

Supporting Economic Prosperity 

Core Policy 28: New Employment Development on Unallocated sites 

8.18. Core Policy 28 supports Core Policy 6 by supporting appropriate B-Class 
employment development on unallocated sites across the district. During 
2018/19 there was a total of 6.45 hectares of land permitted to provide 
employment uses on unallocated sites. This is a positive increase to support 
sustainable growth. 

 

Core Policy 29: Change of Use of Existing Employment Land and 

Premises 

8.19. Core Policy 29 seeks to ensure that employment use is maintained on land 
where it is viable and needed. In 2018/19 there was 1.95 hectares of 
employment land given permission to change its use. This is less than the 
amount of land permitted for new employment uses. This shows that overall 
provision of employment land is increasing in line with the policy. 

8.20. Of the 1.95 hectares of employment land lost, 0.86 hectares of this was to 
provide new homes. Changes through Permitted Development rights, where 
CP29 does not come into effect, account for 0.15 hectares of this. 

 

Page 134



49 
 

Core Policy 30: Further and Higher Education 

8.21. Core Policy 30 supports improvements to further and higher education facilities 
to help ensure local people have opportunities to gain the skills needed to access 
the jobs available and local employers have access to a suitably skilled local 
labour force. 

8.22. Table 24 sets out the new education facilities planned for the district relating to 
new housing developments55.  

Table 24: New education facilities 

Location Type of school Opening date Sponsor 

Aureus Primary 
School, Didcot 
Great Western 
Park 

2 form entry primary school Sep-18 
GLF 
schools 

Grove Airfield 

All-through 2-16 free school with 2 
form entry primary and 4 form 
entry secondary (subject to final 
approval by Secretary of State) 

2022 (tbc) 
Vale 
Academy 
Trust 

North East 
Wantage (Crab 
Hill) 

2 form entry primary school, 2-11, 
being directly delivered by housing 
developer 

2020 
To be 
decided 

Didcot Valley 
Park 

SEN school, 100 pupils 2022 (tbc) 
To be 
decided 

Didcot Valley 
Park 

Two 2 form entry primary schools 
with nursery classes 

Housing 
dependent 

To be 
decided 

Didcot North 
West Valley 
Park 

One primary school with nursery 
classes 

Housing 
dependent 

To be 
decided 

 
55 Available from 
https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/childreneducationandfamilies/e
ducationandlearning/schools/ourworkwithschools/pupilplaceplan/PupilPlacePlan.pdf  

Page 135

https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/childreneducationandfamilies/educationandlearning/schools/ourworkwithschools/pupilplaceplan/PupilPlacePlan.pdf
https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/childreneducationandfamilies/educationandlearning/schools/ourworkwithschools/pupilplaceplan/PupilPlacePlan.pdf


50 
 

Location Type of school Opening date Sponsor 

North Abingdon 
1.5-2 form entry primary school 
with nursery classes 

Housing 
dependent 

To be 
decided 

Grove Airfield 
2 form entry primary school with 
nursery classes 

Housing 
dependent 

To be 
decided 

 

8.23. There were four applications approved in 2018/19 for extending existing 
education facilities in the district; 

• Faringdon Community College - Removal of four temporary classroom 
buildings and erection of a two storey classroom building 

• St Helen and St Katharine, Abingdon – Conversion of an existing open-air 
agricultural shelter into a Sports Pavilion  

• Abingdon School – Erection of a new single storey, pitched roof timber clad 
estates building 

 

Core Policy 31: Development to Support the Visitor Economy 

8.24. Core Policy 31 encourages development that advances the visitor economy for 
leisure and business purposes and supports proposals that fit within the 
guidelines of the policy.  

8.25. During 2018/19 there were 11 permissions approved which contribute to the 
visitor economy. The majority of these were for small scale developments in the 
smaller villages and open countryside, permitted in line with the policy. However, 
there was one major permission granted for a motorcycle assembly building with 
a museum/display area near Buckland. 

 

Core Policy 32: Retailing and Other Town Centre Uses 

8.26. Core Policy 32 determines that the Market Towns and Local Service Centres, as 
defined by the settlement hierarchy, are the preferred locations for larger scale 
retail development or redevelopment. Proposals for retail developments intended 

Page 136



51 
 

to serve the day to day needs of the community in the larger and smaller villages 
is also supported by this policy.  

8.27. Table 25 shows the amount of new retail development or change of use to retail 
permitted during 2018/19 in settlements as defined by the settlement hierarchy. 

Table 25: Retail floorspace permitted, 2018/19 

Settlement Hierarchy A1 floorspace (m2) 

Market Towns 1,394 

Local Service Centres 0 

Larger Villages 14,130 

Smaller Villages 0 

Open Countryside 372 

 

8.28. There have been two permissions during 2018/19 that meet the policy indicator 
criteria of being over 500m2 (or 1000m2 in Abingdon-on-Thames and Wantage), 
with one being in a Market Town and one being in a Larger Village. For these 
applications it is expected that a retail impact assessment is submitted. The 
applications were as follows: 

• P18/V0442/FUL - Mixed use development comprising retail and hotel space 
in Faringdon. This application was accompanied by a retail impact 
assessment.  

• P15/V1304/O – Outline permission for a large mixed-use development 
including retail, employment and residential space on the site of the former 
Didcot A Power Station. This application was accompanied by a retail impact 
assessment. 

 

Page 137



52 
 

Supporting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 

Core Policy 33: Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 

8.29. The overall aim of Core Policy 33 is to ensure that the impacts of development 
on the road network are minimised, that key improvements to the transport 
network are supported and that new developments are designed in a way that 
promotes sustainable transport.  

8.30. A key indicator for this policy is the change in average journey times, on areas 
that are monitored by the local Highways Authority. There has been no updated 
information on average journey times relating to the district during 2018/19. The 
last previous journey time surveys undertaken in the district were done in 
September 201756.  

8.31. Table 26 provides the status of key infrastructure projects in the district.  

Table 26: Key infrastructure projects 

 

 
56 Available from https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/traffic/transport-monitoring 

Project Cost Status 

Milton Interchange – Junction Improvements £11,560,000 Completed 

Chilton Interchange Junction Improvements £10,833,000 Completed 

Access to the EZ Package, including 
Hagbourne Hill, Featherbed Lane & Steventon 
Lights, Harwell Link Road 

£30,000,000 -  
£40,000,000 

In Progress 
(Harwell Link 

Road complete) 

Backhill Lane cycle/pedestrian scheme £1,200,000 Completed 

Sustainable Transport Package: Cycle 
maintenance and route improvements, 
upgrade to Didcot to Harwell Bus service 

£1,000,000 Completed 

Page 138

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/traffic/transport-monitoring


53 
 

8.32. Air quality is a key indicator in determining the sustainability of transport methods 
in the district. Further information on Air Quality can be found in the Environment 
and Climate Change section of the AMR.  

8.33. Figure 5 below shows the number of road traffic accidents in Oxfordshire57, 
statistics are not available for the district. The general trend shows a decrease 
year on year for the number of total accidents and slight accidents.  

Figure 5: Road Traffic Accidents in Oxfordshire 

 

 

Core Policy 34: A34 Strategy 

8.34. Core Policy 34 sets out the council’s aim to develop a route-based strategy for 
the A34 to enable its function as a major strategic route, and therefore reduce 
consequential congestion on the local road network. It also sets out that air 
quality should be monitored to determine if there is a significant impact from the 
A34, this information can be found in the environment section of the AMR.  

 
57 Available from https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/ras10-reported-road-
accidents#table-ras10015 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

RTAs in Oxfordshire

Fatal Serious Slight Total

Page 139

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/ras10-reported-road-accidents#table-ras10015
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/ras10-reported-road-accidents#table-ras10015


54 
 

8.35. In 2016 the National Infrastructure Commission was asked to consider how to 
maximise the potential of the Cambridge-Milton Keynes-Oxford corridor. 
Accelerating the delivery of the Oxford to Cambridge expressway was a key 
recommendation and Highways England are taking forward more detailed 
development proposals. In September 2018, the government announced the 
chosen corridor with a specific route to be decided following further 
consultation58.  Details on the progress of the expressway and the council’s 
engagement can be found on the council website59.  

 

Core Policy 35: Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 

8.36. Core Policy 35 seeks to ensure that new development in the district promotes 
public transport, cycling and walking as sustainable modes of transport.  

8.37. Table 27 below shows the Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) from areas in the 
Vale of White Horse that have automatic traffic counters. The trend appears to be 
a slight decrease in the number of journeys on bicycle. This information has been 
taken from Oxfordshire County Council’s website60.  

Table 27: Journeys by Bicycle, AADT 

Site 

Number 
Site Description 

AADT 

2
0

1
2
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

2
0

1
6
 

2
0

1
7
 

2
0

1
8
 

99000001 
Gibson Close, 

Abingdon 
117 112 110 92 88 92 92 

99000002 The Motte, Abingdon 91 80 77 64 60 0 0 

99000003 
Tesco's to Ladygrove 

Footpath, Abingdon 
85 57 76 80 68 111 114 

 
58 Available from https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/oxford-to-cambridge-expressway-road-
scheme-update 
59 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/delivering-infrastructure/oxford-cambridge  
60 Available from https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/traffic/transport-monitoring  

Page 140

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/oxford-to-cambridge-expressway-road-scheme-update
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/oxford-to-cambridge-expressway-road-scheme-update
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/delivering-infrastructure/oxford-cambridge
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/delivering-infrastructure/oxford-cambridge
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/traffic/transport-monitoring


55 
 

Site 

Number 
Site Description 

AADT 

2
0

1
2
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

2
0

1
6
 

2
0

1
7
 

2
0

1
8
 

99000004 
Peep-O-Day Lane, 

Sutton Courtney 
157 140 112 125 98 149 149 

99000014 
A4185 North of North 

Drive, Harwell. 
109 129 144 153 104 132 93 

99000024 Abingdon Audlett Drive 236 219 233 230 176 243 252 

99000030 B4017 North of Drayton 151 145 179 159 131 153 152 

 

8.38. A key indicator for this policy is the provision of new cycle schemes. Part of the 
Science Vale Cycling Network (SVCN), route 6A Didcot to Milton Park, was 
completed in 2018. Other parts of the SCVN are planned to complete or be in 
construction in 2019/2061.  

8.39. Information from the 2011 Census shows that the majority of people in the district 
travel to work by motor vehicle, with only 8% using forms of public transport. This 
policy aims to increase the proportion of public transport use by release of the 
next Census data in 2021.  

8.40. During 2018/19 Oxfordshire Housing & Growth Deal funds were secured towards 
the delivery of a pedestrian and cycle crossing of the A34 at the Milton 
Interchange. The Growth Deal funding supports the earlier stages of the project, 
followed by developer contributions from the Milton Heights allocated site62.   

8.41. Travel plans will ensure residents of new developments are aware of sustainable 
transport options available to them and encourage them to use these. Major 
developments are required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and 
Travel Plan, in accordance with Oxfordshire County Council guidance63. During 
2018/19, 12 permissions were granted for developments supported by travel 

 
61 Available from https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/roadworks/major-current-
roadworks/science-vale-cycling-network 
62 Available from https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/OGB-projects-
years-1-2-5-OCC-V2_jasedit.pdf 
63 Available from https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/transport-policies-and-
plans/transport-new-developments/travel-plans-advice 

Page 141

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/roadworks/major-current-roadworks/science-vale-cycling-network
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/roadworks/major-current-roadworks/science-vale-cycling-network
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/OGB-projects-years-1-2-5-OCC-V2_jasedit.pdf
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/OGB-projects-years-1-2-5-OCC-V2_jasedit.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/transport-policies-and-plans/transport-new-developments/travel-plans-advice
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/transport-policies-and-plans/transport-new-developments/travel-plans-advice


56 
 

plans or with conditions requiring travel plans to be produced in line with the 
guidance. 

 

Core Policy 36: Electronic Communications 

8.42. Core Policy 36 seeks to ensure that new development has the appropriate 
infrastructure provided which is sufficient to enable all properties to be connected 
to superfast broadband without any post development works needed. During 
2018/19 there were no enforcement cases relating to lack of provision of 
communication infrastructure. 

 

Protecting the Environment and Responding to Climate Change 

Core Policy 37: Design and Local Distinctiveness 

8.43. During 2018/19, one application was permitted against the advice of urban 
design officers as the result of an appeal64. The urban design objection was 
based on cumulative elements which did not follow design principals within the 
Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD65 but the inspector concluded that the 
development would be compliant with Core Policy 37. 

 

Core Policy 38: Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development 

Sites 

8.44. Proposals for housing allocations and major development sites must be 
accompanied by a site-wide design strategy that includes a Masterplan and 
Design and Access Statement. Of the 33 major sites approved in 2018/19, all 
had a Design and Access Statement and 9 had a Masterplan. In practice, the 
Design and Access Statement and application plans often contain the information 
specified for the masterplan in Core Policy 38  

 
64 Available from https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?caseid=3178348 
65 Available from http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-
policy/local-development-framework/supplementar-
2?utm_source=Leaflet&utm_medium=Posted&utm_campaign=Design%20Guide%20consultation 

Page 142

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?caseid=3178348
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/local-development-framework/supplementar-2?utm_source=Leaflet&utm_medium=Posted&utm_campaign=Design%20Guide%20consultation
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/local-development-framework/supplementar-2?utm_source=Leaflet&utm_medium=Posted&utm_campaign=Design%20Guide%20consultation
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/local-development-framework/supplementar-2?utm_source=Leaflet&utm_medium=Posted&utm_campaign=Design%20Guide%20consultation


57 
 

 

Core Policy 39: The Historic Environment 

8.45. One of the greatest assets of the Vale is its rich and varied built heritage, which 
contributes greatly to the distinctive character and cherished identity of its towns, 
villages and countryside. The district displays a subtle range of building types 
and materials reflecting the underlying geology of the area. The historic 
landscape also plays an important role in shaping the varied character of the 
district as a heritage asset in itself. Core Policy 39 sets out how the council will 
seek to protect and enhance the historic environment in the district.  

8.46. Currently in the Vale of White Horse there are 7 sites on Historic England’s at-
risk register66, down from 9 sites in 2017/18.  

8.47. There were no new Conservation Area Character Appraisals in 2018/19, and 
currently there are no heritage partnership agreements in place in the district.  

8.48. A key indicator for Core Policy 39 is the number of planning permissions granted 
contrary to technical advice. No permissions were granted in 2018/19 contrary to 
conservation officers’ advice.  

Core Policy 40: Sustainable Design and Construction 

8.49. Responding to climate change is one of our Strategic Objectives and has 
informed our Spatial Strategy, the location of our strategic site allocations and 
many of the Local Plan policies. 

8.50. In 2018/19 there were a number of applications where adaptation and design 
methods were taken into account in line with Core Policy 40. As the policy details 
there are several ways that climate change mitigation can be incorporated into a 
development. Of particular note were developments approved including electric 
vehicle charging points; 

• Land south of Kennington – Residential development with EV charging points 
for all market units with a garage. 

• Botley Centre redevelopment – Mixed retail and residential development with 
several EV charging points in carpark. 

 
66Available from https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-
register/results/?advsearch=1&Lpa=Vale%20of%20White%20Horse&searchtype=harsearch 

Page 143

https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/results/?advsearch=1&Lpa=Vale%20of%20White%20Horse&searchtype=harsearch
https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/results/?advsearch=1&Lpa=Vale%20of%20White%20Horse&searchtype=harsearch


58 
 

• Land East of Sutton Courtenay Lane – Industrial/warehouse development 
with several EV charging points in carpark. 

8.51. Currently data is unavailable on the water usage of new developments, so no 
information can be provided on the indicator which requires developments to 
achieve a water usage of 110 litres per person per day. However, data provided 
by the Consumer Council for Water in England and Wales shows that average 
water usage for a one-person household is 180 litres per day (66 cubic metres 
per year)67.  

 

Core Policy 41: Renewable Energy 

8.52. Core Policy 41 sets out the council’s support for renewable energy schemes in 
order to help the government meet its renewable energy targets, providing 
applications do not cause significant adverse effects. During 2018/19 there were 
2 applications relating to new renewable energy installations, both for rooftop 
solar panels.  

8.53. Table 28 provides the number of renewable energy installations, capacity and 
generation in the district since 2014, when government began recording data68, 
with total electricity consumption in the district69.  

Table 28: Renewable energy 

Year 
Renewable 

energy 
installations 

Renewable 
energy 

capacity (MW) 

Renewable 
electricity 
generation 

(MWH) 

Total electricity 
consumption 

(MWh) 

2014 1,347 132.4 166,071 731,823 

2015 1,654 170.2 255,340 727,394 

2016 1,708 170.8 247,771 720,084 

 
67Available from https://www.ccwater.org.uk/households/using-water-wisely/averagewateruse/  
68 Available from https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/regional-renewable-statistics  
69 Available from https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/regional-and-local-authority-
electricity-consumption-statistics 

Page 144

https://www.ccwater.org.uk/households/using-water-wisely/averagewateruse/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/regional-renewable-statistics
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/regional-and-local-authority-electricity-consumption-statistics
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/regional-and-local-authority-electricity-consumption-statistics


59 
 

Year 
Renewable 

energy 
installations 

Renewable 
energy 

capacity (MW) 

Renewable 
electricity 
generation 

(MWH) 

Total electricity 
consumption 

(MWh) 

2017 1,755 171.5 238,082 708,360 

2018 1,821 171.9 238,482 717,745 

 

 

Core Policy 42: Flood Risk 

8.54. Core Policy 42 seeks to ensure that development provides appropriate measures 
for the management of surface water as an essential element of reducing future 
flood risk to both the site and its surroundings. In the district, during 2018/19, 
there were no applications that were approved contrary to the advice of the 
Environment Agency (EA)70. 

Core Policy 43: Natural Resources 

8.55. National planning policy underlines the importance of prudent use of natural 
resources, from using land effectively to encouraging the use of renewable 
resources. Core Policy 43 incorporates all elements of natural resources, 
including land, water and air quality, to ensure they are protected from decline. 

8.56. Table 29 shows the amount of waste from households in the district, and the 
amount of that waste which was recycled71. It shows that the proportion of waste 
recycled remains relatively stable in the lower 60 percentages even though there 
has been a steady increase in the total waste collected.  

 
70 Available from https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-agency-objections-to-planning-
on-the-basis-of-flood-risk  
71 Data available from https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/env18-local-authority-
collected-waste-annual-results-tables  

Page 145

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-agency-objections-to-planning-on-the-basis-of-flood-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-agency-objections-to-planning-on-the-basis-of-flood-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/env18-local-authority-collected-waste-annual-results-tables
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/env18-local-authority-collected-waste-annual-results-tables


60 
 

Table 29: Household Waste and Recycling in Vale of White Horse 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Total waste collected 
(Thousand Tonnes) 

41,608 42,240 42,443 42,303 44,265 

Recycling rate 66% 65% 62% 63% 63% 

 

8.57. In 2018/19 there were 41 applications approved where Core Policy 43 was taken 
into consideration. 

8.58. During 2018/19 there were no applications approved in the district contrary to 
Environment Agency advice on water quality grounds, which shows that this 
aspect of the policy is working positively.   

8.59. The annual Air Quality Status Report72 provides an annual update on air quality 
in the district. There are three Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) in the 
district. These are in Abingdon, Botley and Marcham. These were declared due 
to NO2 levels which exceed national objectives, primarily due to traffic emissions. 
There is currently positive progress being made in the Abingdon AQMA area, 
with work being undertaken to determine how the situations in Botley and 
Marcham can be improved, as detailed below; 

• In Abingdon, since the AQMA was declared traffic management measures 
have led to a reduction in NO2 levels. There are currently no exceedances of 
the NO2 levels in the AQMA area. The Abingdon AQMA could be revoked if 
levels remain consistently below 36 µg/m3 for three consecutive years.  

• In Botley, the issue relates to the proximity of houses to the A34 which is 
heavily trafficked, and there are some exceedances of the objective. 
Additional monitoring is being undertaken and solutions being investigated, 
with traffic management by restricting Heavy-Duty Vehicle (HDV)73 traffic 
having been assessed as not feasible by Oxfordshire County Council. The 
council’s environmental health team will work with Highways England to 
consider any options to reduce air pollution in this area.  

• In Marcham there are regular exceedances within the AQMA, again due to 
the amount of traffic. The Air Quality report identifies road improvements as 

 
72Available from https://oxfordshire.air-
quality.info/documents/Vale_of_White_Horse_ASR_Template_England_2019_Final.pdf 
73 HDVs are defined as freight vehicles of more than 3.5 tonnes (trucks) or passenger transport vehicles of 
more than 8 seats (buses and coaches). 

Page 146

https://oxfordshire.air-quality.info/documents/Vale_of_White_Horse_ASR_Template_England_2019_Final.pdf
https://oxfordshire.air-quality.info/documents/Vale_of_White_Horse_ASR_Template_England_2019_Final.pdf


61 
 

being part of the solution to improving air quality in Marcham. The county 
council is in the process of reviewing previous work associated with a 
Marcham Bypass. The next steps will be to develop options to test what will 
be the best strategy to alleviate traffic issues and improve air quality within 
Marcham  

8.60. During 2018/19 there were no applications granted contrary to the advice of 
technical officers regarding contaminated land. Where there were issues of 
contaminated land, conditions were imposed to ensure these were addressed in 
line with the policy.  

8.61. Figure 6 shows that during 2018/19 there were significantly more applications74 
approved on previously developed land than on greenfield land. However, a 
higher proportion of the land permitted was on greenfield sites due to a small 
number of permissions relating to large greenfield sites allocated in the Local 
Plan. 

Figure 6: Brownfield/Greenfield applications, 2018/19 

 

8.62. Core Policy 43 also restricts development on the best and most versatile 
agricultural land, unless it is demonstrated to be the most sustainable choice 

 
74 Approved applications relating to new housing, employment and facility class developments 

73%

27%

Applications permitted: Percentage of Brownfield vs Greenfield

Brownfield

Greenfield

Page 147



62 
 

from reasonable alternatives. During 2018/19 there were no applications granted 
contrary to the advice of technical officers regarding agricultural land. 

 

Core Policy 44: Landscape 

8.63. The conservation of the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside is a 
core planning principle of the NPPF, stating that the planning system should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and 
enhancing valued landscapes. Core Policy 44 details how the key features that 
contribute to the nature and quality of the Vale of White Horse’s landscape will be 
protected from harmful development.  

8.64. During 2018/19 there were 39 permissions granted in the AONB. All of these 
were in line with Core Policy 44, with the majority being applications for 
redevelopment of sites and most of the remainder being small works, 
amendments or reserved matters to extant permissions.  

 

Core Policy 45: Green Infrastructure 

8.65. Green Infrastructure relates to the active planning and management of 
substantial networks of multifunctional open space. Such networks need to be 
planned and managed to deliver the widest range of linked environmental and 
social benefits, including conserving and enhancing biodiversity as well as 
landscape, recreation, water management, and social and cultural benefits to 
underpin community health and wellbeing. Core Policy 45 seeks to ensure that 
there is no net loss in the amount of Green infrastructure.  

8.66. During 2018/19 there were 39 permissions granted that took account of Core 
Policy 45. All these permissions were granted in accordance with the policy.  

 

Core Policy 46: Conservation and improvement of Biodiversity 

8.67. The district contains a rich variety of semi-natural habitats including woodlands, 
hedgerows, rivers, streams, and meadows. Together they help secure the 

Page 148



63 
 

survival of many species. There are a number of important nature conservation 
sites, which are protected at international, national and local level. These include: 

• International- Two Special Areas of Conservation (SAC)75,76; 

• National- One National Nature Reserve77 and 22 Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI)78; 

• Local- 82 Local Wildlife Sites79, Two Local Nature Reserves80 and Nine 
Geologically Important Sites81. 

8.68. Core Policy 46 seeks to provide a net gain in the amount of biodiversity land. The 
area of Local Wildlife sites has increased by 18.8 hectares since last year, 
increasing from 1816 to 1835 hectares. Further information on the status of sites 
is available from the Thames Valley Environmental Records Centre (TVERC)82 
and Natural England83.  

8.69. No planning permissions were granted in 2018/19 contrary to consultee advice 
on the impact on SAC’s, in line with Core Policy 46.

 
75 Cothill Fen https://sac.jncc.gov.uk/site/UK0012889 
76 Hackpen Hill https://sac.jncc.gov.uk/site/UK0030162 
77 Cothill NNR https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxfordshires-national-nature-
reserves/oxfordshires-national-nature-reserves#cothill 
78 List of Oxfordshire SSSIs, available from 
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteList.aspx?siteName=&countyCode=34&responsiblePers
on=&DesignationType=SSSI 
79 http://www.tverc.org/cms/content/local-wildlife-sites 
80 List of Oxfordshire LNRs, available from 
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteList.aspx?siteName=&countyCode=34&responsiblePers
on=&DesignationType=LNR 
81 http://www.tverc.org/cms/content/local-geological-sites 
82 Available from http://www.tverc.org/cms/  
83 Available from https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SearchCounty.aspx  

Page 149

https://sac.jncc.gov.uk/site/UK0012889
https://sac.jncc.gov.uk/site/UK0030162
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxfordshires-national-nature-reserves/oxfordshires-national-nature-reserves#cothill
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxfordshires-national-nature-reserves/oxfordshires-national-nature-reserves#cothill
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteList.aspx?siteName=&countyCode=34&responsiblePerson=&DesignationType=SSSI
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteList.aspx?siteName=&countyCode=34&responsiblePerson=&DesignationType=SSSI
http://www.tverc.org/cms/content/local-wildlife-sites
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteList.aspx?siteName=&countyCode=34&responsiblePerson=&DesignationType=LNR
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteList.aspx?siteName=&countyCode=34&responsiblePerson=&DesignationType=LNR
http://www.tverc.org/cms/content/local-geological-sites
http://www.tverc.org/cms/
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SearchCounty.aspx


64 
 

Appendix A: Whole District Housing Trajectory84 

 

 
84 Housing completions up to date as of 31 March 2019, permissions up to date as of 31 October 2019. 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Completions Full permission Outline permission Resolution to grant Prior approval Allocation Windfalls

P
age 150



65 
 

Appendix B: Science Vale Ringfence Area Housing Trajectory85 

 
85 Housing completions up to date as of 31 March 2019, permissions up to date as of 31 October 2019. 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Completions Full permission Outline permission Resolution to grant Prior approval Allocation Windfalls

P
age 151



66 
 

Appendix C: Rest of District Area Housing Trajectory86 

 
86 Housing completions up to date as of 31 March 2019, permissions up to date as of 31 October 2019. 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Completions Full permission Outline permission Resolution to grant Prior approval Allocation Windfalls

P
age 152



67 
 

Appendix D: Monitoring Framework 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

CP1: 
Presumption of 
Sustainable 
Development  

Covered by all other 
indicators within the 
Framework 

Covered by all other 
targets within the 
Framework 

Covered by all 
progress within the 

Framework 

CP2: 
Cooperation on 
Unmet Need for 
Oxfordshire 

Extent of progress of 
The Part 2 Plan or if 
more appropriate the 
full or focused partial 
review of the Local 
Plan in accordance 
with CP2 and the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

To progress The 
Part 2 Plan or if 
more appropriate 
the full or focused 
partial review of the 
Local Plan in 
accordance with 
CP2 and the Local 
Development 
Scheme. 

Achieved 

CP3: Settlement 
Hierarchy 

Covered by 
indicators for Policies 
CP4, CP6, CP8, 
CP15, CP20, CP27, 
CP28, CP30, CP31, 
CP32 

Covered by targets 
for Policies CP4, 
CP6, CP8, CP15, 
CP20, CP27, CP28, 
CP30, CP31, CP32 

Covered by 
progress for Policies 

CP4, CP6, CP8, 
CP15, CP20, CP27, 
CP28, CP30, CP31, 

CP32 

CP4: Meeting 
our Housing 
Needs.  

Number of dwellings 
permitted and 
completed by Sub-
Area and strategic 
allocation.  

To deliver the 
amount of dwellings 
planned for in each 
Sub-Area over the 
plan period. 

Positive Progress 

Housing Trajectory 
showing:  
i. Annual dwelling 

completions,  
ii. Annual average 

no. of additional 
dwellings required 
to meet housing 
targets. 

To deliver 20,560 
dwellings over the 
plan period based 
on 1,028 dwellings 
per annum. 

Positive Progress 

Number of dwellings 
allocated through 
Local Plan Part 2 and 
Neighbourhood 
Plans 

Neighbourhood 
Plans and Local 
Plan Part 2 to 
cumulatively 
allocate 1,000 
dwellings over the 
plan period. 

Achieved 

Page 153



68 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Amount of land 
available that 
contributes to the 5-
year housing land 
supply in both supply 
areas 

To provide a 5-year 
housing land supply 
of deliverable sites 
based on Liverpool 
methodology for the 
ring fence supply 
area and Sedgefield 
methodology for rest 
of district supply 
area. 

Achieved 

CP5: Housing 
Supply Ring-
Fence 

Housing Trajectory 
showing for the ring 
fence area and the 
rest of district area:  
i. Annual dwelling 

completions,  
ii. Annual average 

no. of additional 
dwellings required 
to meet housing 
targets. 

To provide 11,850 
dwellings in the ring 
fence area over the 
plan period based 
on 593 dwellings 
per annum. 

Positive Progress 

Amount of land 
available that 
contributes to the 5-
year housing land 
supply in both supply 
areas 

To provide a 5-year 
housing land supply 
of deliverable sites 
based on Liverpool 
methodology for the 
ring fence supply 
area and Sedgefield 
methodology for rest 
of district supply 
area. 

Achieved  

Jobs Growth 

To provide for 
15,850 jobs in the 
ring fence area over 
the plan period.  

Positive Progress 

CP6: Meeting 
Business and 
Employment 
Needs 

Quantum of land 
permitted and 
completed for 
employment by 
strategic site and 
allocation. 

To deliver 218 
hectares of 
employment land 
over the plan period.  

Positive Progress 

Jobs Growth  
To provide for 
23,000 jobs over the 
plan period.  

Positive Progress 

Page 154



69 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Business Counts 
Increase in 
Businesses 

Positive Progress 

CP7: Providing 
Supporting 
Infrastructure 
and Services. 

Progress of essential 
strategic 
infrastructure items  

To deliver strategic 
infrastructure items 
in accordance with 
the timeframes 
identified within the 
Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan. 

Positive Progress 

Progress of other 
strategic 
infrastructure items 

Positive Progress 

Funding and monies 
received and spent. 

To progress the 
funding and 
expenditure of 
monies including 
S106 and CIL 
received in a timely 
manner to support 
new development 
as set out in the 
plan. 

Positive Progress 

CP8: Spatial 
Strategy for 
Abingdon-on-
Thames and 
Oxford Fringe 
Sub-Area.  

Number of dwellings 
permitted and 
completed by 
location and strategic 
allocation.  

To permit and 
deliver the amount 
of dwellings planned 
for the Sub-Area.  

Positive Progress 

Quantum of land and 
use permitted for 
employment at 
strategic sites and 
allocations. 

To permit and 
deliver 3.20 net 
hectares of 
employment land as 
planned for the Sub-
Area. 

Positive Progress 

CP9: Harcourt 
Hill Campus 

Progress of 
masterplan for 
Harcourt Hill Campus 
Site 

To agree a 
masterplan for 
Harcourt Hill 
Campus site which 
guides any 
subsequent 
planning application.  

No Change 

CP10: Abbey 
Shopping 
Centre and the 
Charter, 
Abingdon-on-
Thames 

Status and type of 
planning permissions 
granted at Abbey 
Shopping Centre and 
the Charter Area.  

To permit and 
deliver planning 
permissions that 
provide a 
redevelopment 
scheme for the 
Abbey Shopping 

No Progress 

Page 155



70 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Centre and Charter 
Area that accords 
with the policy.  

CP11: Botley 
Central Area 

Status and type of 
planning permissions 
granted at Botley 
Central Area 

To permit and 
deliver planning 
permissions that 
provide a 
redevelopment 
scheme for the 
Botley Central Area 
that accords with 
the policy.  

Positive Progress 

CP12: 
Safeguarding of 
Land for 
Strategic 
Highway 
Improvements 
within the 
Abingdon-on-
Thames and 
Oxford Fringe 
Sub-Area 

Status and type of 
planning permissions 
on land safeguarded. 

To ensure all 
relevant planning 
permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Achieved  

CP13: The 
Oxford Green 
Belt 

Status and type of 
planning permissions 
granted within the 
Green Belt. 

To ensure all 
relevant planning 
permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy. 

Achieved  

CP14: Upper 
Thames 
Reservoir 

Status and type of 
planning permissions 
granted on land 
safeguarded. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy. 

Achieved  

CP15: Spatial 
Strategy for 
South East Sub-
Area. 

Number of dwellings 
permitted and 
completed by 
location and strategic 
allocations.  

To permit and 
deliver the amount 
of dwellings planned 
for the Sub-Area.  

Positive Progress 

Quantum of land and 
use permitted for 
employment at 

To permit and 
deliver 208 net 
hectares of 
employment land as 

Positive Progress 

Page 156



71 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

strategic sites and 
allocations. 

planned for the Sub-
Area.  

CP16: Didcot A 
Power Station 

Status, type and 
amount of land 
permitted at Didcot A 

To permit and 
deliver planning 
permissions that 
provide a mixed-use 
development 
including 29 
hectares for 
employment uses.   

Positive Progress 

Status and use of 
planning permissions 
on land safeguarded 
for the Science 
Bridge and A4130 re-
routing.  

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Achieved  

CP17: Delivery 
of Strategic 
Highway 
Improvements 
within the South-
East Vale Sub-
Area.  

Progress of the 
infrastructure as 
identified within the 
Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan.  

To deliver 
infrastructure items 
in accordance with 
the timeframes 
identified within the 
Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan.  

Positive Progress 

Funding and monies 
received and 
disbursed. 

To progress the 
funding and 
expenditure of 
monies including 
S106 and CIL 
monies received in 
a timely manner to 
support delivery of 
infrastructure items 
set out in the policy. 

Positive Progress 

CP18: 
Safeguarding of 
land for 
Transport 
Schemes in the 
South-East Vale 
Sub-Area.  

Status and use of 
planning permissions 
on land safeguarded. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy. 

Achieved  

CP19: Re-
opening of 

Progress of the Re-
opening of Grove 
Railway Station  

To maintain 
commitment to 
progress re-opening 

Positive Progress 

Page 157



72 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Grove Railway 
Station.  

of the Railway 
Station. 

Status and use of 
planning permissions 
on land safeguarded. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Achieved 

CP20: Spatial 
Strategy for 
Western Vale 
Sub-Area.  

Number of dwellings 
permitted and 
completed by 
location and strategic 
allocations.  

To permit and 
deliver the amount 
of dwellings planned 
for the Sub-Area. . 

Positive Progress 

Quantum of land and 
uses permitted for 
employment at 
strategic sites and 
allocations. 

To permit and 
deliver 7.38 net 
hectares of 
employment land as 
planned for the Sub-
Area.  

Positive Progress 

CP21: 
Safeguarding of 
Land for 
Strategic 
Highway 
Improvements 
within the 
Western Vale 
Sub-Area.  

Status and use of 
planning permissions 
on land safeguarded. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Achieved  

CP22: Housing 
Mix 

Average housing mix 
of planning 
permissions 

To ensure the 
cumulative delivery 
of planning 
permissions for 
housing 
developments 
provides a housing 
mix that accords 
with the SHMA.  

  Positive Progress 

CP23: Housing 
Density  

Average density of 
housing planning 
permissions 

To ensure the 
cumulative delivery 
of planning 
permissions for 
housing 
developments 
provides an average 

Positive Progress 

Page 158



73 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

density that accords 
with the policy. 

CP24: 
Affordable 
Housing  

Percentage of 
affordable housing 
provided on sites of 
more than 3 
dwellings or larger 
than 0.1ha 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions for 
housing sites of 3 or 
more dwellings or 
sites larger than 0.1 
ha to provide 35% 
affordable housing 
or in accordance 
with the policy. 

Positive Progress 

Tenure split 

To provide for 
around a 75:25 split 
between rented and 
intermediate 
housing tenures of 
affordable housing.  

Positive Progress 

CP25: Rural 
Exception Sites 

Status of permissions 
granted for rural 
exceptions sites.  

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
Policy.  

Achieved  

CP26: 
Accommodating 
Current and 
Future Needs of 
the Ageing 
Population 

Amount and type of 
housing designed for 
older people 
permitted as part of 
strategic allocations 
and within the 
district.  

To increase the 
delivery of housing 
designed for older 
people and ensure 
all planning 
permission are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy. 

Positive Progress 

CP27: Meeting 
the housing 
needs of 
Gypsies, 
Travellers and 
Travelling Show 
People.  

Net additional pitches 
and sites for gypsy 
and travellers.  

To deliver 13 gypsy 
and traveller pitches 
(net) over the plan 
period.  

Positive Progress 

Five-year supply of 
pitches 

To maintain a five-
year supply of 
pitches87. 

Achieved  

CP28: New 
Employment 

Status and type of 
permissions granted 

To ensure all 
planning 

Achieved  

 
87 As of April 2016, the five-year supply target is approximately 3.25 pitches. 

Page 159



74 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Development on 
Unallocated 
Sites.  

for B uses on 
unallocated sites. 

permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

CP29: Change 
of Use of 
Existing 
Employment 
Land and 
Premises.  

Quantum of land 
permitted and 
completed for 
employment by 
strategic site. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Positive Progress 

Status and use of 
permissions for the 
change of use of 
existing employment 
sites (that are not 
strategic) for non-
employment uses 
granted. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy 

Positive Progress 

CP30: Further 
and Higher 
Education 

Progress of further 
and higher education 
facilities.  

To ensure delivery 
of further and higher 
education in 
accordance with the 
Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan.  

Positive Progress 

CP31: 
Development to 
Support the 
Visitor Economy 

Status and type of 
permissions granted 
for visitor economic 
developments. 

To deliver a net 
increase in 
development for 
visitor economy 
over the plan period 
in accordance with 
the policy.  

Positive Progress 

CP32: Retailing 
and Other Town 
Centre Uses.  

Status, type and 
amount of floorspace 
granted for retail by 
location. 

To deliver a net 
increase in retail 
development over 
the plan period in 
accordance with the 
policy 

Positive Progress 

Number of 
permissions granted 
for retail 
developments over 
1,000m2 (Abingdon-
on-Thames and 
Wantage) and 500m2 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions granted 
for retail 
development over 
1,000m2 or 500m2 in 
appropriate 

Achieved  

Page 160



75 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

(elsewhere in the 
District) 
accompanied by a 
Retail Impact 
Assessment.   

locations to be 
accompanied by a 
comprehensive 
Retail Impact 
Assessment. 

CP33: 
Promoting 
Sustainable 
Transport and 
Accessibility.  

Average Journey 
times88 

To ensure journey 
times do not 
significantly89 
increase based on 
trend analysis 

No data 

Monitoring of Travel 
Plans for 
developments over 
80 dwellings. 

To ensure 
developments meet 
sustainable travel 
targets in Travel 
Plans 

Positive Progress 

Progress of transport 
schemes. 

To help progress of 
transport schemes 
in a timely manner 
to support delivery 
of new development 
in accordance with 
the Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan. 

Positive Progress 

To monitor 
designated quality Air 
Quality Management 
Areas. 

To ensure 
development 
supports 
improvements to air 
quality and meets 
the AQMA’s 
standards 

Positive Progress 

Number of road 
accidents 
casualties90  

To ensure 
development 
supports 
improvements to 
road safety 

Positive Progress 

CP34: A34 
Strategy 

Progress of a Route 
Based Strategy for 
the A34.  

To progress the 
Route Based 
Strategy for the A34 
in a timely manner, 
in association with 
the Oxford to 

Positive Progress 

 
88 On those areas that are monitored by the Highways Authority.  
89 Assessed on an individual area basis. 
90 On a County-wide basis 

Page 161



76 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Cambridge 
Infrastructure 
Review.  

Progress of air 
quality monitoring 
framework for the 
A34. 

To help progress, in 
a timely manner, the 
Air Quality 
Monitoring 
Framework 
associated with the 
A34 

Positive Progress 

CP35: 
Promoting 
Public 
Transport, 
Cycling and 
Walking.  

Level of cycle 
movements91 

To increase the 
proportion of 
journeys undertaken 
by cycling locally.  

Decrease in travel 
movements 

New cycle schemes 
To help facilitate the 
delivery of new 
cycle schemes 

Positive Progress 

Bus patronage92 

To increase the 
proportion of 
journeys undertaken 
by in buses locally.   

No Data 

Funding secured for 
sustainable transport 
schemes 

To help secure 
funding to deliver 
sustainable 
transport schemes 
in accordance with 
the Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan. 

Positive Progress 

Monitoring of Travel 
Plans for 
developments over 
80 dwellings. 

To ensure 
developments meet 
sustainable travel 
targets identified in 
Travel Plans 

Positive Progress 

Number of 
permission granted 
for major 
development 
supported by a 
Transport 
Assessment and 
Travel Plan 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions granted 
for major 
development to be 
accompanied by a 
Transport 

Achieved 

 
91 On those routes that are monitored by the Highways Authority 
92 On a County-wide basis 

Page 162



77 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Assessment and 
Travel Plan. 

CP36: Electronic 
Communications 

Compliance with 
Building Regulations 

To ensure delivery 
of dwellings is in 
compliance with 
Building 
Regulations. 

Achieved  

CP37: Design 
and Local 
Distinctiveness 

Number of planning 
permissions granted 
contrary to urban 
design officers 
advice.  

To ensure all 
relevant planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy 

Achieved  

CP38: Design 
Strategies for 
Strategic and 
Major 
Development 
Sites 

Number of planning 
permissions granted 
for major 
development 
contrary to urban 
design officers 
advice.  

To ensure all major 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy 

Achieved  

Number of 
permissions granted 
for major 
development 
supported by an 
appropriate 
masterplan and 
design and access 
statement. 

To ensure all major 
development is 
accompanied by a 
masterplan and 
design and access 
statement. 

Achieved  

CP39: The 
Historic 
Environment 

Number of planning 
permissions granted 
contrary to technical 
advice. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy 

Achieved 

Number of buildings 
on the ‘Heritage at 
Risk’ Register 

To protect all 
buildings on the 
‘Heritage at Risk’ 
Register and 
facilitate their 
subsequent removal 
from the Register.  

Positive Progress 

Page 163



78 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

Number of new 
Conservation Area 
Character 
Appraisals.  

To agree a 
programme of the 
review and 
production of 
Conservation Area 
Character 
Appraisals and 
deliver that agreed 
programme 

No Change 

Progress of Heritage 
Partnership 
Agreements 

To ensure the 
completion of 
Heritage 
Partnership 
Agreements where 
appropriate for any 
listed building on an 
‘at risk’ register.  

No Change 

CP40: 
Sustainable 
Design and 
Construction 

Number of 
permissions granted 
that incorporate 
climate change 
adaptation measures 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Positive Progress 

Number of 
permissions granted 
that achieve the 
water use below 110 
litres/person/day 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions to 
achieve a water use 
of 
110 
litres/person/day. 

No data 

CP41: 
Renewable 
Energy 

Status and type of 
permission granted 
for renewable 
energy. 

To deliver of 
schemes for 
renewable energy in 
accordance with the 
policy, thereby 
contributing to the 
UK’s renewable 
energy target. 

Positive Progress 

CP42: Flood 
Risk 

Number and detail of 
permissions granted 
contrary to 
Environment Agency 
advice on flooding 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Achieved  

Page 164



79 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

CP43: Natural 
Resources 

Percentage of 
household waste 
sent for re-use, 
recycling or 
composting.  

To take the 
opportunities 
presented by new 
development to 
deliver a percentage 
increase of 
household waste 
sent for re-use, 
recycling or 
composting 

No Change 

Number of planning 
permissions granted 
contrary to 
Environment Agency 
advice on water 
quality grounds 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy. 

Achieved  

To monitor 
designated quality Air 
Quality Management 
Areas. 

To ensure all 
development 
supports 
improvements to air 
quality and meets 
the AQMA’s 
standards 

Positive Progress 

Number of 
permissions granted 
contrary to technical 
advice on 
contaminated land 

To ensure all 
planning are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy. 

Achieved  

Amount and detail of 
permissions granted 
on PDL. 

To ensure the 
delivery of 
development 
schemes helps to 
maximise the reuse 
of PDL93. 

Positive Progress 

The amount of the 
best and most 
versatile agricultural 
land permissions are 
granted on for other 
uses. 

To ensure no loss of 
the best and most 
versatile agricultural 
land unless in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Achieved  

CP44: 
Landscape  

Number of 
permissions granted 

To ensure all 
planning 

Achieved  

 
 

Page 165



80 
 

Local Plan 
Policies Indicators Targets 

Progress 

contrary to technical 
advice.  

permissions are 
only granted in 
accordance with the 
policy.  

Status and type of 
permissions granted 
in the AONB 

Achieved  

CP45: Green 
Infrastructure 

Permissions granted 
and completions for 
change in Green 
Infrastructure  

To deliver a net gain 
in green 
infrastructure.  

Positive Progress 

Funding and monies 
received and spent 
for Green 
Infrastructure.  

To progress funding 
and expenditure 
monies, including 
CIL and S106 
monies in a timely 
manner to support 
delivery of green 
infrastructure 
projects set out in 
the Green 
Infrastructure 
Strategy or as 
otherwise agreed.  

Positive Progress 

CP46: 
Conservation 
and 
Improvement of 
Biodiversity 

Change in 
biodiversity area 
and/or sites. 

To deliver a net gain 
in biodiversity area. 

Positive Progress 

Number of 
permissions granted 
contrary to consultee 
advice on impact on 
Special Areas of 
Conservation. 

To ensure all 
planning 
permissions are 
granted in 
accordance with the 
policy 

Achieved  

 

Page 166



Alternative formats of this publication, a summary of its
contents or specific sections, are available on request

 
These include large print, Braille, audio, email,

easy read and alternative languages. 

Please contact customer services to discuss 
your requirements on 01235 422422

www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Planning Policy Team
135 Eastern Avenue, 

Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB
Tel: 01235 422422  

Email: planning.policy@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

back cover v1.ai   1   23/01/2020   15:42:14

Page 167



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 July 2020  Page 1 10/07/20 

Scrutiny work programme 
1 July 2020 

 
 
 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM  PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER 

Scrutiny Committee 6 
Jul 2020 
 

Review and comment 
on the draft corporate 
plan 2020-2024 for 
public consultation 
 
 

Review and comment on the 
draft corporate plan 2020-
2024 for public consultation 

 

Councillor Debby 
Hallett 
 

Michelle Wells 
michelle.wells@southand
vale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 20 
Jul 2020 
 

Planning monitoring 
report 2018/19 
 
 

To review the annual report   
 

Councillor Catherine 
Webber 
 

Richard Sandith 
richard.sandith@southan
dvale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 20 
Jul 2020 
 

Statement of 
community 
involvement 
 
 

 
 

Cllr Catherine 
Webber 
 

Nina Merritt 
Nina.merritt@southandva
le.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 23 
Nov 2020 
 

Civil parking 
enforcement 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby 
 

John Backley 
john.backley@southandv
ale.gov.uk 
 

 
Items for future meetings (dates to be determined) 

 

P
age 168

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.sandith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.sandith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Nina.merritt@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Nina.merritt@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk


 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM  PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 July 2020 Page 2 10/07/20 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 
Date 
 

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
 
 

To respond to the 
consultation draft plan   
 

Councillor Catherine 
Webber 
 

Adrian Duffield 
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee – 
to be confirmed 

Planning appeals To consider the annual report   Councillor Catherine 
Webber 
 

Tracy Smith 
tracy.smith@southandval
e.gov.uk 
 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee September 
2020 
 

Community 
infrastructure levy 
spending strategy 
 
 

To consider the strategy   
 

Councillor Bethia 
Thomas 
 

Jayne Bolton 
jayne.bolton@southandv
ale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
Not before 1 Sep 2020 
 

Office accommodation 
 
 

 
 

Cllr Debby Hallett 
 

Adrianna Partridge 
adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
Between  1 Sep 2020 
and 31 Dec 2020 
 

Delivery of Affordable 
Housing and options 
for a housing delivery 
vehicle 
 
 

To receive a progress report 

 
Councillor Bethia 
Thomas 
 

Jayne Bolton 
jayne.bolton@southandv
ale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
Not before 1 Oct 2020 
 

Car parking fees 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby 
 

Liz Hayden 
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk 
 

P
age 169

mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk


 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM  PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 July 2020 Page 3 10/07/20 

Scrutiny Committee 
Between  1 Oct 2020 
and 30 Nov 2020 
 

Public consultations 
 
 

To review how consultations are 
run 

 

Councillor Debby 
Hallett 
 

Shona Ware 
shona.ware@southandva
le.gov.uk 
 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 
2020 
 

Biffa annual 
performance report 
 
 

to review the report 

 
Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby 
 

Liz Hayden 
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk 
 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 
2020 
 

Community safety 
partnership annual 
report 
 
 

to review the report 

 
Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby 
 

Liz Hayden 
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk 
 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 16 Nov 
2020 
 

Saba contract 
 
 

to review the contract 

 
Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby 
 

Liz Hayden 
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date 
 

A34 diversion routing 
 
 

Council adopted a motion on 
9 October 2019 asking 
Scrutiny Committee to 
consider this.   
 

Leader of the Council 
Cllr Emily Smith 
 

Adrian Duffield 
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date 
 

Regular budget 
monitoring 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Andrew 
Crawford 
 

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk 
 

P
age 170

mailto:shona.ware@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:shona.ware@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk


 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM  PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 July 2020 Page 4 10/07/20 

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date 
 

Strategic property 
review 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Bethia 
Thomas 
 

Suzanne Malcolm 
suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date 
 

The Charter, Abingdon 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Bethia 
Thomas 
 

Suzanne Malcolm 
suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk 
 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 
Date 
 

Didcot Garden Town - 
project update 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Judy 
Roberts 
 

Marybeth Harasz 
marybeth.harasz@south
andvale.gov.uk 
 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 
Date 
 

Oxfordshire Growth 
Board - review outcome 
 
 

 
 

Leader of the 
Council, Cllr Emily 
Smith 
 

Andrew Down 
andrew.down@southand
vale.gov.uk 
 

P
age 171

mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Statement of Community Involvement
	SCI Appendix 1 and 2
	SCI revised draft pdf reduced
	SCI Appendix 1 and 2
	cover
	2020_07_06 SCI (Appendix 1)
	1. WHAT IS OUR STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT?
	Section 1 – Shaping our Future
	2. OUR PRINCIPLES FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT IN PLANNING POLICY AND PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	3. HOW TO GET INVOLVED IN PLANNING
	4. COMMITMENT TO EQUALITIES
	4.1. We are committed to equality and ensuring that everyone has access to our services. We comply with the Equalities Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 1998 and have developed, jointly with South Oxfordshire District Council, a Corporate Equality Pol...
	4.2. We also have a Corporate Equality Action Plan 2016/17–2019/20 which sets our objectives from the previous few years and how we have or have not achieved these objectives.
	4.3. As part of our commitment to ensuring all residents have equal access to council information and services, including consultations, we have a translation and interpretation policy which sets out our approach to responding to requests and proactiv...
	5. FURTHER INFORMATION ON PLANNING
	6. REVIEW

	Section 2 – Planning Policy
	7. WHAT IS PLANNING POLICY?
	8. DUTY TO CO-OPERATE
	9. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN PLANNING POLICY
	10. CONSULTEES
	11.   POLICY DOCUMENTS WE CONSULT ON
	12. OTHER DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS
	13. TIMEFRAMES FOR CONSULTATION
	14. COMMENTS MADE ON PLANNING POLICY DOCUMENTS
	15. MONITORING

	Section 3 – Development Management

	Comment summaries table (Appendix 2)



	7 Authority Monitoring Report
	AMR 2018-19
	AMR Feb 2020 front cover
	AMR 2018-19 nocover
	back cover v1


	8 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings



